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Message from the President:

Pacific Mercantile’s continued commitment to serving our customers and expanding our
banking franchise enabled us to achieve record earnings in 2004 of $4.9 million and $0.46 per
diluted share, which represented increases of 134% and 53%, respectively, as compared to our net
earnings and diluted earnings per share in 2003. At the same time, we increased our total assets
to $846 million at December 31, 2004 from $724 million at December 31, 2003.

During 2004, we continued the expansion of the banking franchise of our wholly-owned
banking subsidiary, Pacific Mercantile Bank, with the opening, in September 2004, of our
seventh full service Financial Center in Long Beach, California, which fills a geographic gap
between our Orange County Financial Centers and our Beverly Hills regional office. Long Beach
is one of the largest commercial port areas in the continental United States with a business
volume exceeding all other domestic ports. Additional expansion will occur with the opening,
scheduled for late spring/summer of 2005, of our eighth Financial Center, in Ontario, California.
The Ontario Financial Center will enable us to expand our banking franchise into the Inland
Empire of Southern California. As a result, we will have financial centers operating in the four
largest counties of Southern California: Los Angeles, Orange, San Bernardino and San Diego,
which comprise one of the largest economies in the world.

We continue to offer a broad selection of financial products and services to businesses,
professionals and individuals through our internet banking. The Bank’s internet banking, at
www.pmbank.com, provides a unique link between customers and banking convenience.

Our strategic plan continues to perform in the current economic environment, which is
characterized by rising interest rate and increasing demand for business loans, which is offsetting
the mortgage refinancing. We intend to continue our primary focus on commercial lending as we
continue to service and support the growth of various business communities in Southern
California.

PMB Securities Corp., our full service securities broker-dealer subsidiary delivers online
and in person brokerage and fee based asset management programs delivered primarily to our
banking clients. PMB Securities Corp’s registered investment advisory team can customize
clients’ portfolios to meet their future financial objectives.

I invite you to stop by one of our Financial Centers and try our banking services, if you
have not already done so. Shareholder value will increase by your utilization of our banking
services and by referring friends and business associates to us for their banking needs, as well.
For the Financial Center nearest you, please turn to the back cover or call any of our employees to
discuss your financial needs.

Pacific Mercantile Bancorp trades on the NASDAQ National Market trading under the
symbol PMBC.

In closing, I want to personally thank you, our shareholders, for your continued support,
which has been and will continue to be the cornerstone our success.

Sincerely,

/éwdz Do Oee

Raymond E. Dellerba
President and CEO
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements contained in this Report that are not historical facts or that discuss our expectations or beliefs regarding our
future operations or future financial performance, or financial or other trends in our business, constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”) and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”). Forward-looking statements can be identified by the
fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. Often, they include the words “believe,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate,” “project,” or words of similar meaning, or future or conditional verbs such as
“will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” or “may.” The achievement or realization of the expectations or beliefs set forth in
forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause our financial condition or
operating results in the future to differ significantly from those expected at the current time. Those risks and uncertainties are
described in Part I of this Report in the Section entitled “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS-—Uncertainties Regarding Future Financial Performance”
and readers of this Report are urged to read the cautionary statements contained in that Section of this Report. Due to these
uncertainties and risks, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements contained in the
Report, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Background

Pacific Mercantile Bancorp is a California corporation that owns all of the stock of Pacific Mercantile Bank, a
California state chartered commercial bank (which, for convenience, will sometimes be referred to in this report as the
“Bank” or “our Bank”). The capital stock of the Bank is our principal asset and substantially all of our business operations .
are conducted by the Bank which, as a result, accounts for substantially all of our revenues and income. As the owner of a
commercial bank, Pacific Mercantile Bancorp is registered as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company
Act of 1956, as amended (the “Bank Holding Company Act”) and; as such, our operations are regulated by the Board of
Govemors of the Federal Reserve System (the *Federal Reserve Board”). See “Supervision and Regulation” below in this
Report. In December 2002, we also began offering our customers retail securities brokerage service and investment products
such as tax free income, fixed income and equity securities and mutual fund investments, through PMB Securities Corp, a
wholly-owned subsidiary that is a securities broker-dealer and member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.
(the “NASD”). For ease of reference, we will sometimes use the terms “Company,” “we” or “us” in this Report to refer to
Pacific Mercantile Bancorp on a consolidated basis. '

The Bank, which is headquartered in Orange County, Cahforma approximately 40 m11es south of Los Angeles, and
conducts a commercial banking business in Orange, Los Angeles and San Diego counties. The Bank is also a member of the
Federal Reserve System and its deposits are insured, to the maximum extent permitted by law, by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (commonly known as the “FDIC”). :

At December 31, 2004, the Company’s total assets, net loans (including loans held for sale), and total deposits had
grown to $846 million, $512 million and $534 million, respectively. Additionally, as of that date we were serving a total of
approximately 8,000 deposit accounts, of which approximately 48% were business customers. Currently we operate seven
full service commercial banking offices (which we refer to as “financial centers™) and an internet banking branch at
www.pmbank.com. Due to the Bank’s internet presence, the Bank has customers who are located in 49 states and the stmct
of Columbia, although the vast majority of our customers are located in Southern California.

_ The Bank commenced business in March 1999, with the opemng of its first financial center, Iocated in Newport Beach,
California, and in April 1999 it launched its internet bankmg site, at www.pmbank.com, where our customers are able to
conduct many of their commercial banking transactions, more conveniently and less expensively, with us, 24 hours a day, 7
days a week. We have achieved rapld growth since then, opening the following six additional commercial banking offices



(which we will refer to in this Report as “banking and financial centers”) in Southern California in between August 1999 and
September, 2004: _

Banking and Financial Center Locations County o Opened for Business
San Clemente, California ~ Orange August 1999
Costa Mesa, California . Orange | June 2001
Beverly Hills, California Los Angeles July 2001
La Jolla, California San Diego June 2002
La Habra, Califomii Orange September 2003
Long Beach, California Los Angeles | September 2004

We are scheduled to open our elghth banking and financial center in Ontario, California, our first office in San Bernardino
County (commonly know as the Inland Empire), in the summer of 2005.

It is our plan to expand our operations by opening additional financial centers in other areas of So'uthern California.

According to data published by the FDIC, at December 31, 2004 there were approximately 142 commercial banks
operating in banking offices in the counties of Los Angeles, Orange, San Diego, Riverside and San Bernardino in Southern
California. Of those commercial banks, 24 have assets in excess of $1 billion (several of which operate in multiple states);
109 have assets under $500 million (which are often referred to as “community banks”); and only 9 which includes our Bank,
had assets ranging between $500 million and $1 billion. As a result, we believe that we are well-posmoned to achieve further

growth in Southern California.

The Company was organized in 2000 to become a bank holding company for the Bank. In June 2000, it did so,
following receipt of required regulatory approvals, by acquiring all of the stock of the Bank in a merger in which the
shareholders of the Bank became the shareholders of the Company, exchanging their shares of common stock of the Bank, on
a one share-for-one share basis, for shares of Company’s common stock. Prior to that time, the Company had no material

assets and had not conducted any business.

Our Business Strategy

Our growth and expansion are the result of our adherence to a business plan which was created by our founders, who
include both experienced banking professionals and individuals who came out of the computer industry. That business plan is
to build and grow a banking organization that offers its customers the best attributes of a community bank, which are
personalized and responsive service, while taking advantage of advances in computer technology to reduce costs and at the
same time extend the geographic coverage of our banking franchise, initially within Southern California, by opening
additional financial centers and taking advantage of opportunities that may arise in the future to acquire other banks.

In furtherance of that strategy:

»  We offer at our financial centers and at our interactive internet banking website, a broad selection of financial
products and services that address, in particular, the banking needs of business customers and professional firms,
including services that are typically available only from much larger banks in our market areas. .

+  We provide a level of convenience and access to banking services that we believe are not typically available from
- the community banks with which we compete, made possible by the combination of our full service financial
centers and the internet banking capabilities coupled with personal services we offer our customers.

»  We have built a technology and systems mfrastructure that we believe will support the growth and further
expansion of cur banking franchise in Southern California. ,

*  We adhere to stringent loan and investment underwriting standards which has enabléd us to maintain high quality
earning assets and a strong balance sheet, which is necessary to our ability to support the growth and further
expansion of our banking franchise.

Along with opening the financial center in Ontario, California, we plan to add at least one additional financial center in
the next 12 months, either by opening new a financial center or acquiring a community banks or bank branches in selected
locations in Southern California. We believe that adding to our network of financial centers will enable us to grow our loans
and other earning assets and increase our core deposits (consisting of non-interest bearing demand, and lower cost savings
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and money market deposits), with the goal of increasing our net interest margins and improving our profitability. We also
believe that, with our technology systems in place, we have the capability to significantly increase the volume of banking
transactions that we handle without having to incur the cost or disruptions of a major computer enhancement program.
Therefore, we believe that the establishment of additional financial centers will enable us to achieve additional eﬁicnencws
and cost savings.

Our Commercial Banking Operations

We seek to meet the banking needs of small and moderate size businesses, professional firms and individuals by
provxdmg our customers w1th

s Abroad range of loan and deposit products and banking and ﬁnancxal services, more typical of larger banks, in
- order to gain a competmve advantage over independent or community banks that do not provide the same range or
- breadth of services that we are able to provide to our customers;

¢ A high level of personal service and responsiveness, more typical of independent and commumty banks, which we
believe, gives us a competitive advantage over large out-of-state and other large multi-regional banks that are
unable, or are unwilling, due to the expense involved, to provide that same level of personal service to this
segment of the banking market; and

+  The added flexibility, convenience and efficiency of conducting banking transactions with us over the Internet,
which we believe further differentiates us from many of the community banks with which we compete and enables
us to reduce the costs of providing services to our customers.

Deposit Products

Deposits are a bank’s principal source of funds for makmg loans and acqumng other interest earning assets. .
Additionally, the costs or interest expense that a bank must incur to attract and maintain deposits has a significant impact on
its operating results. Those costs, in turn, will be determined in large measure by the types of deposit products that a bank
offers to and is able to attract from its customers. Generally, banks seek to attract “core deposits” which consist of demand
deposits that bear no interest and low cost mterest-bearmg checking, savings and money market deposits. By comparison
time deposits (also sometimes referred to as “certificates of deposit”), including those in denominations of $100,000 or more,
usually bear much higher interest rates and are more interest-rate sensitive and volatile than core deposits. A bank that is not
able to attract significant amounts of core deposits must rely on more expensive time deposits to fund interest-earning assets,
which means that its costs of funds will be higher and, as a result, its net interest margin is likely to be lower, than a bank
with higher proportion of core deposits. See “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — Net Interest Income.”




The following table sets forth, by type of deposit, the year-to-date average balances and total amounts of the deposxts
maintained by our customers as of December 31, 2004:
December 31, 2004

Year-to-Date
Average Balance Balance at

(In thousands)

Type of Deposit
Noninterest-bearing checking accounts®
Interest-bearing checking accounts®
Money Market and savings deposits
Certificates of deposit®

Totals

$ 166,478 § 175,329
20,283 22,862
122,713 131,161
200,244 204,211

$ 509,718 §$ 533,563

(1) Includes nomnterest-bearmg demand checking accounts, Excludes an average annual balance of $43,000 for the year
ended, and a balance of $14,000 as of December 31, 2004 of noninterest-bearing demand deposits maintained at the

Bank by PMB Securities Corp.

(2) Includes savings accounts and money market accounts. Excludes an average annual balance of $30.0 mil‘lion' for the
year ended and a balance of $30.3 million as of December 31, 2004 of money market deposits maintained at the Bank

by us and our non-banking subsidiaries.
(3) Time certificates of deposit in varying denominations under and over $100,000. Excludes an average balance for the

year ended and a balance as of December 31, 2004 of $5.3 million in certificates of deposit maintained by us at the
Bank.

Loan Products

We offer our customers a number of different loan products, including commercial loans and credit lines, accounts
receivable and inventory financing, SBA guaranteed business loans, commercial real estate and construction loans, residential
mortgage loans and consumer loans. The following table sets forth the types and the amounts of our loans that were
outstanding: ,

At December 31, 2004

Amount Percent of Total
- (Dollars i in thousands) -
Commercial loans $ 132,964 25.8%
Real estate loans 174,520 33.7.
Residential mortgage loans® 173,194 33.6
Construction loans 29,731 5.8
Consumer loans 5,471 1.1
Total $ 515,880 100.0%

(1) Residential mortgage loans consist primarily of single family and multi-family mortgage loans. Total loans exclude
loans held for sale at December 31, 2004 in the amount of $42 million consisting primarily of single family residential
mortgage loans (see “—Mortgage Banking Operations” below) and net deferred loan fees of $21,000.

Commercial Loans

The commercial loans we offer, generally, include short-term secured and unsecu:ed business and commercial loans
with maturities ranging from 12 to 24 months, accounts receivable financing for terms of up to 18 months, equipment and
automobile loans and leases which generally amortize over a period of up to 7 years, and SBA guaranteed business loans
with terms of up to 10 years. The interest rates on these loans generally are adjustable and usually are indexed to The Wall
Street Journal’s prime rate. However, since 2003 it has been our practice to establish an interest rate floor on our commercial




loans, generally ranging from 5.0% to 6.0%. In order to mitigate the risk of borrower default, we generally require collateral
to support the credit or, in the case of loans made to businesses, personal guarantees from their owners, or both. In addition,
all such loans must have well-defined primary and secondary sources of repayment. We typically require personal guarantees
from the owners of the businesses to which we make such loans. Generally, lines of credit are granted for no more than a 12-
month period and are subject to periodic reviews.

. Commercial loans, including accounts receivable financing, generally are made to businesses that have been in
operation for at least three years. In addition, generally these borrowers must have debt-to-net worth ratios not exceeding 4-
to-1 and operating cash flow sufficient to demonstrate the ability to pay obligations as they become due. The borrowers also
must have good payment histories as evidenced by credit reports.

We also offer asset-based lending products, which involve a higher degree of risk, because they generally are made to
businesses that are growing rapidly, but cannot internally fund their growth without borrowings. These loans are’
collateralized primarily by the borrower’s accounts receivable and inventory, We control our risk by requiring loan-to-value
ratios of not more than 80% and by closely and regularly monitoring the amount and value of the collateral in order to
maintain that ratio. ' .

Commercial loan growth is important to the growth and profitability of our banking franchise because, although not
required to do so, commercial loan borrowers often establish noninterest-bearing (demand) and interest-bearing transaction
deposit accounts and banking services relationships with us. Those deposit accounts help us to reduce our overall cost of
funds and those banking services relationships provide us with a source of additional revenue.

Commercial Real Estate Loans

The majority of our commercial real estate loans are secured by first trust deeds on nonresidential real property. Loans
secured by nonresidential real estate often involve loan balances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers, and
generally involve a greater risk of nonpayment than do mortgage loans secured by multi-family dwellings. Paymenis on these
loans depend to a large degree on results of operations and dependable cash flows of the borrowers, which are generated from
a wide variety of businesses and industries. As a result, repayment of these loans can be affected adversely by changes in the
economy in general or by the real estate market more specifically. Accordingly, the nature of this type of loan makes it more
difficult to monitor and evaluate. Consequently, we typically require personal guarantees from the owners of the businesses
to which we make such loans.

Customers desiring to obtain a commercial real estate Joan must bave good payment records with a debt coverage ratio
generally of at least 1.25 to 1. In addition, we require adequate insurance on the property securing the loan to protect the
collateral value. Generally, these types of loans are indexed to The Wall Street Journal prime rate and are written for terms of
up to 12 years, with loan-to-value ratios of not more than 75%. We generally place 5% 1nterest rate floors on newly-
originated commercial real estate loans.

' Residential Mortgage Loans

Residential mortgage loans are securéd_ primarily by first trust deeds on apartment buildings or other multi-family
dwellings, as well as, single-family residential property that have been generated by our mortgage division.

The Bank originates multi-family residential loans primarily in Los Angeles and Orange Counties for terms up to 30
years. These loans generally are adjustable rate loans with interest rates tied to a variety of independent indexes. In some
cases these loans have fixed interest rates for an initial five-year period and adjust thereafter based on an applicable index. .
These loans generally have interest rate floors, payment caps, and prepayment penalties. The loans are underwritten based on
a variety of borrower and property criteria. Borrower criteria include liquidity and cash flow analysis and credit history
verifications. Property criteria include loan to value limits under 75% and debt coverage ratios of 1.25 to 1 or greater.




Single-family mortgages are originated for the portfolio by the Bank’s Mortgage Banking Department. These loans are
principally adjustable rate loans, except that in some cases they have fixed interest rates for the initial 5 years of the loan term
and adjust thereafter. The residential real estate loans for the portfolio are underwritten with loan-to-value ratios below 80%
and borrowers generally are required to have Fair Isaac Credit Scores excess of 660. These loans are defined in the industry
as “prime” loans. The majority of these loans are made for the purchase and refinance of owner occupied homes.

Real Estate Construction Loans

Generally these loans are designed to.meet the needs of specific construction projects, are secured by first trust deeds -
on the properties, and typically do not exceed 18 months. Although borrowers are personally liable for repayment of these
loans, they usually are paid with proceeds from a permanent mortgage loan (take-out financing) or from the proceeds of the
sale of the property. Loan terms are based on current market conditions, with interest rates that adjust based on market rates

of interest.

Real estate construction loans also provide us with the opportunity to establish business banking relationships that can
enable us to obtain deposits from and to provide revenue generating banking services to real estate developers and real
property owners in our service areas.

Consumer Loans !

We offer a variety of loan and credit products to consumers including personal installment loans, lines of credit and
credit cards. We design these products to meet the needs of our customers, and some are made at fixed rates of interest and
others at adjustable rates of interest. Consumer loans often entail greater risk than real estate mortgage loans, particularly in
the case of consumer loans which are unsecured or are secured by rapidly depreciable assets, such as automobiles, that may
not provide an adequate source of repayment of the outstanding loan balance in the event of a default by the consumer.
Consumer loan collections are dependent on the borrower’s ongoing financial stability. Furthermore, in the event a consumer
files for bankruptcy protection, the bankruptcy and insoivency laws may limit the amount which can be recovered on such
loans. Consumer loans require a good payment record and, typically, debt ratios of not more than 40%.

Consumer loahs‘ and credit products are important because consumers are a source of noninterest-bearing checking
accounts and low cost savings deposits. Additionally, banking relationships with consumers tend to be stable and longer
lasting than banking relationships with businesses, which tend to be more sensitive to price competition.

Business Banking Services

We offer various banking and ﬁnanc1a1 services designed pnmanly for our business bankmg customers. Those services
include:

*  Financial management tools that include multiple account control, account analysis, transaction security and
verification, wire transfers, universal b111 payment, payroll and lock box services, most of which are available at

our Intemet websxte

+  Automated clearinghouse origination services that enable any businesses that charge for their services or products
on a monthly or other periodic basis to obtain payment from their customers through an automatic, pre—authonzed
debit from their customers’ bank accounts anywhere in the United States; and

»  Electronic check origination and processing that allows businesses, including Internet retailers, to accept payment
from their customers in the form of an electronic check that we are able to debit electromcally from their
customers’ bank accounts at any bank in the United States.

Convenience Banking Services

We also offer a number of services and produéts that make it more convenient to conduct banking transactions, such as
Internet banking services, phone bankmg, ATM’s, night drop services and courier and armored car services that enable our
business customers to order and receive cash without having to travel to our banking offices.




Internet Banking Services

Our customers can access through any internet service provider by means of secure web browsers, our internet bank at
www.pmbank.com, to:

Use financial cash management services

Make payroll and tax payments

Transfer funds from credit lines to, and making loan payments from, deposit accounts
Prepafe and submit loan applications

Pay bills and order wire transfers of funds

Transfer funds between accounts

Order cash for delivery by courier service

Open checking and savings aqcoﬁnts

View account balances and account history

* View the front and back of paid checks, within one day of theirlreceipt by us

Print bank statements -
Order stop payments

Purchase and renew certificates of deposit

' Re-order checks

We also have recently launched a wholesale mortgage loan website for use by mortgage loan brokers to enable them to
obtain the latest data regarding our mortgage loan programs, including applicable interest rates, and the status of mortgage
loan applications that they have submitted to us.

Security Measures -

Our ability to provide customers with secure and uninterrupted financial services is of paramount importance to our
business. We believe our computer banking systems, services and software meet the highest standards of bank and electronic
systems security. The following are among the security measures that we mplemented

Bank-Wide Security Measures

Service Continuity. In order to better ensure continuity of service, we have located our critical file servers and
computer and telecommunications systems at an offsite hardened and secure data center. This data center provides

~-the physical environment necessary to keep servers up and running 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. It is custom

designed with raised floors, HVAC temperature control systems with separate cooling zones, seismically braced
racks, and generators to keep the system operating during power outages and has been designed to withstand fires

‘and major earthquakes. The data

center also has a wide range of physical security features, including smoke detection and fire suppression systems,
motion sensors, and 24x7 secured access, as well as video camera surveillance and security breach alarms. In addition,
the data center is connected to the Internet by redundant high speed data circuits with advanced capacity monitoring
and planning. For added reliability and redundancy, the data center is served by two different Central Offices and has




dual-path, dual-entry fiber facilities. These circuits terminate on dual routers to ensure complete redundancy and
maximum uptime. The center is designed so that there can be no single point of failure.

. Physzcal Security. All servers and network computers reside in secure facilities. Only employees w1th proper
identification may enter the primary server areas.

»  Monitoring. All customer transactions on our internet servers and internal computer systems produce one or more
entries into transactional logs. Our personnel routinely review these logs to identify any abnormal or unusual
activity and to take appropriate action. We believe that, ultimately, vigilant monitoring is the best defense against

fraud.
Internet Security Measures

We maintain electronic and procedural safeguards that comply with federal regulations to guard nonpublic personal
information. We continually assess and update our systems to improve our technology for protecting information. On our
website, the security measures include:

»  Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) protocol,
»  Digital certificates,
+ Intrusion detection systems,

. »  Firewall protection.

" We believe the risk of fraud presented by providing internet banking services is not materially different from the risk of
fraud inherent in any banking relationship. We also believe that potential security breaches can arise from any of the
following circumstances:

*  misappropriation of a customer’s account number or password;
. peneuatlon of our server by an outside “hacker;”

o fraud commltted by a new customer in completing his or her loan apphcauon or opening a deposit account with us;
and.

+  fraud committed by employees or service providers.

Both traditional banks and internet banks are vulnerable to these types of fraud. By establishing the security measures
described above, we believe we can minimize, to the extent practicable, our vulnerability to the first three types of fraud. To
counteract fraud by employees and service providers, we have established internal procedures and policies designed to ensure
that, as in any bank, proper control and supervision is exercised over employees and service providers. We also maintain
insurance to protect us from losses due to fraud committed by employees.

Additionally, the adequacy of our security measures is reviewed periodically by the Federal Reserve Board and the
California Department of Financial Institutions (“DFI”), which are the federal and state government agencies, respectively,
with supervisory authority over the Bank. We also retain the services of third party computer security firms to conduct
periodic tests of our computer and internet banking systems to identify potential threats to the security of our systems and to -
recommend additional actions that we can take to improve our security measures.

Mortgage Banking Operations

In 2001, we established a mortgage banking division which originates residential mortgages that, for the most part,
qualify for resale to long-term investors in the secondary residential mortgage market. Our mortgage loan products include
conforming and non-conforming agency-quality one-to-four family first mortgages, investor-quality home equity second
mortgages and investor-quality home equity lines of credit secured by second trust deeds or mortgages. In most instances, we




fund these loans at the time of origination and sell the loans to investors in the secondary market within 30 days of funding.
We eamn loan origination and processing fees, which are recorded in our operating statements as noninterest income. We do
not retain mortgage loan servwmg rights with respect to loans sold to investors.

Generally, re51dent1a1 real estate loans must meet secondary market investment criteria, which require that the loan-to-
value ratios generally not exceed 90%, and that the borrower (i) have a good payment history, (ii) a mortgage payment ratxo
of not more than 28% of income and (iii) total debt payments that do not exceed 40% of income.

~ Our mortgage loan division generated noninterest income of $2.2 million and $5.4 million, respectively, in the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. That decline was primarily attributable to a reduction in the volume of refinanced
mortgages due to increases in mortgage rates that began in the second half of 2003.

We currently expect the mortgage industry to stabilize and, as a result, we believe that our mortgage banking division
will be able to generate approximately the same income in fiscal 2005 as it did in fiscal 2004. However, if interest rates do
increase significantly, we believe that any resulting decline in noninterest income will be more than offset by increasesin
interest income on commercial loans and other loans and on investment securities, See “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION — Noninterest Income.”

Other Financial Services

In December 2002 we began offering our customers retail securities brokerage services through PMB Securities Corp.,
a wholly-owned subsidiary that is a securities broker-dealer that is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
and is a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (the “NASD”). PMB Securities also offers customers
a range of different investment products including tax free income, fixed income and equity securities and mutual fund.
investments. These services and investment products are available to our customers at several of our financial centers, which
are staffed by PMB Securities employees, or on-line via a link on our Internet website to a separate PMB Securities website,

Competition
Competitz've' Conditions in the Traditional Banking Environment

The banking business in California generally, and in our service area in particular, is highly competitive and is
dominated by a relatively small number of large multi-state and California-based banks that have numerous banking offices
operating over wide geographic areas. We compete for deposits and loans with those banks, with community banks that are
based or have branch offices in our market areas, and with savings and loan associations, credit unions, mortgage companies,
money market and other mutual funds, stock brokerage firms, insurance companies, and other traditional and nontraditional
financial service organizations. We also compete for customers’ funds with governmental and private entities issuing debt or
equity securities or other forms of investments which may offer different and potentially higher yields than those avmlable
through bank deposxts

Major financial institutions that operate throughout California and that have offices in our service areas include Bank -
of America, Wells Fargo Bank, Union Bank, Bank of the West, Washington Mutual Savings Bank, U. S. Bancorp, Comerica
Bank and Citibank. Larger independent banks and other financial institutions with offices in our service areas include, among
others, City National Bank, Manufacturers Bank, and California Bank and Trust.

These banks, as well as other banks and other financial institutions in our service areas, have the financial capability to
conduct extensive advertising campaigns and to shift their resources to regions or activities of greater potential profitability.
Many of them also offer diversified financial services which we do not presently offer directly. The larger banks and
financial institutions also have substantially more capital and higher lending limits than our Bank.




In order to compete with the banks and other financial institutions operating in our service areas, we rely on our ability
to provide flexible, more convenient and more personalized service to customers, including Internet banking services and
financial tools. At the same time, we: ‘

»  emphasize personal contacts with potential and existing customers by our directors, officers and other employees;
*  develop and participate in local promotional activities; and
«  seek to develop specialized or streamlined services for customers.

To the extent customers desire loans in excess of our lending limit or services not offered by us, we attempt to assist
them in obtaining such'loans or other services through participations with other banks or assistance from our correspondent
banks or third party vendors. .

We also compete for customer funds with the numerous and a growing number of securities brokerage firms and
mutual funds that provide investment products that are alternatives to our deposit products and also offer online trading and
investments. Our wholly-owned subsidiary, PMB Securities Corp., offers discount securities brokerage services to our
customers both at our financial centers and via a link on our internet web site.

Competitive Conditions in Internet Banking

There are a number of banks that offer services exclusively over the iriternet, such as NetBank and E*TRADE Bank,
and other banks, such as Bank of America and Wells Fargo Bank, market their internet banking services to their customers
nationwide. We believe that only the larger of the commercial banks with which we compete offer the comprehensiveness of
internet banking services that we are able to offer. However, an increasing number of community banks are beginning to
offer internet banking services by relying on third party vendors to provide the functionality they need to provide such
services. Additionally, many of the larger banks do have greater market presence and greater financial resources to market
their internet banking service than do we. Moreover, new competitors and competitive factors are likely to emerge, ’
particularly in view of the rapid development of internet commerce, On the other hand, there have been some recently
published reports indicating that the actual rate of growth in the use of the internet banking services by consumers and
businesses is lower than had been previously predicted and that many customers still prefer to be able to conduct at least
some of their banking transactions at local banking offices. We believe that these findings support our strategic decision,
made at the outset of our business, to offer customers the benefits of both traditional and internet banking services. We also
believe that this strategy has been an important factor in our growth to date and will contribute to our growth in the future.
See “BUSINESS — Background — Our Business Plan — Business Strategy™ earlier in this Section of this Report.”

Effects of Legislation and Government Regulation on Competition

Existing and future state and federal legislation, and government regulation of banking institutions, could significantly
affect our costs of doing business, the range of permissible activities in which we may engage and the competitive balance
among major and smaller banks and other financial institutions. We cannot predict the impact such developments may have
on commercial banking in general or on our business in particular. For additional information regarding these matters, see the
discussion below under the caption “—Supervision and Regulation.”

Supervision and Regulation

Both federal and state laws extensively regulate bank holding companies and banks. Such regulation is intended
primarily for the protection of depositors and the FDIC’s deposit insurance fund and is not for the benefit of shareholders. Set
forth below is a surnmary description of the material laws and regulations that affect or bear on our operations. The
description does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the laws and regulations that are

summarized below.
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Pacific Mercantile Bancorp

General. Pacific Mercantile Bancorp is a registered bank holding company subject to regulation under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended. Pursuant to that Act, we are subject to supervision and periodic examination by,
and are required to file periodic reports with, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Board (the “Federal Reserve
Board” or the “FRB”).

As a bank holding company, we are allowed to engage, directly or indirectly, only in banking and other activities that
the Federal Reserve Board deems to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper
incident thereto. However, over the past ten years the Federal Reserve Board has broadened the activities and businesses that
it has designated as closely related to banking in order to enhance the ability of bank holding companies and their subsidiaries
to compete with diversified financial institutions and service organizations that are not subject to the same regulation as are
bank holding companies. Business activities designated by the Federal Reserve Board to be closely related to banking include
securities brokerage services and products and data processing services, among others.

As a bank holding company, we must obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board before we may acquire
more than 5% of the outstanding shares of any class of voting securities, or of substantially all of the assets, of any bank or .
other bank holding company and for any merger with any other bank holding company. Additionally, we are required to
obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board for the acquisition of more than 5% of the cutstanding shares of any
class of voting securities, or of substantially all of the assets, of other entities engaged in banking-related businesses or that
prov1de banking-related services.

Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, a bank holding company is required to serve as a source of financial and
managerial strength to its subsidiary banks and may not conduct its operations in an unsafe or unsound manner. In addition, it
is the Federal Reserve Board’s policy that, in serving as a source of strength to its subsidiary banks, a bank holding company
should stand ready to use available resources to provide adequate capital funds to its subsidiary banks during periods of
financial stress or adversity and shouid maintain the financial ﬂexibility and capital-raising capacity to obtain additional
resources for assisting its subsidiary banks. A bank holding company’s failure to meet these obligations will generally be
considered by the Federal Reserve Board to be an unsafe and unsound banking practice or a violation of the Federal Reserve
Board’s regulations or both, which could lead to the imposition of restrictions on the offending bank holdmg company,
including restrictions on its further growth,

For that reason, among others, the Federal Reserve Board requires all bank holding companies to maintain capital at or
above certain prescribed levels. See the discussion below under the caption “—Capital Standards and Prompt Corrective
Action.”

Additionally, among its powers, the Federal Reserve Board may require any bank holding company to terminate an
activity or terminate control of, or liquidate or divest itself of, any subsidiary or affiliated company that the Federal Reserve
Board determines constitutes a significant risk to the financial safety, soundness or stability of the bank holding company or
any of its banking subsidiaries. The Federal Reserve Board also has the authority to regulate provisions of a bank holding
company’s debt, including authority to impose interest ceilings and reserve requirements on such debt. Subject to certain
exceptions, bank holding companies also are required to file written notice and obtain approval from the Federal Reserve -
Board prior to purchasing or redeeming their common stock or other equity securities. A bank holding company and its non-
banking subsidiaries also are prohibited from implementing so-called tying arrangements whereby customers may be
required to use or purchase services or products from the bank holdmg company or any of its non-bank subsxdianes in order
to obtain a loan or other services from any of the holding company’s sub81d1ary banks.

The Company also is a bank holding company within the meaning of Section 3700 of the California Financial Code. As
such, we are subject to examination by, and may be required to file reports with, the DFL

Financial Services Modernization Legislation. The Financial Services Modernization Act, which also is known as the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, was enacted into law in 1999. The principal objectives of that Act were to establish a
comprehensive framework to permit affiliations among commercial banks, insurance companies, securities and investment
banking firms, and other financial service providers. Accordingly, the Act has revised and expanded the Bank Holding
Company Act to permit a bank holding company system, meeting certain specified qualifications, to engage in broader range
of financial activities to foster greater competition among financial services companies. To accomplish those objectives,

11




among other things, the Act repealed the two affiliation provisions of the Glass-Steagall Act that had been adopted in the
early 1930s during the Depression: Section 20, which restricted the affiliation of Federal Reserve Member Banks with firms
“engaged principally” in specified securities activities; and Section 32, which restricted officer, director, or employee
interlocks between a member bank and any company or person “primarily engaged” in specified securities activities. The
Financial Services Modernization Act also contains provisions that expressly preempt any state law restricting the'
establishment of financial affiliations, primarily related to insurance. That Act also:

*  broadens the activities that may be conducted by national banks, banking subsidiaries of bank holdmg companies,
and their ﬁnancnal subsidiaries;

»  provides an enhanced framework for protecting the privacy of consumer information;

» adopts a number of provisions related to the capitalization, membership, corporate governance, and other measures
designed to modernize the Federal Home Loan Bank system;

« modifies the laws governing the implementation of the Community Reinvestment Act (which is described in
greater detail below); and ,

*  addresses a variety of other legal and regulatory issues affecting both day-to-day operations and long-term
activities of banking institutions.

_ Before a bank holding company may engage in any of the financial activities authorized by the Act, it must file an
application with its Federal Reserve Bank that confirms that it meets certain qualitative eligibility requirements established
by the FRB. A bank holding company that meets those qualifications and files such an application will be designated as a
“financial holding company”, as a result of which it will become entitled to affiliate with securities firms and insurance
companies and engage in other activities, primarily through non-banking subsidiaries, that are financial in nature or are
incidental or complementary to activities that are financial in nature. According to current Federal Reserve Board regulations,
activities that are financial in nature and may be engaged in by financial holding companies include:

*  securities underwriting; dealing and market making;

*  sponsoring mutual ﬁnds and investment companies;

*  engaging in insurance underwriting and brokerage; and
*°  engaging in merchant banking activities.

A bank holding company that does not qualify as a financial holding company may not engage in such financial
activities, Instead, as discussed above, it is limited to engaging in banking and such other activities as that have been
determined by the Federal Reserve Board to be closely related to banking.

We have no current plans to engage in any activities not permitted to traditional bank holding companies, mcludmg
those expressly permitied by the Financial Services Modernization Act and we are not a financial holding company.

We do not believe that the Financial Services Modernization Act will have a material effect on our operations, at least
in the near-term. However, to the extent that it enables banks, securities firms, and insurance companies to affiliate, the
financial services industry may experience further consolidation. Additionally, the Act may have the result of increasing the
level of competition that we face from larger institutions and other types of companies offering diversified financial products
many of which may have substantially greater financial resources than we have.
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Privacy Provisions of the Financial Services Modernization Act. As required by the Financial Services Modemization
Act, federal banking regulators have adopted rules that limit the ability of banks and other financial institutions to disclose
nonpublic information about consumers to nonaffiliated third parties. Pursua.nt to the rules, financial institutions must -~

provide:

*  initial notices to customers about their privacy policies, describing the conditions under which they may disclose
non-public personal information to non-affiliated third parties and affiliates;

»  annual notices of their privacy policies to current customers; and
»  areasonable method for customers to “opt out” of disclosures to nonaffiliated third parties.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. On July 30, 2002, President Bush signed the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 into law.
This Act addresses accounting oversight and corporate governance matters of companies whose securities are registered
under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“public compames”) and therefore apphes to us. Among other
things, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

+  provided for the establishment of a five-member oversight board, known as the Public Company Accounting
. Oversight Board (the “PCAOB”), which is appointed by the Securities and Exchange Commission and.that is
currently setting standards for and has investigative and disciplinary authority over accountmg firms that have
public companies as clients;

»  prohibits accounting firms from providing various types of consulting services to their public company clients and
requires accounting firms to rotate partners among public company clients every five years;

increases the criminal penalties for financial crimes and securities fraud;

*  requires public companies to implement disclosure controls and procedures designed to assure that material o
information regarding their business and financial performance is included in the public reports they file under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act Reports™);

»  requires the chief executive and chief financial officers of public companies to certify as to the accuracy and
completeness of the Exchange Act Reports that their companies file, the financial statements mcluded in thosc
Reports and the effectiveness of their disclosure procedures and controls;

¢ requires, pursuant to Section 404 of the Act, that the chief executive and chief financial officer of a public
company, to test, and to certify to, the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reportmg and
that the company’s outside auditors independently test and issue a report as to whether the company’s internal
control over its financial reporting is effective and whether there are any material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in those financial controls;

*  requires a majority of a public company’s directors that are determined to be independent of the company’s
management and that the non-management directors that serve on a public company’s audit committee to meet .
standards of independence that are more stringent than those that apply to non-management directors, generally;

»  requires public.companies whose publicly traded securities have a value in excess of $75 million to file their
Exchange Act Reports on a more accelerated basis than had been required prior to the adoption of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act;

* - requires more expedltlous reporting by dl]‘CCtOI‘S and officers and other public company insiders regarding their
trading in company securities; and 4

» establishes statutory separations between investment banking firms and financial analysts.

We have taken the actions required by, and we believe we are in compliance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act that are applicable to us. Among other things, we have implemented disclosure controls and procedures and taken other
actions to meet the expanded disclosure requirements and certification requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Additionally,
our Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers have tested and have determined that our internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2004 and our independent auditors have issued their report, attestion report,
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which is contained in Item 8 of the annual Report, regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
and have concluded that we do not have any material weakness in those controls. We also have determined that six of our
seven directors meet the independence requirements, and that all members of our audit committee meet the more stringent
standards of independence, applicable to audit committee membership pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. ' '

‘Pacific Mercantile Bank

General. Pacific Mercantile Bank (the “Bank™) is subject to primary supervision, periodic examination and regulation.
by the (i) the Federal Reserve Board, which is its primary federal banking regulator, because the Bank is a member of the
Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco and (ii) the, DFI, because the Bank is a California state chartered bank. Also, because
its deposits are insured by the FDIC, the Bank is subject to certain of the regulations promulgated by the FDIC.

Various requirements and restrictions under the Federal and California banking laws affect the operations of the Bank.
These laws and the implementing regulations that are promulgated by Federal and State regulatory agencies, cover most
aspects of a bank’s operations, including the reserves a bank must maintain against deposits and for possible loan losses and
other contingencies; the types of deposits it obtains and the interest it is permitted to pay on deposit accounts; the loans and
investments that a bank may make; the borrowings that a bank may incur; the number and location of banking offices that a
bank may establish; and the rate at which it may grow its assets; the acquisition and merger activities of a bank; the amount
of dividends that a bank may pay; and the capital requirements that a bank must satisfy, which can determine the extent of
supervisory control that a bank will be subject to by its federal and state bank regulators. A more detailed discussion
regarding capital requirements that are applicable to us and the Bank that is set forth below under the caption “Capltal

Standards and Prompt Corrective Action.”

. If, as a result of an examination of a federally regulated bank, its primary federal bank regulatory agency, such as the
Federal Reserve Board, were to determine that the financial condition, capital resources, asset quality, earnings prospects,
management, liquidity, or other aspects of a bank’s operations had become unsatisfactory or that the bank or its management
was in violation of any law or regulation, that agency has the authority to take a number of different remedial actions as it
deems appropriate under the circumstances. These actions include the power to enjoin “unsafe or unsound” banking
practices; to require affirmative action to correct any conditions resulting from any violation or practice; to issue an
administrative order that can be judicially enforced; to require the bank to increase its capital; to restrict the bank’s growth; to
assess civil monetary penalties against the bank’s officers or directors; to remove officers and directors of the bank; and, if
the federal agency concludes that such conditions cannot be corrected or there is an imminent risk of loss to depositors, to
terminate a bank’s deposit insurance, which in the case of a California chartered bank would result in revocation of its charter
and require it to cease its banking operations. Additionally, under California iaw the DFI has many of the same remedlal
powers with respect to the Bank, because it is a California state chartered bank.

Dividends and Other Transfers of Funds. In addition to cash generated from our sale in 2002 and 2004 of trust
preferred securities and from our public stock offering in December 2003 (see “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—Capital Resources” elsewhere in this -
Report), it is expected that, in the future, dividends from the Bank will constitute one of the principal sources of cash
available to the Company. The Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from the Bank and the Bank is subject to
various statutory and regulatory restrictions on its ability to pay cash dividends to the Company. In addition, the Federal
Reserve Board and the DFI have the authority to prohibit the Bank from paying dividends, if either of those authorities deems
the payment of dividends by the Bank to be an unsafe or unsound practice. See “Dividend Policy—Restrictions on the

Payment of Dividends.”

Additionally, the Federal Reserve Board has established guidelines with respect to the maintenance of appropriate
levels of capital by banks and bank holding companies under its jurisdiction. Compliance with the standards set forth in those
guidelines and the restrictions that are or may be imposed under the prompt corrective action provisions of federal law could
limit the amount of dividends which the Bank or the Company may pay. See “—Capital Standards and Prompt Corrective
Action” below in this Report. An insured depository institution, like the Bank, also is prohibited from paying management
fees to a bank holding company or any other entity or person that may be deemed, under applicable law, to be a controlling
person. The Bank, is prohibited, with limited exceptions, paying dividends if, after the transaction, the banking institution

would be undercapitalized.
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Restrictions on Transactions between the Bank and the Company and its other Affiliates. The Bank is subject to
restrictions imposed by federal law on any extensions of credit to, or the issuance of a guarantee or letter of credit on behalf
of, the Company or any of its other subsidiaries; the purchase of, or investments in, Company stock or other Company
securities and the taking of such securities as collateral for loans; and the purchase of assets from the Company or any of its
other subsidiaries. These restrictions prevent the Company and any of its subsidiaries from borrowing from the Bank unless
the loans are secured by marketable obligations in designated amounts, and such secured loans and investments by the Bank
in the Company or any of its subsidiaries are limited, individually, to 10% of the Bank’s capital and surplus (as defined by
federal regulations) and, in the aggregate, for all loans made to and investments made in the Company and its other
subsidiaries, to 20% of the Bank’s capital and surplus. California law also imposes restrictions with respect to transactions
involving the Company and other persons deemed under that law to control the Bank. Additional restrictions on transactions
with affiliates of the Company may be imposed on the Bank under the prompt corrective action prov1sxons of federal law. See
“—Capital Standards and Prompt Corrective Action” below. :

Capital Standards and Prompt Corrective Actton

Capital Standards. The Federal Reserve Board and other federal bank regulatory agencies have adopted uniform risk-
based minimum capital guidelines intended to require banking organizations to maintain capital at levels that reflect the
degree of risk associated with the banking organization’s operations both for assets that are reported on the organization’s
balance sheet, and for assets such as letters of credit and recourse arrangements that are recorded as off-balance sheet items.
Under these guidelines, nominal dollar amounts of assets and credit equivalent amounts of off-balance sheet items are
multiplied by one of several risk adjusted percentages, which range from 0% percent for assets with low credit risk, such as
U.S. Treasury securities, to 100% for assets with relatively high credit risk, such as commercial loans.

These guidelines require banking organizations to maintain a ratio of qualifying total capital to risk-adjusted assets of
at least 8% and a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to nsk-ad_)usted assets of 4%. Tier 1 capital consists principally of common
stock and non-redeemable preferred stock, retained earnings and trust preferred securities, subject to certain limitations,
issued by a wholly-owned subsidiary of a bank holding company. In addition to the risk-based guidelines, federal banking -
regulators require banking organizations to maintain a ratio of Tier 1 capital to total average assets of 4%, which is referred to
as “the leverage” ratio. However, for a banking organization to be rated by a bank regulatory agency above minimum capital
requirements, its minimum leverage ratio must be higher than 4%.

In addition to these uniform risk-based capital guidelines and leverage ratios that apply across the industry, federal and
state banking regulatory agencies have the discretion to set individual minimum capital requirements for any particular
banking organization at rates significantly above the minimum guidelines and ratios, if any of those agencies believes that the
quality of the organization’s assets or liquidity, is poorer, or the risks it faces are greater, than those generally faced by most

banking organizations.

Prompt Corrective Action and Other Enforcement Mechanisms to Resolve Capital Deficiencies. Federal banking
agencies possess broad powers to take corrective and other supervisory action to resolve the problems of FDIC-Insured
banking and FDIC- Insured depository institutions, including those institutions that fall below one or more prescribed
minimum capital ratios.

Each federal banking agency has promulgated regulations defining the following five categories in which an FDIC
insured depository institution will be placed, based on its capital ratios:

+ well capitalized;

* adequately capitalized;

. undercapitalized;

. mgmﬁcantly undercapitalized; and

. crmcally undercapitalized.

15



. However, an FDIC insured banking institution that, based upon its capital levels, is classified as well capitalized,
adequately-capitalized, or undercapitalized may be treated as though it were in the next lower capital category if its primary
federal banking regulatory agency, after notice and opportunity for hearing, determines that an unsafe or unsound condition
or an unsafe or unsound practice warrants such treatment. At each successive lower capital category, an insured banking
institution is subject to greater operating restrictions and increased regulatory supervision. The federal banking agencies,
however, may not treat a significantly undercapitalized mstltutxon as critically undercapitalized unless its capital ratlo
actually warrants such treatment.

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2004, the capital ratios of the Company (on a consolidated basis)
and the Bank (on a stand alone basis) and compares those capital ratios to the federally established capital requirements that
must be met for a bank holding company or a bank to be deemed “adequately capitalized” or a “‘well capitalized” institution
under the prompt corrective action regulations that are described above:

At December 31, 2004 Actual For Capital Adequacy Purposes To be Classified as Well Capitalized
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Company 17.3% " Atleast 8.0% At least 10.0%
Bank 10.7% At least 8.0% At least 10.0%
Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets ‘ '
Company 16.3% At least 4.0% At least 6.0%
Bank 10.1% At least 4.0% At least 6.0%
Tier I Capital to Average Assets . ‘
Company 12.2% At least 4.0% At least 5.0%
Bank v 7.5% At least 4.0% At least 5.0% |

As the table indicates, at December 31, 2004 the Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank (on a stand alone
basis) exceeded the capital ratios required for classification as well capitalized mstltutxons, under federally mandated capital

standards and federally established prompt corrective action regulations.

Safety and Soundness Standards. In addition to measures taken under the prompt corrective action provisions, ba.ﬁking
organizations may be subject to potential enforcement actions by the federal regulators for unsafe or unsound practices or for
violating any law, rule, regulation, or any condition imposed in writing by its primary federal banking regulatory agency or
any ‘ ‘ e ‘

written agreement with that agency. The federal banking agencies have adopted guidelines designed to identify and address
potential safety and soundness concerns that could, if not corrected, lead to a deterioration in the quality of a bank’ s assets,
liquidity or capital. Those guidelines set forth operational and managerial standards relating to such matters as:

+  internal controls, information systems and internal audit systems;
*  loan documentation, -

+ credit underwriting;

*  asset growth;

*  earnings; and

= compensation, fees and benefits.

In addition, federal banking agencies also have adopted safety and soundness guidelines with respect to asset quality
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and earnings standards. These guidelines provide six standards for establishing and maintaining a system to identify problem
assets and prevent those assets from deteriorating. Under these standards, an FDIC-Insured depository institution is expected
to: - ' ’ : '

» conduct periodic asset quality reviews to identify problem assets, estimate the inherent losses in problem assets
and establish reserves that are sufficient to absorb those estimated losses; :

*  compare problem asset totals to capital;-
*  take appropriate corrective action to resolve problem assets;
»  consider the size and potential risks of material asset concentratlons and

+  provide periodic asset quahty reports with adequate mformanon for the bank s management and the board of
directors to assess the level of asset risk.

These guidelines also establish standards for evaluating and monitoring earnmgs and for ensurmg that eamnings are
sufficient for the mamtenance of adequate capital and reserves. :

FDIC Deposit Insurance

The FDIC operates a Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF’) which insures the deposits, up to federally prescribed limits, of
those banks that are subject to regulation by a federal banking regulatory agency and have elected to participate in that Fund
(“BIF Members”). The Bank is a BIF Member and, as a result, its deposit accounts are insured up to the maximum amount
permitted by law. The FDIC charges all BIF Members an annual assessment for the insurance of their deposits. The amount
of a bank’s annual assessment is based on its relative risk of default as measured by (i) the institution’s federal regulatory
capital risk category, which can range from well capitalized to less than adequately capitalized, and (id) its supervisory .
subgroup category, which is based on the federal regulatory assessment of the financial condition of the institution and the -
probability that federal regulatory corrective action will be required. The assessment rate currently ranges from 0 to 27 cents
per $100 of domestic insured deposits. The FDIC has the authority to increase or decrease the rate of the assessment on a
semi-annual basis. An increase in the assessment rate would increase the Bank’s costs of domg business. These assessments
are recorded as noninterest expense in the Company s statement of operations. :

The FDIC may terminate a bank’s deposit insurance upon finding that it has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is
in too unsafe or unsound a condition to continue operations, or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order, or
condition imposed by the FDIC or the institution’s primary federal regulatory agency. California does not permit commercial
banks to operate without FDIC insurance. As a result, termination of a California bank s FDIC insurance would result in its
closure. .

All FDIC-insured depository institutions also are required to pay an annual assessment for the payment of interest on
bonds (known as “FICO Bonds”) that were issued by the Financing Corporation, a federally chartered corporation, to assist in
the recovery of the savings and loan industry following the failure of numerous savings and loan institutions in the 1980s.
Effective for the first quarter of 2005, the FDIC established the FICO assessment rate at approximately $0.0144 per $100 of
assessable deposits of the insured banks. The FICO assessment rate for the fourth quarter of 2004 was approximately $0.0146
per $100 of assessable deposits of the insured banks. The FICO assessment rates are adjusted quarterly by the FDIC to reflect
changes in the assessment bases of the FDIC’s insurance funds and, unhke the BIF assessments, do not vary on the basxs ofa
bank's capital or supervisory risk categories.
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Interstate Banking and Branching .

The Bank Holding Company Act permits bank holding companies from any state to acquire banks and bank holding
companies located in any other state, subject to conditions including nationwide- and state-imposed concentration limits. The
Bank also has the ability, subject to certain restrictions, to acquire bank branches outside California either by acquisition from
or a merger with another bank. The establishment by a state bank of new bank branches (often referred to as “de novo”
branches) in other states is also possible in states with laws that expressly permit it. Interstate branches are subject to laws of
the states in which they are located. Consolidations of and competition among banks has increased as banks have begun to

branch across state lines and enter new markets.
Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Developments

The Bank is subject to fair lending requirements and reporting obligations involving home mortgage lending operations
under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”). That Act generally requires the federal banking agencies to evaluate the
record of a bank in meeting the credit needs of its local communities, including those of low- and moderate-income
neighborhoods in its service area. A bank also may be subject to substantial penalties and corrective measures for a violation
of fair lending laws. Federal banking agencies may take compliance with those laws and CRA obligations into account when

regulating and supervising other activities.

A bank’s compliance with its CRA obligations is based on a performance-based evaluation system which bases CRA
ratings on an institution’s community lending service and investment performance. When a bank holding company applies
for approval to acquire a bank or another bank holding company, the Federal Reserve Board will review-the CRA assessment
of each of the subsidiary banks of the applicant bank holding company, and those records may be the basis for denying the

application.

USA Patriot Act of 2001

In October, 2001, the USA Patriot Act of 2001 (the “Patriot Act”) was enacted into law in response to the September 1,
2001, terrorist attacks The Patriot Act is intended to strengthen the ability of U.S. law enforcement and intelligence agencies
to work cohesively to combat terrorism on a variety of fronts. The potential impact of the Act on all types of financial
institutions is significant and wide ranging.

The Patriot Act contains sweeping anti-money laundering and financial transparency laws and required the adoption of
various regulations that: .

«  establish due diligence requirements for financial institutions that administer, maintain, or manage private bank
accounts or correspondent accounts for non-U.S. persons; :

_+  establish standards for verifying customer identification at account opening;

«  setrules to promote cooperation among financial institutions, regulatory agencies and law enforcement entities in
identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or money laundering;

*  require the filing of reports with the Treasury Department’s Financial Crimes Enforcement Network for
transactions exceeding $10,000; and

«  require the filing of suspicious activities reports if a ﬁnanc1al institution believes a customer may be violating U.S.
laws and regulations.

Under implementing regulations issued by the U.S. Treasury Department, banking institutions are required to
incorporate a customer identification program into their written money laundering plans that includes procedures for:

»  verifying the identity of any person seeking to open an account, to the extent reasonable and practicable;
*  maintaining records of the information used to verify the person’s identity; and

+  determining whether the person appears on any list of known or suspected terrorists or terrorist organizations.
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Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 (“FACTA”). FACTA revises certain sections of the Fair Credit
Reporting Act (“FCRA”) and establishes additional rights for consumers to obtain copies of and to correct their credit
reports; addresses identity theft; and establishes additional requirements for consumer reporting agencies and financial
institutions that provide adverse credit information about consumers to those agencies. FACTA also extends the period
during which consumers may opt-out of prescreened lists for credit or insurance marketing solicitations; extends the statute
of limitations for civil liability for violations of the Fair Credit Reporting Act; and requires a financial institution’s affiliates
that exchange consumer information for market solicitation purposes to alert the consumer of the practice and allows the
consumer to prohibit permanently all solicitations for marketing purposes. Certain provisions of FACTA became effective at
the end of 2004, and its remaining provisions will become effective on various dates in 2005. FACTA also preempts state
laws that provide for similar or even more extensive regulations, such as the California Financial Information Privacy Act,
which became effective in July 1, 2003 and had imposed disclosure and reporting requirements on financial institutions based
in California that were more extensive than those contained in FACTA. Since we had already implemented measures to
comply with the California Financial Privacy Act, we believe that we will be able to satisfy the material requirements of the .
FACTA and the regulations implementing it without incurring any material increases in our operating expenses. '

Check Clearing for the Twenty-First Century Act. The Check Clearing for the Twenty-First Century Act, also known as
Check 21, which became effective on October 28, 2004, is intended to revamp the way banks process checks. Check 21 will
facilitate check truncation, a process which eliminates the original paper check from the check clearing process. As a result,
many checks will be processed electronically. Under Check 21, as a bank processes a check, funds from the check writer’s
account are transferred to the check depositor’s account electronically, and an electronic image of the check, which is a
processable printout known as a substitute check or Image Replacement Document (IRD), will be considered the legal
equivalent of the original check. Banks can choose to send substitute checks as electronic files.to be printed on-site or in
close proximity to the paying bank. For financial institutions and their clients, these changes have the potential to reduce
costs, improve efficiency in check collections and accelerate funds availability, while alleviating dependence on the national
transportation system. ' '

Future Legislation and Regulatory Initiatives

In recent years, significant legislative proposals and reforms with the potential to affect the financial services industry
have been discussed and evaluated by Congress and certain of these proposals, such as the Financial Services Modernization
Act, have been enacted into law. It is likely that additional legislation will be considered by Congress that, if enacted, could
have a significant impact on the operations of banks and bank holding companies, including the Company and the Bank.

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we employed 131 persons on a full-time equivalent basis. None of our employees are
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We believe relations with our employees are good.
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ITEM 2. Properties.

Set forth below is hﬂomaﬁon regarding our headquarters offices, our seven existing financial services centers and our
eighth financial center that is scheduled to be opened later this year in Ontario, California. All of our offices are leased.

© Square Lease
Location Footage _ Expiration Date

Headquarters Offices and Internet Banking Fac111ty ’ '

Costa Mesa, California ‘ - 21,000 ‘May, 2009
Financial Centers: ‘

Costa Mesa, California ‘ 3,000 June, 2009

Newport Beach, California 4,500 June, 2006

San Clemente, California 4,200 January, 2006

Beverly Hills, California 4,600 June, 2006

La Jolla, California . 3,200 February, 2007

La Habra, California 6,000 January, 2008

Long Beach, California 6,700 ‘August, 2010

Ontario, California® 5,000 February, 2011

(1) Ontario, California financial center is currently scheduled to open in the summer of 2005,

PMB Securities Corp. leases 5,000 square feet of office space in Newport Beach, California in the same buﬂdmg where
our Newport Beach financial center is located.

“We will continue to seek office space for additional financial centers to be located in other areas of Southern California
in furtherance of our growth strategy. See “BUSINESS — Our Business Strategy.”

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS..

We are subject to legal actions that arise in the ordinary course of our business. At December 31, 2004, we had no
pending legal proceedings that we believe would be material to our financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4, SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS_.
None. '
ITEM 4A. EXECUTIV‘E OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

Set forth below is information, as of March 9, 2005, regarding our principal executive officers:

Name and Age Position with Bancorp and the Bank
Raymond E. Dellerba, 57 President and Chief Executive Officer
Nancy Gray, 54 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

There is no family relationship between the above-named officers.

Raymond E. Dellerba has served as President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of the Company and the Bank
since the dates of their inception, which were January 2000 and November 1998, respectively. From February 1993 to June
1997, Mr. Dellerba served as the President, Chief Operating Officer and director of Eldorado Bank, and as Executive Vice
President and a director of Eldorado Bancorp. Mr. Dellerba has more than 30 years of experience as a banking executive,
primarily in Southern California and in Arizona.

Nancy Gray, who is a certified public accountant, has been an Executive Vice President and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and the Bank since May 2002. From 1980 through 2001, Ms. Gray was Senior Vice Pres1dent and
Financial Executive of Bank of America in Southern California, Missouri, Georgia, and Texas.

20




PARTII
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.
Trading Market for the Company’s Shares.

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “PMBC.” The following table presents
the high and low sales prices for our common stock, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market for each of the calendar
quarters indicated below:

High Low

Year Ending December 31, 2004

First Quarter $ 11.78 § 9.67

Second Quarter $ 11.44 3 1050

Third Quarter $ 12.62 $ 10.59

Fourth Quarter $ 1748 $ 1225
Year Ended December 31, 2003

First Quarter $ 799 § 7.00

Second Quarter $ 1060 $ 730

Third Quarter $ 1000 $ 8.66

Fourth Quarter $ 1022 § 8.70

The high and low per share sale prices of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market on March 3, 2005, were
.$14.84 and $14.50, respectively. As of March 3, 2005 there were approximately 239 holders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

It is the current policy of our Board of Directors to retain earnings to support future growth and, therefore, there are no
current plans to pay cash dividends. However, it is the Board’s intention to review that policy sometime during the next 6 to
12 months to determine whether the Company should begin to pay cash dividends on our common stock. Any change in our
current policy of retaining our earnings will depend on our future financial performance, including our internally generated
cash flow, our cash and capital requirements, and regulatory policies and restrictions and market conditions. As a result, there
is no assurance that we will pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. See “—Restrictions on the Payment of Dividends”
below.

Restrictions on the Payment of Dividends

A principal source of funds available to us to pay cash dividends is expected to be cash dividends from the Bank.
Therefore, government regulations, including the laws of the State of California, as they pertain to the payment of cash
dividends by California state chartered banks, limit the amount of funds that would be available to us to pay cash dividends in
the future. In particular, California law places a statutory restriction on the amounts of cash dividends a bank may pay to its
shareholders. Under that law, cash dividends by a California state chartered bank may not exceed, in any calendar year, the
lesser of (i) the sum of its net income for the year and its retained net income from the preceding two years (after deducting
all dividends paid during the period), or (ii) its retained earnings. At December 31, 2004, the Bank’s retained earnings totaled
approximately $9.5 million. :

Additionally, because the payment of cash dividends has the effect of reducing capital, capital requirements imposed
on bank holding companies and commercial banks often operate, as a practical matter, to preclude the payment, or limit the
amount of, cash dividends otherwise permitted by California law; and the federal bank regulatory agencies, as part of their
supervisory powers, generally require insured banks to adopt dividend policies which limit the payment of cash dividends
much more strictly than do applicable state laws.

Restrictions on Intercompany Transactions

Section 23(a) of the Federal Reserve Act limits the amount that a bank may make to its bank holding company to an
aggregate of no more than 10% of the bank subsidiary’s capital and retained earnings and requires that such loans be secured
by specified assets of the bank holding company... See “BUSINESS—Supervision and Regulation—Restrictions on
Transactions between the Bank and the Company and its other Affiliates”. We do not have any present intention to obtain
any borrowings from the Bank.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected statement of operations data set forth below for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
and the selected balance sheet data as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, are derived from consolidated financial statements of
the Company audited by Grant Thornton LLP, registered public accountants. Those consolidated financial statements,
together with the notes thereto, are included in Item 8 of this Report and the data set forth below should be read in
conjunction with those consolidated financial statements and also with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations included in Item 7 of this Report. The selected statement of operations data for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the selected balance sheet data as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are derived
from consolidated financial statements audited by Grant Thornton LLP, which are not included in this Report.

Selected Statement of Operations Data:
Total interest income
Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income

Per share data:
Net income per share—basic

Net income per share—diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding
BasicV
Diluted

Selected Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents®
Total loans®
Total assets
Total deposits

~ Junjor subordinated debentures

Total shareholders’ equity
Tangible book value per share'®

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 . 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in thousands except per share information)

$ 34,818 $ 25,554 $ 18,351 $ 12,230 $ 9,600
12,072 11,014 6,307 3,658 3,487
22,746 14,540 ’ 12,044 - 8,572 6,113
973 1,515 755 550 400
21,773 13,025 11,289 8,022 5,713
4,679 7,656 6,096 3,426 994
18,148 17,439 14,825 10,157 6,580
8,304 3,242 2,560 1,291 127
3,441 1,160 1,044 (534) —
$ 4,863 $ 2,082 $ 1,516 $ 1,825 $ 127
$ 048 $ 0.31 $ 0.24 $ 0.29 "% 0.02
$ 0.46 $ 0.30 - %023 $ 028 $ 0.02

10,597,433

10,082,049V 6,578,603 6,377,642 6,337,213 5,098,796
6,866,170 = 6,536,856 6,498,482 5,198,442

December 31, .
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
{Dollars in thousands except for per share information)

$ 96,109 $ 59,785 $ 31,195 $ 35,117 $ 47,588
511,827 351,07 221,999 147,765 98,345
845,539 724,489 - 574,462 266,434 162,617

- 533,563 495,334 422,642 211,462 124,287
27,837 17,527 17,527 . —_ —
74,976 70,170 38,969 36,678 34,689
$ 7.58 $ 7.10 $ 5.99 $ 5.76 $ 5.48

(1) The Company in December, 2003, through a public offering, issued 3,680,000 shares of common stock at a price of

$9.25 per share.

(2) Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from other banks and federal funds sold.

(3)  Net of allowance for loan losses and excluding mortgage loans held for sale.

©) Excludes accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) included in shareholders’ equity.

Selected Financial Ratios:
Return on average assets
Return on average equity
Ratio of average equity to average assets

December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001

2000

0.62% 0.33% 0.40% 0.94%
6.71% 5.33% 4.00% 5.11%
922% 6.17% 9.94% 18.42%
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Overview
-Background

The following discussion presents information about our consolidated results of operations, financial condition,
liquidity and capital resources and should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the notes
thereto included elsewhere in this Report.

Substantially all of our operations are conducted by the Bank, and the Bank accounts for substantially all of our
consolidated revenues and operating costs. The Bank was incorporated in 1998 and began operations in 1999. The Company
was incorporated in January 2000 for the purpose of becoming a holding company for and acquiring all of the outstanding
shares of the Bank, which occurred in June 2000. Prior to the acquisition of the Bank, the Company conducted no business
operations and, as a result; for accounting purposes the Company’s inception and commencement of its operations are
deemed to be the inception of the Bank in 1998 and the commencement of its operations in 1999, respectively.

Forward Looking Statements. This discussion contains statements regarding operating trends and our beliefs and
expectations regarding our future financial performance and future financial condition (which are referred to as “forward
looking statements™). The consequences of those operating trends on our business and the realization of our expected future
financial results, which are discussed in those statements, are subject to the uncertainties and risks described below in this
Section of this Report under the caption “Uncertainties and Risks That Could Affect Our Future Financial Performance.” Due

to those uncertainties and risks, the duration and effects of those operating trends on our business and our future financial
performance may differ, possibly significantly, from those that are currently expected as set forth in the forward looking
statements. As a result you should not place undue reliance on those forward looking statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards in the
United States (“GAAP”) and general practices in the banking industry. The accounting policies we follow in determining the
sufficiency of our allowance for loan losses and the fair value of derivative financial instruments involve judgments and
assumptions which can have a material impact on the carrying value of our loans and those financial instruments,
respectively, and, as a result, we consider these accounting policies to be critical accounting policies.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The accounting policies and practices we follow in determining the sufficiency of the
allowance we establish for possible loan losses require us to make judgments and assumptions about economic and market
trends that can affect the ability of our borrowers to meet their loan payment obligations. Accordingly, we use historical loss
factors, adjusted for current economic market conditions and other economic indicators, to determine the losses inherent in
our loan portfolio and the sufficiency of our allowance for loan losses. The actual loan losses could be greater than that
predicted by those loss factors and our current assessments of current conditions and economic trends if unanticipated
changes were to occur in those conditions. In such an event, it would be necessary for us to increase the allowance for loan
losses by means of a charge to income referred to in our financial statements as the “provision for loan losses.” Such an
increase would reduce the carrying value of our loans on our balance sheet, and the additional provision for loan losses taken
to increase that allowance would reduce our income, in the period when it is determined that an increase in the allowance for
loan losses is necessary. See “—Provision for Loan Losses” and “—Allowance for Loan Losses and Nonperforming Loans”
below. :

Derivative Financial Instruments. The derivative financial instruments that we enter into consist primarily of interest
rate lock commitments that are designed to hedge mortgage loans held for sale. At December 31, 2004, approximately $42
million of mortgage loans held for sale were hedged. We estimate the fair value of mortgage loans held for sale based on .
period end market interest rates obtained from varicus mortgage investors. The fluctuation in the fair values of the mortgage
loans held for sale are ‘

reflected in our consolidated statements of financial condition and, correspondingly, as adjustments to our noninterest
income. We also enter into non-designated derivative instruments relating to mortgage loan interest rate lock commitments
with borrowers and investors in order to reduce our exposure to adverse fluctuations in interest rates. At December 31, 2004
we had $4 million of mortgage loan commitments identified as non—demgnated derivative instruments. We did not have any
significant ineffective hedges at December 31, 2004,
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Overview of Fiscal 2004 Operating Results

The following table sets forth the interest income that we generated, the inferest expense that we incurred and our net
interest income, net income and net income per share in the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 : 2003 2002
Percent Percent :
Amount Change Amount Change Amount
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)
Interest income L $ 34818 363% $ 25554 393% § 18,351
Interest expense 12,072 9.6% 11,014 74.6% 6,307
Net interest income 22,746  56.4% 14,540 20.7% 12,044
Noninterest income 4,679 (38.9Y% 7,656 25.6% 6,096
Noninterest expense 18,148 4.1% 17,439 17.6% 14,825
Net income $ 4,863 133.6% $ 2,082 37.3% $ 1,516
Net income per share—diluted $ 046 53.3% $ 030 30.4% $023
Weighted average number of diluted shares 10,597,433 543% 6,866,170 5.0% 6,536,856

The increase in net income in 2004 as compared to 2003 was primarily attributable to a combination of factors, the
most important of which included: .

»  Improvement in Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin. An $8.2 million, or 56% increase in net interest
income in fiscal 2004, primarily as a result of a $156 million, or 50%, increase in the average volume of our
outstanding loans (inclusive of mortgages held for sale) during fiscal 2004 over fiscal 2003. The increase in loan
volume also was the principal contributor to an improvement in our interest margin to 3.04% in ﬁscal 2004 from

2.42% in fiscal 2003.

s Management of Noninterest Expense Growth and Improvements in Efficiency Ratio. Even though the volume of
interest earning assets and our net interest income increased by 25% and 56%, respectively, in 2004, we were able
to manage the growth of our noninterest expenses which, by comparison, increased by $709,000, or 4%, in fiscal
2004 as compared to fiscal 2003. Due to the combination of the increases in net interest income and the single
digit slowing in the growth of our operating expenses, our efficiency ratio (operating expenses as a percentage to
total revenues) improved to 66% in fiscal 2004 from 79% in fiscal 2003. This improvement was indicative of a
maturing of, and increased business growth at our financial centers that has helped us to generate more revenue per
employee in fiscal 2004, than we did in fiscal 2003.-

The increase in net interest income and the slowing of the growth of our noninterest expense more than
offset the effects of (i) a $3.0 million, or 39% decline in noninterest income to $4.7 million in the year ended
December 31, 2004, from $7.7 million for the same period in 2003, due primarily to a reduction in the volume of
mortgage refinancings resulting from increases in mortgage interest rates that began in the second half of 2003,
and (ii) the effect on earnings per share of our completion in December 2003 of a public offering of 3,680,000 of
our shares of common stock at a price of $9.25 per share, which caused the weighted average number of diluted
shares outstanding to increase to 10.6 million shares for the year ended December 31, 2004 from 6.8 mﬂhon
shares for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Fiscal 2003 Compared to Fiscal 2002. The increase in net income in 2003 as compared to 2002 was primarily
attributable to: .

+  Increase in Net Interest Income. An increase in net interest income of $2.5 million, or 21%, in fiscal 2003,
primarily as a result of increases in the volume of interest earning assets, that included a $96 million, or 45%,

increase in our average volume of outstanding loans (inclusive of mortgages held for sale), and an increase of $143
million in the average volume of securities available for sale, during fiscal 2003 over fiscal 2002.
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»  Increase in Noninterest Income. An increase of $1.6 million, or 26%, in noninterest income, to $7.7 million in
fiscal 2003 from $6.1 million in 2002, primarily as a result of a substantial increase in mortgage loan originations.

»  Improvement in Efficiency Ratio. A slowing in the rate of growth of noninterest expense, which, contributed to an
1mprovement in our efficiency ratio (noninterest expense exprcssed as a percentage of the sum of net mfcrest
income and noninterest income) to 79% in fiscal 2003 from 82% in fiscal 2002.

Set forth below are certain key financial performance ratios and other financial data for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Return on average assets ' 0.62% 0.33% 0.40%
Return on average shareholders’ equity o 671% 533% 4.00% .
Ratio of average equity to average assets 9.22% 6.17% 9.94%
Net interest margin 3.04% 2.42% 3.38%
Results of Operations
Net Interest Income

One of the principal determinants of a bank’s income is net interest income, which is the difference between (i) the
interest that a bank earns on loans, investment securities and other interest earning assets, on the one hand, and (ii) its interest
expense, which consists primarily. of the interest it must pay to attract and retain deposits and the interest that it pays on
borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities, on the other hand. A bank’s interest income and interest expense are, in tumn,
affected by a number of factors, some of which are outside of its control, including national and local economic conditions
and the monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board which affect interest rates, the demand for loans, and the ability of .
borrowers to meet their loan payment obligations. Net interest income, when expressed as a percentage of total average
interest earning assets, is a banking organization’s “net interest margin.”

Fiscal 2004 Compared to Fiscal 2003. In fiscal 2004, net interest income increased by $8.2 million, or 56%, to $22.7
million, from $14.5 million in fiscal 2003, primarily as a result of a $9.3 million, or 36%, increase in interest income that
more than offset a $1.1 million, or 10% increase in interest expense.

The increase in interest income was primarily attributable to an increase of $156 million, or 50%, in the average
volume of our outstanding loans (inclusive of mortgage loans held for sale) during fiscal 2004 over fiscal 2003. We funded
that increase in loan volume by increasing our deposit volume and by using funds that had been invested in lower yielding
short term investments and securities available. for sale to fund higher yielding loans. As a result, average outstanding loans
represented 63% of average earning assets in 2004 as compared to 52% in 2003 and the yield on interest eamning assets
increased to 4.65% from 4.26% in 2003. ' . :

The increase in interest expense in 2004 over 2003 was due primarily to an $81 million increase in the average volume
of other borrowings, including $10 million principal amount of junior subordinated debentures that we sold during the fourth
quarter of 2004, which was partially offset by a 31 basis point decline in rates-paid on certificates of deposit at the Bank
during 2004.

Oux net interest margin for fiscal 2004 improved to 3.04% from 2.42% in ﬁscal 2003. That improvement was primarily
attributable to the increase in interest income and, to a lesser extent, to a decline in the average rate of interest pald onour .
interest bearing liabilities to 2.23% from 2.40%, in fiscal 2003.

Fiscal 2003 Compared to Fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2003, net interest income increased by $2.5 million, or 21%, to $14.5
million, from $12.0 million in fiscal of 2002, primarily as a result of a $7.2 million, or 39%, increase in interest income that
more than offset a $4.7 million, or 75% increase in interest expense. The increase in interest income was primarily
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attributable to an increase in the volume of interest earning assets during 2003, including a $96 million increase in the
average volume of outstanding loans (including mortgages held for sale) and a $143 million increase in the average volume
of securities available for sale during fiscal 2003 over the corresponding fiscal 2002. Those volume related increases in
interest earning assets, which enabled us to offset to a significant extent the impact of declining interest rates on our interest
income, were funded primarily by the increase in deposits and in borrowings we obtained from the Federal Home Loan Bank
and a shift of funds out of lower yielding federal funds sold during fiscal 2003. i

The increase in interest expense in fiscal 2003 over fiscal 2002 was due primarily to a $147 million increase inthe-
average volume of interest-bearing deposits, a $62 million increase in the average volume of Federal Home Loan Bank
borrowings, and interest paid on the $17 million of junior subordinated debentures issued during the second half of 2002,
which more than offset the effect on interest expense of declining market rates of interest in 2003.

Our net interest margin for fiscal 2003 declined to 2.42% from 3.38% in fiscal 2002. This decline was due to further
decreases in market rates of interest, primarily as a result of the reductions in the prime lending rates during 2002 and 2003,
and an acceleration in fiscal 2003 of premium amortization on mortgage-backed securities in our investment portfolio, which
resulted in a $1.3 million rate related decrease in interest earned on securities available for sale during the year.

Information Regarding Average Assets and Average Liabilities

The following tables set forth information regarding our average balance sheet, yields on interest earning assets,
-interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities, the interest rate spread and the interest rate margin for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002. Average balances are calculated based on average daily balances.

Interest earning assets:

Short-term investments®

Securities available for sale and stock®
Loans

Total earning assets
Noninterest earning assets
Total Assets
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing checking accounts
Money market and savings accounts
Certificates of deposit

Other borrowings
Junior subordinated debentures

Total interest-bearing liabilities
Noninterest-bearing liabilities
. Total Liabilities
Shareholders’ equity _
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Net interest income

Interest rate spread

Net interest margin

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003
Interest Average Interest Average
Average Earned/ Yield/ Average Earned/ Yield/
Balance Paid Rate Balance Paid Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 40,516 § 522 129% §$ 47,004 § 533 1.13%
239,689 8,295 3.46% 241,595 7,127 2.95%
468,213 26,001 5.55% 311,964 17,894 5.74%
748,418 34818 4.65% 600,563 25,554 4.26%
317,758 33,064 '
$ 786,176 $ 633,627
$ 20,283 74 0.36%  $13,248 69 0.52%
122,713 1,554 1.27% 110,609 1,368 1.24%
200,244 5,152 2.57% 220,629 6,348 2.88%
176,981 4,307 243% 97,719 2,381 2.44%
20,119 985 4.90% 17,527 848 4.99%
540,340 12,072 2.23% 459,732 11,014 2.40%
173,380 134,812
713,720 594,544
72,456 39,083
$ 786,176 $ 633,627
$ .
22,746 $ 14,540 .
2.42% " 1.86%
3.04% 2.42%

(1) Short-term investments consist of federal funds sold and interest bearing deposits with financial institutions.
(2) Stock consist of Federal Home Bank Stock and Federal Reserve Bank Stock.
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Interest earning assets:

Short-term investments®

Securities available for sale and stock®
Loans

Total earning assets
Noninterest earning assets

. Total Assets

Interest-bearing liabilities:-
Interest-bearing checking accounts

Money market and savings accounts

Certificates of deposit ‘
Other borrowings
Junior subordinated debentures

~ Total interest-bearing liabilities
'Noninterest-bearing liabilities
Total Liabilities
Shareholders’ equity _

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Net interest income -
Interest rate spread

Net interest margin

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Interest  Average
Average Earned/ Yield/
Balance  Paid Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

$ 42,332 $ 746 1.76%
98,534 3,980 4.05%
215,701 13,616 6.31%

356,567 18,351 5.15%
24712 .

¥ 381,279

$ 8517 87 1.02%
75,038 1,337 1.718%
113,487 3,708 3.27%

34,087 828 2.43%

6,189 347 5.61%

237318 6,307 2.66%
106,069
343,387
37,892
$ 381,279

$ 12,044
2.49%
3.38%

(1) Short-term investments consist of federal funds sold and interest bearing deposits with financial institutions.

(2) Stock consist of Federal Home Bank Stock and Federal Reserve Bank Stock.

The following table sets forth changes in interest income, including loan fees, and interest paid in each of the years
ended December 31, 2004, to 2003 and 2003 to 2002 and the extent to which those changes were attributable to changes in
volumes of or changes in rates earned on interest earning assets and changes in the volumes of and rates of interest paid on

our interest-bearing liabilities.

Changes in interest earned and interest paid due to the mix of earning assets and interest bearing liabilities have Been
allocated to the change due to volume and the change due to rate in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar

amounts of the changes in each.
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2004 Compared to 2003 ~ 2003 Compared to 2002

Increase (decrease) Increase (decrease)
due to Changes in due to Changes in
Total " Total
Increase ’ Increase
Volume Rates (Decrease) Volume Rates (Decrease)
(Dollars in thousands)

Interest income : _
Short-term investments” $ (79 $68 8 (11 $ 75 $ (288 § (213)
Securities available for sale and stock 57 1,225 1,168 4468  (1,330) 3,138
Loans ‘ 8,694 (587) 8,107 5,616  (1,338) 4,278

Total earning assets . 8,558 706 9,264 10,159  (2,956) 7,203

Interest expense '

Interest-bearing checking accounts 30 25 . 5 36 (54) (18)
Money market and savings accounts - 153 33 186 516 (485) 31
Certificates of deposit (557) (637) (1,194) 3,130 (490) 2,640
Borrowings - 1,928 (3) - 1,925 1,550 3 - 1,553
Junior subordinated debentures 126 10 136 543 42) 501
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,680  (622) 1,058 5775  (1,068) 4,707

Net interest income $6878 $ 1,328 § 82060 § 4,384 § (1,888) $ 2,496

(1) Short-term investments consist of federal funds sold and interest bearing deposits with financial institutions.
Provision for Loan Losses

Like virtually all banks and other financial institutions, we follow the practice of maintaining a reserve or allowance
(the “Allowance”) for possible loan losses that occur from time to time as an incidental part of the banking business. When it
is determined that the payment in full of a loan has become unlikely, the carrying value of the loan is reduced to what
management believes is its realizable value. This reduction, which is referred to as a loan “charge-off,” or “‘write-down” is
charged against that Allowance. The amount of the Allowance for Loan Losses is increased periodically (i) to replenish the
Allowance after it has been reduced due to loan charge-offs, (ii) to reflect changes in the volume of outstanding loans, and
(iii) to take account of changes in the risk of potential losses due to a deterioration in the condition of borrowers or in the
value of property securing non—performing loans or changes in economic conditions. See “—Financial Condition—
Allowance for Loan Losses and Nonperforming Loans” below in this Section of this Report. Increases in the Allowance for
Loan Losses are made through a charge, recorded as an expense in the statement of income referred to as the “provision for
loan losses.” Recoveries of loans previously charged-off are added back to the Allowance and, therefore, have the effect of
increasing the Allowance for Loan Losses and reducing the amount of the provision that might otherwise be made to
replenish or increase the Allowance.

Although we employ economic models that are based on bank regulatory guidelines, industry standards and historical
loss experience to evaluate and determine the sufficiency of the Allowance for Loan Losses and, thereby, the amount of the
provisions required to be made for potential loan losses, those determinations involve judgments about trends in current
economic conditions and other events that can affect the ability of borrowers to meet their loan obligations. The duration and
effects of economic trends subject to a number of uncertainties and changes that are outside of our ability to control. See the
discussion below in this Section under the caption “Risks and Uncertainties That Could Affect our Future Financial
Performance — we could incur losses on the loans we make.” In the event of unexpected subsequent events or changes in
circumstances, it could become necessary in the future to incur additional charges to increase the Allowance, which would
have the effect of reducing our income or could cause us to incur losses.




_ In addition, the Federal Reserve Board and the California Department of Financial Institutions, as an integral part of
their examination processes, periodically review the Bank’s Allowance for Loan Losses. These agencies may require the
Bank to make additional provisions, over and above that which we have already made, the effect of which would be to reduce
our income.

The following table sets forth the changes in the Allowance for Loan Losses for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003.

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003

‘ . N (Dollars in thousands)
Total gross loans outstanding at end of period® - $ 515,859 § 355,014
Average total loans outstanding for the period® $ 441,605 $ 264,390
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of period $ 3943 § 2435
Loans charged off : (890) - )
Recoveries ' _ : ) —
Provision for loan losses charges to operating expense 973 1,515
Allowance for loan losses at end of period ' $ 4032 § 3943
Alilowance for loan losses as a percentage of average total loans 091%  1.49%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total outstanding loans at end of penod 0.78% 1.11%
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average total loans 0.20% —
Net charge-offs as a percentage of total loans outstanding at end of penod 0.17% —
Net loans charged-off to allowance for loan losses- : 0.22% 0.18%
Net loans charged-off to provision for loan losses : 91.47% 0.46%

(1) Includes net deferred loan costs and excludes loans held for sale.

During fiscal 2004 we were able to reduce the provisions we made for loan losses to $973,000 down from $1.5 million
in fiscal 2003, primarily as a result of a reduction in the volume of non-accrual or impaired loans in 2004. Nonaccrual and
impaired loans totaled $11,000 or 0.3% of the Allowance for Loan Losses at December 31, 2004, as compared to $2.5
million or 63.4% of the Allowance for Loan Losses at December 31, 2003. The reduction in nonaccrual loans during the year
ended December 31, 2004 was due to (i) an $822,000 charge-off, in the first quarter of 2004, of a nonaccrual loan for which
reserves had been specifically allocated in the Allowance for Loan Losses at December 31, 2003, and (ii) the repayment of or
resumption of payments on substantially all of the other loans that were on nonaccrual status at December 31, 2003. See “—
Allowance for Loan Losses and Nonperforming Loans” below.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income consists primarily of mortgage banking income (which includes loan origination and processing
fees and service released premiums) and net gains on sales of loans held for sale, which are generated by our mortgage loan.
division. That division, which we established during fiscal 2001, originates conforming and non-conforming, agency quality,
residential first and second lien and home equity mortgage loans.

The volume of residential mortgage refinancings is subject to significant fluctuations in response to changes in .
prevailing mortgage interest rates. Such interest rate changes can impact the volume of mortgage loan originations which, in
arn, affects the loan processing fees and yield spread premiums we are able to realize on the mortgage loans we originate.
For example, the decline in mortgage rates which occurred in 2002 and the first six months of 2003 increased demand for
mortgage loan refinancings and resulted in increases in our noninterest income during those periods. Conversely, an
increasing interest rate environment, which has occurred during fiscal 2004, generally causes a decline in mortgage loan
refinancings and, therefore, corresponding declines in the volume of mortgage loan originations and in the income that the
mortgage banking division is able to generate. We seek to manage the impact of changes in interest rates by seeking to
originate mortgages for home purchases which are not as interest rate sensitive as mortgage loan refinancings. Mortgage
loans for home purchases accounted for approximately 36% of our mortgage loan fundings in the year ended December 31,
2004 as compared to approximately 13% in the year ended December 31, 2003.
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The following table identifies the components of and the percentage changes in noninterest income in the ﬁscal years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively: :

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001

Percent Percent : Percent
Amount  Change Amount Change Amount Change

(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage banking (including net gains on sales of loans

held for sale) . $ 2214 (59.2)% $ 5421 143% § 4,741 74.6% § 2,716
Service charges and fees on deposits - 669 6.5% 628 217.2% 198 (12.8)% 227
Net gains on sales of securities available for sale 839 13.5% 739 147.2% 299 NM —
Net gains on sales of loans — N/M — NM . 35 NM —
Net gains on sale of other real estate owned 117 NM — NM & — N/M —
ACH fee income 10 (92.6)% 135 (28.9)% . 190 NM —
Other - 830 13.2% 733 15.8% 633 31.1% 483
Total noninterest income $ 4,679 (389)% $ 7,656 25.6% § 6,006 77.9% § 3,426

The decrease in noninterest income in 2004 was primarily attributable to $3.2 million, or 59% decrease in mortgage
loan refinancings prompted by rising interest rates. The effect of that decrease on noninterest in 2004 was partially offset by a
$100,000 increase in net gains on securities available for sale and net gains on sales of other real estate owned of $117,000.

The $1.6 million, or 25.6%, increase in noninterest income in 2003 over 2002 was primarily attributable to (i)
substantial increases in mortgage loan refinancings prompted by declining market rates of interest, (ii) net gains of $739,000
in 2003 from sales of $144 million principal amount of securities available for sale made to reposition our securities portfolio
in response to changes in market interest rates, and (iii) an increase in service charges and fees, primarily on deposit -
transactions, which was attributable to the growth in the volume of our deposits in 2003. :

Noninterest Expense

The following table sets fortﬁ the principal components of ,ﬁonjntéfést expense and the amounts thereof, incurred in the
years ended December31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. '

Year Ended December 31,

2004 Percent 2003 Percent - 2002
Amount Change Amount Change  Amount

(Dollars in thousands)

Salaries and employee benefits $ 9,808 (0.9)% § 9,899 27.4% $ 7,771

Occupancy 2,096 17.8% 1,780 8.8% 1,636
Equipment and depreciation 1,336 0.1% 1,326 3.9% 1,276
Data processing 863 37.0% 630 57.5% 400
Professional fees 834 15.0% 725 ~—% 725
Other loan related 393 1.8% 386  6.6% 362
Customer expense 509 17.0% 435 (2.5) 446
Stationery and supplies 314 (12.0)% 357 (6.5)% . 382
Other operating expense” : 1,995 4.9% 1,901 4.1% 1,827
Total noninterest expense $ 18,148 41% $ 17,439 17.6% § 14,825

(1) Other operating expense primarily consists of tellief)hone, advertising, promotional, business development, regulatory
expenses, investor relations, insurance premiums, and correspondent bank fees.

As indicated above, total noninterest expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased by $709,000, or 4.1%,
as compared to the corresponding period in 2003. That increase was primarily attributable to an increase in expenses
associated with the opening, in September 2004, of our seventh financial center, which is located in Long Beach, California,
and increased commercial lending activities in our financial centers, partially offset by staff reductions and other cost cutting
measures implemented by the mortgage loan division in response to lower mortgage refinancing production volumes.
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The 17.6% increase in noninterest expense in 2003, over 2002 was primarily attributable to increases in salaries and
employee expenses that were due primarily to the expansion of the financial centers that we established in 2002 and an
expansion of our mortgage lending division to take advantage of increased mortgage refinancing demand in 2003.

One measure of our ability to control noninterest expense is our efficiency ratio, which is the ratio of noninterest
expenses to net revenue (net interest income plus noninterest income). The efficiency ratio indicates the percentage of net
revenue that must be used to cover noninterest expenses. As a general rule, all other things being equal, a lower efficiency
ratio will result in increased profitability. Our efficiency ratio improved to 66% in 2004 from 79% in 2003. In 2003, our
efficiency ratio was 79%, as compared to 82% for 2002. These decreases indicate that we have been able, in each of the past
two years, to increase net revenue without a commensurate increase in our noninterest expense. Additionally, we believe that
the achievement of increased efficiencies in our operations was a significant contributor to the increase in our profitability in
2004, :

Financial Condition

Assets

Our total consolidated assets increased by $121 million, or 17%, to $845 million at December 31, 2004 from $724
million at December 31, 2003, primarily as a result of an increase in the volume of our outstanding loans that was due to the -
expansion and maturing of our banking franchise during the past two years, marketing programs implemented in 2004, and
improvements in economic conditions that led to increases in loan demand. This increase in outstanding loans was funded
primarily by increases in borrowings and, to a lesser extent, increases in deposits and a shift of funds out of other lower
yleldmg interest earning assets. :

The following table sets forth the composition of our interest earning assets at:

December 31,  December 31,

2004 2003
. (In thousands)

. Federal funds sold $ 69,600 $ 36,000
Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions 738 605
Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock, atcost . 10,662 7,546
Securities available for sale, at fair value ‘ 169,412 . 273,995
Loans and loans held for sale (net of allowances of $4,032 and $3, 943 ‘ o

respectively) 554,175 370,239

Investment Policy and Securities Available for Sale

Investment Policy. Our investment policy is designed to provide for our liquidity needs and to generate a favorable
return on investments without undue interest rate risk, credit risk or asset concentrations. That investment policy:

+  authorizes us to invest in obligations issued or fully guaranteed by the United States Government, certain federal
agency obligations, time deposits issued by federally insured depository institutions, municipal securities and in
federal funds sold; .

+ provides that the aggregate weighted life of our portfolio of US Treasury obligations and Federal Agency
securities, including mortgage backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations issued by the US Treasury
and federal agencies, but excluding variable rate securities, is not to exceed fifteen (15) years while the weighted
average life of our portfolio of municipal securities is not to exceed twelve (12) years;

»  provides that funds placed in time deposits may not be held at federally insured financial institutions in amounts
exceeding $lQ0,000 per institution and those deposits may not have maturities exceeding 60 months; and’

«  prohibits engaging in securities trading activities.
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Securities Available for Sale. Securities that we intend to hold for an indefinite period of time, but which may be sold
in response to changes in liquidity needs, changes in interest rates, changes in prepayment risks or other similar factors are
classified as “securities available for sale”. Such securities are recorded on our balance sheet at their respective fair values
and increases or decreases in those values are recorded as unrealized gains or losses, respectively, and are reported as “Other
Comprehenswe Income (Loss)” rather than included in or deducted from our earnings.

The following is a summary of the major components of securities available for sale and a comparison of the amortized
cost, estimated fair values and the gross unrealized gains and losses attributable to those securities, as of December 31, 2004

and December 31, 2003;

. Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized  Estimated
Cost : Gain Loss Fair Value
. (Dollars in thousands) '
December 31, 2004 :
Securities Available For Sale: S
Mortgage Backed Securities $ 160,405 $ 14 $ 2383 % 158,036
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations : 10,487 - -3 122 10,368
Total Government and Agencies Securities 170,892 17 2,505 168,404
Mutual Fund 1,008 0 0 1,008
Total Securities Avallable For Sale - ‘ $ 171,900 $ 17 $ 2,505 § 169,412
December 31,2003
Securities Available For Sale: ‘ _ .
Mortgage Backed Securities $ 235,795 $ 239 §$ 2236 $ 233,798
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 20,628 54 131 20,551
. Total Government and Agencies Securities 256,423 293 2,367 254,349
Fannie Mae Trust Preferred Stock 20,000 . — 354 19,646
Total Securities Available For Sale : £ 276,423 $ 293 § 2721 § 273,995

At December 31, 2004, U.S. Government and federal agency securities, consisting principally of mortgage backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations with an aggregate fair market value of $149 million were pledged to secure
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings, repurchase agreements, local agency deposits and Treasury, tax and loan accounts.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value, at December 31, 2004, of securities available for sale are shown in the
table below by contractual maturities and historical prepayments based on the prior twelve months of principal payments.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities and historical prepayments, particularly with respect to
collateralized mortgage oblxgatlons because changes in interest rates will affect the timing and the extent of prepayments by

" borrowers.
December 31, 2004

Maturing in
Over one Over five
One year  year through  years through Overten
or less five years ten years years Total
R (Dollars in thousands) )

Securities available for sale, amortized cost $ 43,064 § 81,424 $ 38,575 $ 8,837 $ 171,900
Securities available for sale, estimated fa1r value 42.549 80,304 37,956 8,603 169,412
Weighted average yield 3.22% 3.40% 3.79% 4.14% - 3.48%
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Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale in the secondary market, which consist primarily of mortgage loans, totaled $42 million at
December 31, 2004, an increase of $23 million from $19 million at December 31, 2003. Loans held for sale are carried at the
lower of cost or estimated fair value in the aggregate except for those designated as fair value hedges, which are carried at
fair value. All $42 million of loans held for sale were designated as fair value hedges at December 31, 2004, and there were
no ineffective hedges. We use hedge accounting to offset the decrease or increase in fair value of the loans held for sale with
the decrease or increase in value of interest rate lock commitments. Volatility of reported earnings is therefore minimized.
Net unrealized losses or gains on loans held for sale, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to
noninterest income. As of December 31, 2004, we had a valuation allowance of approximately $149,000 representmg net
unrealized gains related to these loans held for sale and unfunded commitments to make such loans. :

Loan;

The following table sets forth the composition, by loan category (other than mortgage loans held for sale), of our loan
portfolio at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Amount Percent Amount Percent
' . (Dollars in thousands)

Commercial loans $ 132964 258% §$ 103,363 29.1%
Real estate loans 174,520 33.7% 140,441 39.5%
Residential mortgage loans 173,194 33.6% 84,346 23.8%
Construction loans - 29,731 5.8% 17,559 4.9%
Consumer loans _ 5,471 1.1% 9,551  27%
Gross loans 515,880° 100.0% 355,260 . -100.0%
Deferred fee (income) costs, net ' @n (246)
Allowance for loan losses (4,032) (3,943) -
Loans, net © 851,827 - $ 351,071

Commercial loans are loans to businesses to finance capital purchases or improvements, or to provide working cépital
for their operations. Real estate and residential mortgage loans are loans secured by trust deeds on real property, including
commercial property and single family and multi-family residences. Construction loans are interim loans to ﬁnance speclﬁc
construction pro;ects Consumer loans include instaliment loans to consumers. :

The following tables set forth the maturity distribution of the loans (other than consumer loans, residential mortgage
loans and mortgage loans held for sale) in our loan portfoho at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

December 31, 2004
One Over One

Year or Year Through  Over Five
Less Five Years Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Real estate.and construction loans" '

Floating rate ' $ 42,446 $ 32,444 §$ 109,359 §$ 184,249
Fixed rate : 185 7,507 12,310 20,002

Commercial loans Co
Floating rate - 68,561 31,492 9,477 109,530
Fixed rate 6,664 15,729 1,041 . 23,434
Total $ 117856 $ 87,172 $ 132,187 $ 337,215

(1) Does not include mortgage loans on single and multi-family résidences and consumer loans, which totaled $173.2
million and $5.5 million, respectively, at December 31, 2004,
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December 31,2003

One Over One C
.Yearor  Year Through  OverFive B
Less Five Years Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Real estate and construction loans” .
Floating rate $ 29,591 $ 22333 § 87,847 §$ 139,771
Fixed rate — 5,835 12,394 18,2_29
Commercial loans :
Floating rate 52,778 23,357 8,172 84,307
Fixed rate 7,064 10,580 . 1,412 19,056
Total $ 89,433 $ 62,105 § 109,825 $ 261,363

(1) Does not include mortgage loans on single and multi-family residences and consumer loans, which totaled $84.3-
million and $9.6 million, respectively, at December 31, 2003,

Allowance for Loan Losses and Nonperforming Loans

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses (the “Allowance™) at December 31, 2004 was $4.0 million,
which represented about 0.78% of the loans outstanding at December 31, 2004, as compared to $3.9 million, or 1.11%, of the
loans outstanding at December 31, 2003, in each case exclusive of loans held for sale. This reduction in the percentage of the
Allowance to loans outstanding at December 31, 2004 was the result of a loan charge off of $822,000 in the first quarter of
2004, for which reserves had been included in the Allowance at December 31, 2003 and the performance of the remainder of
the loans in our loan portfolio as a result of which the amount of nonaccrual and impaired loans was, during the last three
quarters of 2004, relatively insignificant. ‘

In determining the adequacy of the Allowance, we follow bank regulatory guidelines and we carefully monitor
changing economic conditions, the loan portfolio by category, the financial condition of borrowers and the historical
performance of the loan portfolio. We believe that at December 31, 2004 the Allowance was adequate to provide for losses
inherent in the loan portfolio. However, as the volume of loans increases, additional provisions for loan losses will be
required to maintain the Allowance at adequate levels. Additionally, the Allowance was established on the basis of estimates
and judgments we make regarding such matters as economic conditions and trends and the financial condition of borrowers,
historical industry loan loss data and regulatory guidelines. Actual loan losses in the future could vary from the losses
predicted on the basis of those estimates, judgments and guidelines. For example, if economic conditions were to deteriorate,
or interest rates were to increase, which would have the effect of increasing the risk that borrowers would encounter
difficuities meeting their loan payment obligations, it could become necessary to increase the Allowance by making
additional provisions for loan losses. See “—Resuits of Operations—Provision for Loan Losses” above.

The following table provides a summary of the allocation of the Allowance to specific loan categories at the dates
indicated below. The allocations presented should not be interpreted as an indication that loans charged to the Allowance will
occur in these amounts: or proportions, or that the portion of the Allowance allocated to each loan category represents the total
amount available for future losses that may occur within these categories as the total Allowance is applicable to the entire

loan portfolio.

December 31,
2004 2003
% of % of
Allowance Allowance to Allowance Allowance to
for Loan Category of for Loan Category of
Losses Loans Losses Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
Real estate loans $ 1,853 0.53% $ 1,049 0.47%
Commercial loans 1,839 "1.38% 2,654 2.57%
Construction loans 246 0.83% 160 0.91%
Consumer loans 94 1.72% 80 0.84%
Total $ 4,032 0.78% 3 3,943 1.11%
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Specific allocations are identified by loan category and allocated according to charge-off data pertaining to the banking
industry. Substantially all of the loans in the loan portfolio are graded and incorporated in the process of assessing the
adequacy of the Allowance. The Allowance is maintained at a level consxdered sufficient to absorb estimated losses in the
loan portfolio.

Non-Performing Loans. We also measure and establish reserves for loan impairments on a loan-by-loan basis using
either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at a loan’s effective interest rate, or the fair value of the
collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent. Smaller, homogeneous loans such as consumer installment loans and lines of
credit are excluded from our impairment calculations. Also, loans that experience insignificant payment delays or shortfails
are generally not considered to be impaired. We cease accruing interest on, and classify as a nonaccrual loan, any loan as to
which principal or interest has been in default for a period of 90 days or more, or if payment in full of interest or principal is
not expected. . '

At December 31, 2004, we had a $11,000 loan that was delinquent 90 days or more and which was classified as a
nonaccrual and impaired loan. At December 31, 2003 there were $2.5 million of loans that were delinquent 90 days or more
and which were classified as nonaccrual and impaired loans, of which $822,000 was charged off during 2004. We had no
loans delinquent 90 days or more with principal still accruing interest or any restructured loans either at December 31, 2004
or 2003. At December 31, 2004, our average investment in impaired loans, on a year-to-date basis, was $616,000. The
interest that we would have eamned in 2004 had the impaired loans remained current in accordance with their original terms
was $49,000. By comparison, at December 31, 2003, our average investment in impaired loans on a year-to-date basis was
$593,000 and the interest that we would have earned in 2003 had the impaired loans remained current in accordance with
their original terms was $82,000.

Average Balances of and Average Interest Rates Paid on Deposits. Set forth below are the average amounts (in
thousands) of, and the average rates paid on, deposits in each of 2004, 2003 and 2002:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 ‘ ] 2002
Average Average Average . Average Average Average
_ Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Noninterest bearing demand deposits $ 166,544 — § 129,823 — § 101,975 —_
Interest-bearing checking accounts 20,283 - 0.36% 13,248 " 0.52% 8,517 - 1.02%
Money market and savings deposits ' 122,713 1.27% - 110,609 1.24% 75,038 - 1.78%
Time deposits? ..200,244 2.57% 220,629 2.88% 113,487 3.27%
Total deposits ) 8 509,784 1.33% § 474,309 1.64% § 299,017 1.72%

(1) Comprised of time certificates of deposit in denominations greater than or equal to $100,000 and less than $100,000.

Deposit Totals. Deposits totaled $534 million at December 31, 2004 as compared to $495 million at December 31,
2003. At December 31, 2004, noninterest-bearing deposits comprised $175 million, or 33% of total deposits, as compared to
$157 million, or 32%, of total deposits at December 31, 2003. Certificates of deposit in denominations of $100,000 or more
comprised, on which we pay higher rates of interest than on other deposits, were $99 mﬂhon, or 19%, of total deposxts at
December 31, 2004 and $88 million, or 18%, of total deposits at December 31, 2003.

Set forth below is a maturity schedule of domestic time certificates of deposit outstanding at December 31, 2004:

December 31,2004 December 31, 2003

Certificates of Certificates of Certificates of Certificates of
Deposit Under Deposit $100,000 Deposit Under Deposit $100,000
Maturities $100,000 or more $100,000 or more
’ ' (In thousands) o
Three months or less - $ 18,466 § 36,745 $ 26,351 § 31,026
Over three and through twelve months 52,057 41,202 58,889 42,481
Over twelve months 34,325 21,416 29,453 - 14,703

Total $ 104,848 § 99,363 § 114,693 § 88,210
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Liquidity

We actively manage our liquidity to insure sufficient funds are available to meet the ongoing needs of our customers.
We project the future sources and uses of funds and maintain sufficient liquid funds for unanticipated events. Our primary"
sources of cash include payments on loans, the sale or maturity of investments and growth in deposits. The primary uses of
cash include funding new loans (including mortgage loans held for sale) and making advances on existing lines of credit,
purchasing investments, including securities available for sale, funding deposit withdrawals and paying operating expenses.
We also maintain funds in ovemight federal funds and other short-term investments to provide for short-term liquidity needs.
In addition, we have obtained credit lines from the Federal Home Loan Bank and other financial mstltutlons to meet any
additional liquidity reqmrements that might arise. »

Cash flow Provided by Financing Activities. Cash flow of $115 million was provided by financing activities during the
year ended December 31, 2004, the source of which consisted primarily of net increases of $38 million in deposits, $66
-million in net borrowings from the Federal Home Bank, and $10 million from the sale of junior subordmated debentures in

October 2004,

Cash flow Used in Opérating Activities. Cash flow of $16 million was used by our operating activities, primarily from
net income and $288 million from origination of loans held for sale, offset by the proceeds for sales of loans held for sale and
net income of $5 million in the year ended December 31, 2004,

Cash flow Used in Investing. Cash flow used in investing activities was $62 million, primarily to fund an increase of
$163 million in loans and $68 million of purchases of investment securities available for sale, partially offset by $168 million
of proceeds from sales of and principal payments rece_iVed on investment securities available for sale in the year ended

December 31, 2004.

Qur liquid assets, which included cash and due from banks, federal funds sold, interest earning deposits with financial
institutions and unpledged securities available for sale (excluding Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock)
totaled $117 million or 14% of total assets at December 31, 2004.

The relationship between gross loans and total deposits provides a useful measure of our liquidity. Since repayment of
loans tends to be less predictable than the maturity of investments and other liquid resources, the higher the loan-to-deposit
ratio the less liquid are our assets. On the other hand, since we realize greater yields and higher interest income on loans than
we do on investments, a lower loan-to-deposit ratio can adversely affect interest income and earnings. As a result, our goal is
to achieve a loan-to-deposit ratio that appropriately balances the requirements of liquidity and the need to generate a fair
return on assets. At December 31, 2004, the ratio of loans-to-deposits (excluding loans held for sale) was 96%, compared to
71% at December 31, 2003.




Contractual Obligations

Borrowings. As of December 31, 2004, we had $106 million of outstandmg long-term borrowings and $82 million of
outstanding short-term borrowings that we had obtained from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The table below sets forth the’
amounts, in thousands of dollars, the interest rates we pay on, and the maturity dates of these Federal Home Loan Bank
borrowings. These borrowings, along with the securities sold under agreements to repurchase, have a weighted-average
annualized interest rate of 2.45%. :

Principal Interest Principal  Interest

Amounts  Rate Maturity Dates Amounts Rate Maturity Dates
{(Dollars in thousands) : - : {Dollars in thousands)
$6,000 1.27% January 24, 2005! ’ ‘ ~ - 85,000 2.50% February 21, 2006
9,000 1.93% February 18, 2005 6,000 2.34% February 28, 2006
5,000 -2.33% June 15,2005 o 5,000 3.13% June 19, 2006
5,000  2.31% June 17,2005 5,000 2.76% August 9, 2006
7,000 2.29% June 24, 2005 2,000 2.94% August 28, 2006
5,000 2.24% August 29, 2005 ' 3,000 2.56% September 18, 2006
10,000 2.70% September 19, 2005 ‘ 3,000  2.49% September 25, 2006
3,000 1.93% September 19, 2005 5,000 2.39% October 2, 2006
5,000 1.76% September 30, 2005 2,000 2.40% October 2, 2006
5,000 . 2.34% October 13, 2005 7,000 3.18% November 22, 2006
7,000 2.34% November 14, 2005 - 5,000  2.69% December 12, 2006
5,000  2.35% November 14, 2005 5,000  2.67% December 1§, 2006
5,000 2.33% November 17, 2005 4,000 2.50% January 22, 2007
5,000 2.33% November 21, 2005 5,000 2.57% February 12, 2007
7,000 241% January9, 2006 3,000 3.14% September 18, 2007
6,000 1.94% January 23, 2006 2,000 3.06% September 24, 2007
10,000 2.74% January 30, 2006 -~ 1,000 2.91% October 1, 2007
5,000 2.66% February2, 2006 5,000 3.45% February 11, 2009

5,000 2.00% February 13, 2006

(1)  Paid at maturity in January and February, 2005.

At December 31, 2004, mortgage backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations with an aggregate fair
market value of $127 million and $112 million of residential mortgage and other real estate secured loans were pledged to
secure these Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings, repurchase agreements, local agency depos:ts and Treasury, tax and loan
accounts.

" The highest amount of borrowmgs outstanding at any month end during the year ended December 31, 2004 consisted .
of $191 million of borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank and $17 million of overnight borrowings in the form of
securities sold under repurchase agreements. During 2003 the highest amount of borrowings outstanding at any month end
consisted of $124 million of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank and $15 million of overnight borrowings in the -
form of securities sold under repurchase agreements.

Junior Subordinated Debentures. Pursuant to rulings of the Federal Reserve Board, bank holding companies have been
permitted to issue long term subordinated debt instruments that will, subject to certain conditions, qualify as and, therefore,
augment capital for regulatory purposes. Pursuant to those rulings, in 2002, we formed subsidiary grantor trusts to sell and
issue to institutional investors a total of $17 million principal amount of floating junior trust preferred securities (“trust
preferred securities”). We received the net proceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities in exchange for our
issuance to the grantor trusts, of a total $17 million principal amount of our junior subordinated floating rate debentures (the
“Debentures”), the payment terms of which mirror those of the trust preferred securities. In October 2004, we established
another grantor trust that sold an additional $10 million of trust preferred securities to an institutional investor and, in .
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connection therewith, we sold and issued an additional $10 million principal amount junior subordinated floating rate
debentures in exchange for the proceeds raised from the sale of those trust preferred securities. The payments that we make of
interest and principal on the Debentures are used by the grantor trusts to make the payments that come due to the holders of
the trust preferred securities pursuant to the terms of those securities. As required by FIN 46 (which is described in *“Note 1—
Significant Accounting Policies—Recent Accounting Pronouncements,” included as part of our consolidated financial
statements that are set forth in Item 8 of this Report), we deconsolidated the trusts as of March 31, 2004. Such
deconsolidation had no material impact on our financial condition or results of operation.

Set forth below is certain information regarding the terms of the Debentures that were outstanding as of December 31,

2004:
Original ‘ : :
Issue Dates Principal Amount . Interest Rate ‘ Maturity Date
. (In thousands) '
June 2002 $ 5,155 LIBOR plus 3.75%" June 2032
August 2002 $ 5,155 LIBOR plus 3.625% @ .. August 2032
September 2002 $ 7217 LIBOR plus 3.40%® _ September 2032
October 2004 ' : $10,310 LIBOR plus 2.00%" October 2034
Total $27,837 ' S

(1) Interest rate resets quarterly.
(2) Interest rate resets semi-annually.

These Debentures have quarterly or semi-annual interest payments, which may be deferred until the first redeemable
date, and are redeemable at our option beginning 5 years after then' respective original issue dates.

Under the Federal Reserve Board rulings, the borrowings evidenced by the Debentures, which are subordinated to all
of our other borrowings that are outstanding or which we may obtain in the future, are eligible (subject to certain dollar
limitations) to quahfy and, at December 31, 2004, $25.5 million of those Debentures qualified as Tier I capital, for regulatory
purposes. The remaining $2.3 million qualified as Tier II capital for regulatory purposes. See discussion below under the
subcaption “-—Regulatory Capital Requirements.” .

Other Contractual Obligations.
Set forth below is information regarding our material contractual obligations as of Dbecember 31, 2004:

Operating Lease Obligations. We lease certain facilities and equipment under various non-cancelable operating leases.
Future minimum non-cancelable lease commitments were as follows at December 31, 2004: .

. At December 31, 2004

’ (In thousands)
2005 ' o $ 2,179
. 2006 v 1,790
- 2007 : 1,314
2008 . 1,253
2009 478
Thereafter 280

Total $ 7,294




Maturing Time Certificates of Deposits. Set forth below is a maturity schedule, as of December 31, 2004, of time
certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more:

At December 31,
" 2004
(In thousands)

2005 ’ : $ 77,947
2006 ' 10,320
2007 , o _ 2,117
Thereafter ‘ 8,979
Total X . ) $ 99,363 -

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Loan Commitments and Standby Letters of Credit. In order to meet the financing needs of our customers in the normal.
course of business, we make commitments to extend credit and issue standby commercial letters of credit to or for them. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, our outstanding loan commitments (inclusive of mortgages held for sale) totaled
approximately $167 million and $157 million, respectively.

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and the customer may be required to pay a fee and meet other conditions in order to draw on those commitments or
standby letters of credit. We expect, based on historical experience, that many of the commitments will expire without being
drawn upon and, therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

To varying degrees, commitments to extend credit involve elements of credit and interest rate risk for us that are in
excess of the amounts recognized in our balance sheets. Our exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the
customers to whom such commitments are made is equal to the amount of those commitments that are ultimately funded
prior to their expiration. As a result, before making a loan commitment to a customer, we evaluate the customer’s ‘
creditworthiness using the same underwriting standards that we would apply if we were deciding whether or not to approve
loans to the customer. In addition, we often require the customer to secure its payment obligations for amounts drawn on such
commitments with collateral such as.accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, mcome-producmg
commercial properties, residential properties and properties under construction,

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer
to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is.essentially the same as that involved in extendmg loan
commitments to customers :

We believe that our cash and cash equivalent resources, together with available borrowings under our credit facilities,
will be sufficient to enable us to meet any increases in demand for loans and leases or in the utilization of outstanding loan
commitments or standby letters of credit and any increase in deposit withdrawals that might occur in the foreseeable future. -

Capital Resources

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank (on a stand-alone basis) are subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by federal and state banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can lead to
the imposition of certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary restrictions on the operations of the Company and
the Bank by their respective bank regulatory agencies that, if imposed, could have a direct material adverse impact on the
Company’s operating results and financial condition. See “BUSINESS—Supervision and Regulation—Capital Standards and
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Prompt Corrective Action” in Part I of this Report. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action that apply to all bank holding companies and FDIC insured banks in the United States, the Company
(on a consolidated basis) and the Bank (on a stand-alone basis) must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The
capital requirements that the Company may be required to meet also are subject to qualitative judgments by the bank
regulators as to measures relating to those measures that bear on the financial condition of the Company.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company (on a consolidated -
basis) and the Bank (on a stand-alone basis) to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier I capital (generally,
the ratio of the sum of common stock, non-redeemable preferred stock and retained earnings)-—to risk—weighted assets and
of Tier I capital to average total assets. v

The following table sets forth the amounts of capital and capital ratios of the Company (on a consolidated basis) and
the Bank (on stand alone basis) at December 31, 2004, as compared to the respective minimum regulatory requirements
" applicable to them. See “BUSINESS—Supervision and Regulation—Capital Standards and Prompt Correctlve Action” in

this Report.
Applicable Federal Regulatory Requirement
Amount Ratio Capital Adequacy Purposes Amount . Ratio

. (Dollars in thousands)

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets: - ' e
Company $108,318 17.3%  $50,125 8.0% -$62,656 '10.0%
Bank ‘ 66,365 10.7% 49,651 8.0% 62,063 10.0%

‘Tier 1 Capital to Risk Welghted Assets: A , o oo
Company _ $101,932 16.3%  $25,062 4.0% $37,594 6.0%
Bank : ‘ 62,356 10.1% 24,875 .4.0% 37,238 6.0%-

Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets , S
Company $101,932 12.2%  $33375 - 4.0% $41,719 . 5.0%
Bank 62,356 7.5% 33342 4.0% 41,677 5.0%

As of December 31, 2004, based on applicable capital fegu]atxons the Company (on a conso]ida;ted basis) and the Bank
(on a stand-alone basm) qualified as well capitalized institutions under the capital adequacy gmdehnes descnbed above Lo

Our consolidated total capital and Tier 1 capital of the Company, at December 31, 2004 include approxunately $25 5
million of long term indebtedness evidenced by the Junior Subordinated Debentures that we issued in 2002 and 2004 i in
connection with the sale of trust preferred securities. The remaining $2.3 million was classified as Tier II cap1ta1 See “—
Financial Condition—Contractual Obligations™ above. We contributed $17 million of the net proceeds ‘from the sale of the
trust preferred securities to the Bank, thereby, increasing its total capital and Tier 1 capital. .

Under the Federal Reserve Board’s regulations that were in effect at the time we issued the Junior Subordinated
Debentures, substantially all of the indebtedness evidenced by those Debentures qualified as Tier 1 capital for regulatory
capital purposes, because they satisfied certain requirements established by the Federal Reserve Board with respect to
issuances of such debentures. One of those requirements was that junior subordinated debentures had to be issued to a trust
that was treated, for financial reporting purposes, as a consolidated subsidiary of the bank holding company that was the
issuer of the debentures. As a result, the adoption of FIN No. 46, which required bank holding companies to deconsolidate
such trusts, created uncertainty for us, as well as other bank holding companies that had issued similar debentures, as to
whether they would continue to qualify as Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes. (For a description of FIN No. 46, ‘see Note
1—Significant Accounting Policies—Recent Accounting Pronouncements” to our consolidated financial statements included
in Item 8 of this Report.) However, on February 28, 2005, the Federal Reserve Board issued a new rule which provides that,
notwithstanding the deconsolidation of such trusts that is required by FIN No. 46, junior subordinated debentures, such as
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those issued by us, may continue to constitute up to 25% of a bank holding company’s Tier 1 capital, subject to certain new
quantitative limitations which will not become effective until March 31, 2009 and which, in any event, are not expected to
materially affect the treatment of our Junior Subordinated Debentures as Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes. -

Public Offering of Common Stock in December 2003. In December 2003 we completed a public oﬁ'enng of 3,680,000
shares of our common stock at a price $9.25 per share. The net proceeds of that public offering, which totaled approximately
$31 million, increased our total capital to support our future growth, and we used a portion of those net proceeds to fund the
opening and cost of initial operation of our new Long Beach Financial Center and some of the loan growth achieved during
the 2004. The remaining net proceeds of the stock offering will be used to fund the opening of our new Ontario, California
financial center and one additional full service financial center that we plan to estabhsh in Southern California over the next
12 months. :

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD AFFECT OUR FUTURE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

This Report, including the discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations set forth above,
contains certain forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements set forth estimates of, or our expectations or beliefs
regarding, our future financial performance. Those estimates, expectations and beliefs are based on current information and
are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual operating results and financial performance in
the future to differ, possibly significantly, from set forth in the forward-looking statements contained in this Report and, for
that reason, you should not place undue reliance on those forward-looking statements. Those risks and uncertainties include,
although they are not limited to, the following; '

. 'We face intense competition from other banks a_nd financial institutions that could hurt our bus_ihes's'

We conduct our business operations in Southern California, where the banking business is highly competitive and is
dominated by a relatively small number of large multi-state banks with operations and offices covering wide geographical
areas. We also compete with other financial service businesses, mutual fund companies, and securities brokerage and
investment banking firms that offer competitive banking and financial products and services. The larger banks, and some of
those other financial institutions, have greater resources that enable them to conduct extensive advertising campaigns and to
shift resources to regions or activities of greater potential profitability. Some of these banks and institutions also have
substantially more capital and higher lending limits that could enable them to attract larger clients, and offer financial
products and services that we are unable to offer, particularly with respect to attracting loans and deposits.

Increased competition may prevent us (i) from achieving increases, or could even result in decreases, in our loan
volume or deposit balances, or (ii) from increasing interest rates on loans.or reducing interest rates we pay to attract or retain
deposits, any of which could cause a decline in our interest income or an increase in our interest expense, that could ]ead to
reductions in our net interest income and ea:mngs

Adverse changes in economic conditions in Southern California could disproportibnately harm our business -

The large majoritj! of our customers and the properties securing a large proportion of our loans are located in Southern
California. A worsening of economic conditions or the occurrence of natural disasters in Southern California could harm our
business by:

+ reducing loan derhand which, in turn, would lead to reduced net interest margins and net interest income;

» affecting the financial capability of borrowers to meet their loan obligations, which could result in increases-in -
loan losses and require us to make additional provisions for possible loan losses, thereby reducing our earnings;
. and

+ leading to reductions in real property values that, due to our reliance on real properiy to secure many of our loans,
could make it more difficult for us to prevent losses from being incurred on non-performmg loans through the sale
of such real properties.
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Additionally, real estate values in California have been increasing rapidly in recent years. In the event that these values
are not sustained or other events, such as earthquakes or fires, that may be more prevalent in Southern California than in
other geographic areas, cause a decline in real estate values, our collateral coverage for our loans will be reduced and we may

suffer increased loan losses

‘National economic conditions and changes in Federal Reserve Board monetary policies could affect our operatmg
results

Our ability to achieve and sustain our profitability is substantially dependent on our net interest income. Like most
banking organizations and other depository institutions, our net interest income is affected by a number of factors outside of
our control, including changes in market rates of interest which, in turn, are affected by changes in national economic
conditions and national monetary policies adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. From 2001 and continuing until June 30,
2004, the Federal Reserve Board followed a policy of reducing interest rates in an effort to stimulate the national economy.
Those interest rate reductions, coupled with sluggishness in the economy, led to decreases in our net interest margin during
2003 and made it more difficult to increase earnings. We cannot predict whether the improvement in the economy will -
continue or whether the Federal Reserve Board’s recent increases in interest rates, which have totaled 75 basis points so far in
the second half of 2004, will succeed in lessening the downward pressure on net interest margins that was prevalent through

most of the last three years.

On the other hand, the benefits of increased market rates of interest may be offset, partially or in whole, because those
increases will increase the costs of attracting deposits and obtaining borrowings. If we are unable to effectuate commensurate
increases in the rates we are able to charge on existing or new loans due to competitive pressures or contractual restrictions
on our ability to increase interest rates on existing loans, our net interest margin may suffer despite the increase in interest
‘rates. Additionally, the recent increases in mortgage rates have led to a decline in mortgage loan originations and a reduction
in our noninterest income during 2004. Changes in economic conditions and increasing rates of interest also could cause
prospective borrowers to fail to qualify for our loan products and reduce loan demand, thereby reducing our net interest
margins. In addition, if economic conditions were to worsen, that could adversely affect the financial capability of borrowers
to meet their loan obligations, which could result in loan losses and require increases in the provisions we make for possible

loan losses.
Rapid growth could strain our resources and lead to operating problems or inefficiencies

We have grown substantially in the past five years by opening new financial centers. We intend over the next 12
months to open additional financial centers, primarily in Southern California, either by opening new offices or acquiring one
or more community banks. The opening of new offices or the acquisition of another bank will result in increased operating
expenses until new banking offices or acquired banking operations attract sufficient business to cover operating expenses,
which usually takes at least six to twelve months. There is no assurance, however, as to how long it would take for new
financial centers to begin generating positive cash flow and eamings. Also, we may not succeed in adequately managing our
growth, which will make substantial demands on the time and attention of management and on our capital resources. The
failure to prepare appropriately and on a timely basis for growth could cause us to-experience inefficiencies or failures in our
service delivery systems, regulatory problems, and erosion in customer confidence, unexpected expenses or other problems.

Additionally, acquisitions of banks are extremely time consuming and expensive, and, in the case of bank acquisitions,
subject to regulatory control. Such acquisitions could prove to be costly and adversely affect our operating results due to:

»  the possible incurrence of undisclosed or potential legal liabilities of the acquired bank;

» the incurrence of unanticipated costs or delays or difficulties i in integrating the acquired bank’s operations,
technologies and personnel into our existing operations, organization and culture;

+  possible regulatory agency required divestitures of certain assets; and

+ the issuance of equity securities to pay for acquisitions which may be dilutive to existing shareholders.
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We could incur losses on the loans we make

The failure or inability of borrowers to repay their loans is an inherent risk in the banking business. We take a number
of measures designed to reduce this risk, including the maintenance of stringent loan underwriting policies and the
establishment of reserves for possible loan losses and the requirement that borrowers provide collateral that we could sell in
the event they fail to pay their loans. However, the ability of borrowers to repay their loans, the adequacy of our resérves and
our ability to sell collateral for amounts sufficient to offset loan losses are affected by a number of factors outside of our
control, such as changes in economic conditions, increases in market rates of interest and changes in the condition or value of
the collateral securing our loans. As a result, we could incur losses on the loans we make that will hurt our operating results
and weaken our financial condition.

Government regulations may impair our operations, restrict our growth or increase our operating costs

~ We are subject to extensive supervision and regulation by federal and state bank regulatory agencies. The primary
objective of these agencies is to protect bank depositors and other customers and not shareholders, whose respective interests
will often differ. The regulatory agencies have the legal authority to impose restrictions which they believe are needed to
protect depositors and customers of banking institutions, even if such restrictions would adversely affect the ability of the
banking institution to expand its business, or result in increases in its costs of doing business or hinder its ability to compete
with financial services companies that are not regulated or banks or financial service organizations that are less regulated.
Additionally, due to the complex and technical nature of many of the government regulations to which banking organizations
are subject, inadvertent violations of those regulations may occur. In such an event, we would be required to correct or
implement measures to prevent a recurrence of such violations, If more serious violations were to occur, the regulatory
agencies could limit our activities or growth, fine us or ultimately put us out of business.

Our computer and network systems may be vulnerable to unforeseen problems and security risks-

The computer systems and network infrastructure that we use to provide automated and internet banking services could
be vulnerable to unforeseen problems. Our operations are dependent upon our ability to protect our computer equipment
against damage from fire, power loss, telecommunications failure, earthquakes and similar catastrophic events and from
security breaches. Any of those occurrences could result in damage to or a failure of our computer systems that could cause
an interruption in our banking services or and, therefore, harm our business, operating results and financial condition.
Additionally, interruptions in service, and security breaches that could result in the theft of confidential customer
information, could lead existing customers to terminate their banking relanonsh1ps with us and could make it more difficult
for us to attract new banking customers.

The loss of key personnel could hurt our financial performance

Our success depends to a great extent on the continued availability of our existing management, in particular on
Raymond E. Dellerba, our President and Chief Executive Officer. In addition to their skills and experience as bankers, our
executive officers provide us with extensive community ties upon which our competitive strategy is partially based. We do
not maintain key-man life insurance on these executives, other than Mr. Dellerba. As a result, the loss of the services of any
of these officers could harm our ability to implement our business strategy or our future operating results. :

Evolving regulation of corporate governance may result in additional expenses and continuing uncertainty

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations and NASDAQ Stock Market rules are creating uncertainty for companies
such as ours. We are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and public disclosure. As a result, we
already have invested significant resources, and expect in the future to invest additional resources, to comply with those laws,
regulations and standards. This investment may result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of
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management time and attention from revenue generating activities to compliance activities. Also, if our efforts to comply
with new or changed laws, regulations and standards do not achieve the results or objectives intended by regulatory or
governing bodies, our reputatxon may be harmed or we may be subject to hugauon

Other Risks

Other risks that could affect our future financial performance are described in the Section entitled “Risk Factors” in the
Prospectus dated December 8, 2003, included in our S-2 Registration Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and readers of this Report are urged to review those risks as well.

Due to these and other possible uncertainties and risks, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward
looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Report. We also disclaim any obligation to update forward-
looking statements contained in this Report or in the above-referenced Prospectus. ,
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk as a consequence of the normal course of conducting our business activities. The
primary market risk to which we are exposed is interest rate risk. Our interest rate risk arises from the instruments, positions
and transactions entered into for purposes other than trading. They include loans, securities, deposit liabilities, and short-term
borrowings. Interest rate risk occurs when assets and liabilities reprice at different times as market interest rates change.
Interest rate risk is managed within an overall asset/liability framework for the Company.

Asset/Liability Management

The primary objective of asset/liability management is to reduce our exposure to interest rate fluctuations, which can
affect our net interest margins and, therefore, our net interest income and net earnings. We seek to achieve this objective by
matching interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities, and maintaining the maturities and the repricing of these assets and -
liabilities at appropriate levels in light of the prevailing interest rate environment. Generally, all other things being equal, (i)
when rate sensitive assets exceed rate sensitive liabilities, net interest income will be positively impacted during a rising
interest rate environment and negatively impacted during a declining interest rate environment, and (ii) when rate sensitive
liabilities exceed rate sensitive assets, net interest income generally will be positively impacted during a declining interest
rate environment and negatively impacted during a rising interest rate environment.

The table below sets forth information concerning our rate sensitive assets and liabilities at December 31, 2004. The
assets and liabilities are classified by the earlier of maturity or repricing dates in accordance with their contractual terms.
Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the following table, which are discussed below.

Over Three  Over One ’
Three Through Year : Non-

Months Twelve Through Over Five Interest-
or Less Months Five Years Years Bearing _ Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets ' ‘ A _
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions $73s — $— $— $— $735
‘Investment in unconsolidated trust subsidiaries — -— — 837 — 837
Securities available for sale ‘ 13,719 31,959 86,980 36,753 — 169,411
Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank _
stock 9,195 — — — - 9,195
Federal funds sold 69,600 — — —_— — 69,600
Loans, gross 260,745 40,721 230,357 26,722 — 558,545
Non-interest earning assets, net — —_ — — 37,216 37,216
Total assets - $353,994  $72,680 $317,337 $64,312 $37,216 . $845,539
Liabilities and Shareholders Equity I -
Noninterest-bearing deposits $— — $— $— $175329 $175329
Interest-bearing deposits ' 211,241 93,259 53,734 — — 358,234
Borrowings 31,754 67,000 106,000 — — 204,754
Junior subordinated debentures 27,837 — — — — 27,837
Other liabilities _ — — — — 4,409 4,409
Shareholders’ equity , —_ — — — 74,976 74,976
Total liabilities and shareholders equity $270,832 $160,259 $159,734 30 $254,714 $845,539
Interest rate sensitivity gap ‘ $83,162 $(87,579) $157,603 $64,312 $(217,498) .
Cumulative interest rate sesitivity gap $83,162 3(4,417) $153,186 $217498 $—
Cumulative % of rate sensitive assets in maturity _
period 42% 50% 88% 96% 100%
Rate sensitive assets to rate sensitive liabilities 131% 45% 199% N/A 15%

Cumulative ratio ‘ 131% 99% 126% 137% N/A

At December 31, 2004, as the above table indicates, our rate sensitive balance sheet was shown to be in a negative _
twelve-month gap position. This implies that our net interest margin would decrease in the short—term if interest rates rise and
would increase in the short-term if interest rates were to fall.

45



However, the extent to which our net interest margin will be impacted by changes in prevailing interests rates will
depend on a number of factors, including how quickly rate sensitive assets and liabilities react to interest rate changes, the
mix of our interest earning assets (loans versus other interest earning assets, such as securities) and the mix of our interest'
bearing deposits (between for example, lower interest core deposits and higher cost time certificates of deposit) and our other
interest bearing liabilities. It is not uncommon rates on certain assets or ligbilities typically lag behind changes in market rates
of interest. Additionally, prepayments of loans and securities available for sale, and early withdrawals of certificates of
deposit, could cause the interest sensitivities to vary. Additionally, the rate sensitivity analysis set forth in the table above
assumes that we would make no changes in the mix of our interest earning assets or interest bearing liabilities in response to
changes in the interest rate environment, which is not consistent with our practices. '

As a result, the relationship or “gap” between interest sensitive assets and interest sensitive liabilities, as shown in the
above table, is only a general indicator of interest rate sensitivity and the effect of changing rates of interest on our net.
interest income is likelyto be different from that would be predicted on the basis of the interest rate sensitivity analysis set
forth in the above table. '

Derivative Financial Instruments

In accordance with our risk management policy, we use derivative instruments to reduce our exposure to adverse
fluctuations in interest rates. Generally, if interest rates increase, the value of our mortgage loan commitments to borrowers
and mortgage loans held for sale are adversely impacted. As a result, we attempt to economically hedge 100% of the risk of
the overall changes that may occur in the fair value of such mortgage loan commitments and mortgage loans held for sale by
entering into interest rate lock commitments with investors in mortgage loans at the date loan commitments are made to the
individual borrowers. These rate lock commitments are entered into at the same terms as those extended to those borrowers to
be delivered to the investors at a future date. :

Mortgage loan commitments to borrowers and interest rate lock commitments with investors in mortgage loans are
classified as non-designated as derivative instruments and are included in mortgage loans held for sale. Gains and losses
resulting from these derivative instruments are included in gains on sales of loans in the Company’s consolidated statements
of income operations. '

We did not have any significant ineffective hedges as of December 31, 2004,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Pamﬁc Mercantile Bancorp and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consohdated statements of financial condition of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and
cash flows for each of the years in the three years ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. -

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated
results of their operations and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 10, 2005, expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon.
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Irvine, California
March 10, 2005
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PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,
. 2004 2003
. - ASSETS : :
Cash and due from banks 326,509 $23,785
Federal funds sold ‘ 69,600 36,000
Cash and cash equivalents ' ‘ S 96,109 59,785
Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions 3 738 605
Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock, at cost ‘ - 10,662 7,546
Securities available for sale, at fair value 169,412 273,995
Loans held for sale, at fair value ‘ 42,348 19,168
Loans (net of allowances of $4,032 and $3,943, respecuvely) ’ 511,827 351,071
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries 837 527
Accrued interest receivable ‘ : 2,539 2,346
Premises and equipment, net » ‘ ' ‘ 2,987 3,111
Other assets : . 8,080 6,335
Total assets ' _ $845,539 $724,489
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Deposits: ' ' ‘
Noninterest-bearing ‘ : $175,329 $156,890
Interest-bearing ‘ ‘ 358,234 338,444
Total deposits ‘ ‘ 533,563 . 495,334
Borrowings : 204,754 138,372
Accrued interest payable 1,259 920
Other liabilities 3,150 2,166
Junior subordinated debentures _ ‘ - 27837 17,527
Total liabilities ' _ o 770,563 654,319
Commitments and contingencics : — —_—
Shareholders’ equity: ' . ‘
Preferred stock, no par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized, none issued _— —_—
Common stock, no par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 10,084,381 and 10,081,248 shares ' . o
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively 69,028 69,049
Retained earnings 7,420 2,557
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) : (1,472)  (1,436)
Total shareholders’ equity ‘ : 74,976 70,170
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ' - $845,539 $724,489

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands, except for per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Interest income:
Loans, including fees $26,001 $17,894 $13,616
Federal funds sold 513 487 684
Securities available for sale and stock 8,295 7,127 - 3,989
Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions 9 46 62
v Total interest income S 34,818 25,554 18,351
Interest expense: : v
Deposits - 6,780 7,785 5,132
Borrowings 5,292 3,229 1,175
Total interest expense ‘ 12,072 11,014 6,307
Net interest income y o 22,746 14,540 12,044
Provision for loan losses , . 973 1,515 755
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 21,773 13,025 11,289
Noninterest income ) 4,679 7,656 6,096
Noninterest expense ' 18,148 17,439 14,825
Income before income taxes ' 8,304 3,242 2,560
Income tax expense 3,441 1,160 1,044
Net income ’ $4,863 $2,082 $1,516
Net income per share:
Basic $0.48 $0.31 $0.24
Diluted , $0.46 $0.30 $0.23
Weighted average number of shares:
Basic 10,082,049 6,578,603 6,377,642
Diluted 10,597,433 6,866,170 6,536,856

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. -




PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Shares and dollars in thousands)

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2004

Balance at December 31, 2001
Exercise of stock options
Comprehensive income
Net income :
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on securities held for sale, net
- of tax ,

Total comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2002
Exercise of stock options
Issuance of common stock in public offering, net of offenng expenses
Comprehensive income
Net income
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on securities held for sale, net
of tax .

Total comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2003
Exercise of stock options
Offering expenses from sale of common stock
Comprehensive income
Net income
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on securities held for sale, net
of tax

Total comprehensive income
Balance at December 31, 2004

Common stock
Accumulated
Retained other
Number earnings  comprehensive
of shares Amount (deficit) income (loss) Total

6 345 37,608 (1,041) 111 . 36,678
55 254 — — 254
—_ — 1,516 — 1,516
—_ —_— —_ 521 521
— . — — — 2,037
6,400 37,862 475 632 38,969
1 9 — - 9
3,680 31,178 — — 31,178
— — 2,082 — 2,082
— — — (2,068) (2,068)
— — — — 14
10,081 69,049 2,557 - (1,436) 70,170
3 17 — ‘ — 17
— (3%) — — (38)
— — 4,863 — 4,863
— — — (36). (36)
— — — — 4827
10,084 $69,028 $7,420 $(1,472) $74,976

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.




PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS '
(Dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 -
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: : '
Net income ' $4,863 $2,082 $1,516
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization _ 1,053 768 969
Provision for loan losses 973 1,515 755
Net amortization of premium (discount) on securities 1,994 3,973 1,242
Net gains on sales of securities available for sale ‘ (839) M9 (299)
Mark to market gain adjustment of equity securities \ 3) - —_
Net gain on sale of loans — - (35)
Net gain on sale of other real estate owned a1 _ —
Net gains on sales of loans held for sale (1,605) (5,104) (3,491)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale ~ 267,351 711,002 661,461
Originations and purchases of loans held for sale : (288,799) (667,823) (651,566)
Mark to market (gain)/loss adjustment of loans held for sale (127 51 —
Net decrease in accrued interest receivable , (193) (94) (1,309)
Net increase in other assets ' (2,161) (893) (1,994)
Net increase (decrease) in deferred taxes 443 - (607) (172
Net increase in accrued interest payable _ 339 224 514
Net increase (decrease) in other liabilities 984 (360) 687
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (15,849) 43,995 8,278
Cash Flows From Investing Activities: , ‘
Net (decrease)increase in interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions (133) 883 -
Maturities of, proceeds from sales of and principal payments received for securities available o
for sale and other stock ' 168,119 270,473 97,032
Purchase of securities available for sale and other stock (67,863) (305,300) (337,187)
Net increase in loans (163,245) (130,587) . (74,955)
Sale of other real estate owned . 1,634 T — —
Purchases of premises and equipment ‘ : (929) (1,023) (1,353)
Net cash used in investing activities (62,417) (165,554) ' (316,463)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities: T
Net increase in deposits 38,229 72,692 211,181
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of offering expenses (38) 31,178 . —_
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ' 17 ' 9 254
Investment in trust subsidiaries (310)- — (527
Proceeds from junior subordinated debentures 10,310 —_— 17,527
Net increase in borrowings 66,382 46,270 75,828
Net cash provided by financing activities 114,590 150,149 304,263
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 36,324 28,590 (3,922)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year : 59,785 31,195 35,117
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year o $96,109 $59,785 $31,195
Supplementary Cash Flow Information: » L
Cash paid for interest on deposits and other borrowings $11,734 $10,063 $5.446
Cash paid for income taxes $1,577 $2,048 $475
Non-Cash Investing Activities:
Transfer of loan to other real estate owned $1,517 $— $—
Net (decrease) increase in net unrealized gains and losses on securities held for sale,
net of income tax $(36) $(2,068) $521

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.  Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies V‘ |
Organization

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp (“PMBC”) and its wholly
owned subsidiaries, which are Pacific Mercantile Bank (the “Bank’) and PMB Securities Corp. (which, together with PMBC,
shall be referred to as the “Company”). The Company is a bank holding company, which was incorporated on January 7,
2000 in the State of California. Pacific Mercantile Bank (the “Bank”) is a banking corporation which was formed on May 29,
1998, incorporated November 18, 1998 in the State of California and commenced operations on March 1, 1999. The Bank is
chartered by the California Department of Financial Institutions (the “DFI”’) and is a member of the Federal Reserve Bank of
San Francisco (“FRB”). In addition, deposit accounts of the Bank’s customers are msured by the Federal Deposxt Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) up to the maximum amount allowed by law.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and =
contingencies at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. These estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of
the allowance for loan losses, the determination of the expected lives of residential loans used to amortize deferred
origination costs and the expected lives of mortgage back securities used to amortize premium costs, the valuation of deferred
tax assets and the determination of the fair value of derivative financial instruments. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries Pacific
Mercantile Bank and PMB Securities Corp. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. Prior to March 31, 2004, our wholly owned subsidiaries, Pacific Mercantile Capital Trust I, PMB Capital Trust
1, and PMB Statutory Trust III, (the “Trust Subsidiaries”), were included in our consolidated financial statements. However,
in accordance with a revision, adopted by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) in January 2004, to
Financial Interpretation Number (FIN) 46, effective as of March 31, 2004 the Trust Subsidiaries were de-consolidated and are
not included in our consolidated financial statements. See “~ Recent Accounting Pronouncements” in this section.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and due from banks and federal
funds sold. Generally, federal funds are sold for a one-day period. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003 the Bank maintained
required reserves with the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco of approxixiiately $15 million and $10 million, :
respectively, which are included in cash and due from banks in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition.

- Interest-Bearing Deposits with Financial Institutions

 Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions mature within one year or have no stated maturity date and are
carried at cost. A

Securities Available for Sale

Securities available for sale are those that management intends to hold for an indefinite period of time and that may be -
sold in response to changes in liquidity needs, changes in interest rates, changes in prepayment risks and other similar factors.
The securities are recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported as other
comprehensive income or loss, respectively.
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PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Purchased premiums and discounts are recognized as interest income using the interest method over the term of the
securities. Declines in the fair value of securities available for sale below their cost that are deemed to be other than -
temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date
and are determined using the specific identification method.

‘Loans Held for Sale

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the estimated fair value in the aggregate.
Net unrealized gains or losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income.

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future, or until maturity, or pay-off are
stated at principal amounts outstanding, net of unearned income. Interest is accrued daily as earned, except where reasonable
doubt exists as to collectibility, in which case accrual of interest is discontinued and the loan is placed on nonaccrual status.
A loan is generally classified as impaired and placed on nonaccrual status when, in management’s opinion, the principal or
interest will not be collectible in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement. A loan with principal or
interest that is 90 days or more past due is placed on nonaccrual status; except that management may elect to continue the
accrual of interest when the estimated net realizable value of the collateral is sufficient to recover both principal and accrued
interest balances and such balances are in the process of collection. Generally, interest payments received on nonaccrual
‘loans are applied to principal. Once all principal has been received, any additional interest payments are recogmzed as
interest income on a cash basis.

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses that is charged against income. A loan
is charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that the collection of the carrying amount is
unlikely. The Bank carefully monitors changing economic conditions, the loan portfolio by category, the financial condition
of borrowers and the history of the performance of the portfolio in determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.
Ultimate losses may vary from the estimates used to establish the allowance. Additionally, as the volume of loans increases,
additional provisions for loan losses will be required to maintain the allowance at levels deemed adequate. Moreover, if
economic conditions were to deteriorate, it would become necessary to increase the provision to an even greater extent.

The allowance is based on estimates, and ultimate losses may vary from the current estimates. These estimates are
reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are recorded in earnings in the periods in which they
become known. Management believes that the allowance for loan losses was adequate as of December 31, 2004 and 2003. In
addition, the FRB and the DFI, as an mtegral part of their examination processes, periodically review the Bank’s allowance
for loan losses for adequacy. The agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance based on their
judgments given the information available at the time of their examinations.

The Bank also evaluates loans for impairment, where principal and interest is not expected to be collected in
accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement. The Bank measures and reserves for impairment on a loan by
loan basis using either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. The Bank excludes smaller, homogeneous loans, such as
consumer installment loans and lines of credit, from its impairment calculations. Also, loans that experience insignificant
payment delays or payment shortfalls are generally not considered impaired.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs

All loan origination fees and related direct costs are deferred and amortized to interest income as an adjustment to yield
over the respective lives of the loans using the effective interest method except for loans that are revolving or short-term in
nature for which the straight line method is used.

1
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PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
‘ NOTES TO CONSOLI])ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
Premises and Egquipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization which are charged to
expense on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets or, in the case of leasehold improvements, over
the term of the leases, whichever is shorter. For income tax purposes, accelerated depreciation methods are used.
Maintenance and repairs are charged directly to expense as incurred. Improvements to premises and equxpment that extend
the useful lives of the assets are capitalized.

When assets are disposed of, the applicable costs and accumulated depreciation thereon are removed from the accounts
and any resulting gain or loss is included in current operations. Rates of deprecxanon and amortization are based on the
following estimated useful lives:

Furniture and equipment : Three to ten years
Leasehold improvements ‘ Lesser of the lease term or estimated useful life -

Derivative Financial Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting For Derivative Instruments and Hedging
-Activities”, as amended and interpreted was effective for the Company as of January 1, 2001. SFAS No. 133 requires all
derivative instruments to be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Gains or losses resulting from changes in the
values of derivatives are accounted for depending on the purpose of the derivatives and whether they qualify for hedge
accounting. If certain conditions are met, hedge accounting may be applied and the derivative instrument may be speclﬁcally
designated as a fair value, cash flow or foreign currency hedge In the absence of meeting these conditions, derivatives are
designated as non—desxgnated derivative instruments with gains or losses recorded to current earnings.-

Eﬁ'ecuve Januaxy 1, 2001, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 133 by recognizing all derivative
instruments on the balance sheet at fair value. All derivative instruments entered into by the Company on mortgage loans
available for sale as interest rate lock commitments with investors were des1gnated as fair value hedges

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes and liabilities are determined using the asset and liability method. Under this method, the net
deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax
basis of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities and this method gives current recogmnon to changes in tax rates and
laws.

Income Per Share

Basic income per share for any fiscal period is computed by dividing net income for such period by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during that period. Fully diluted income per share reflects the potential
dilution that could have occurred assuming all outstandmg options or warrants to purchase our shares of common stock at
exercise prices that were less than the market price of our shares were exercised mto common stock, thereby increasing the .
number of shares outstanding during the penod

Stock Option Plan

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation as prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” and has adopted the disclosure provisions of Statements of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation.” SFAS No. 123 requires pro-forma disclosures of the
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PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Company’s net income and net income per share as if the fair value based method of accounting for stock based awards had
been applied. Under the fair value based method, compensation cost is recorded based on the value of the award at the grant
date and is recognized over the employee’s period of service with the Company. The Financial Accounting Standards Board -
(“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” in December 2004, which requires entities that grant stock
options and shares to employees to recognize the fair value of those options and shares as compensation cost over the service
(vesting) period in their financial statements. Public entities effective date for SFAS No. 123(R) is the first interim or annual
reporting period beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 123(R) as of June 30, 2005, as required.

Effective March 2, 1999, our Board of Directors adopted, and in January 2000 our shareholders approved, the 1999
Stock Option Plan (the “1999 Option Plan”). That Plan authorizes the granting of options to directors, officers and other key
employees, that entitle them to purchase shares of common stock of the Company at a price per share equal to or above the
fair market value of the Company’s shares on the date the option is granted. Options may vest immediately or over various
periods of up to five years, determined by the Company’s Compensation Committee at the time it approves the grant of
options under the 1999 Option Plan and expire 10 years after the grant date, or following termination of service, if sooner. A
total of 1,248,230 shares were authorized for issuance under the 1999 Option Plan (which number has been adjusted for stock
splits effectuated subsequent to the Plan’s adoption).

Effective February 17, 2004, the Board of Directors adopted the Pacific Mercantile Bancorp 2004 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “2004 Plan™), which was approved by the Company’s shareholders in May 2004. That Plan authorizes the granting of
options and rights to purchase restricted stock to directors, officers and other key employees, that entitle them to purchase
shares of common stock of the Company at a price per share equal to or above the fair market value of the Company’s shares
on the date the option is granted or the stock purchase rights are awarded. Options and restricted stock purchase rights may
vest immediately or over various periods of up to five years, determined by the Company’s Compensation Committee at the
time the options are granted or the stock purchase rights are awarded. Options granted under the 2004 Plan will expire 10
years after the grant date, or following termination of service, if sooner. In the case of restricted stock purchase rights, they
generally will expire, if not exercised, within 15 days of the date of the award. If exercised, any unvested shares will become
subject to repurchase by the Company in the event of a termination of employment or service of the holder of the stock
purchase right. A total of 400,000 shares were authorized for issuance under the 2004 Plan.

The following tables summarize information concerning stock options that were outstanding or had been exercised as
of December 31, 2004:

Weighted
- Average
. v Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 1,029,000 $6.05
Granted 102,076 7.90
Exercised : : (55,060) ’ 4.55
Cancelled : (123,468) 6.06
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 ' . 952,548 6.33
~ Granted , 57,160 8.26
Exercised (1,360) 6.61
Cancelled (13,600) - 6.74
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 : 994,748 6.42

Granted - 376,800 11.26
Exercised (2,540) 7.22
Cancelled (22,660) 8.44
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 - 1,346,348 7.73
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PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS;(Conﬁnued)

Weighted

. Average
Number of Remaining Weighted
Shares Contractual Average

Range of Exercise Prices at December 31, 2004, Outstanding Life in Years Exercise Price
$4.00 280,872 4.2 $4.00
$6.00 — $7.99 v - 679,176 5.7 '$7.30
$9.01— $10.60 ' : 9,500 8.6 $9.11
$10.01— $12.37 376,800 9.2 $11.26

1,346,348 6.4 $7.73

Optioxis to purchase_9'03,688 shares, at option prices ranging from $4.00 to $11.34 per share were exercisable at
December 31, 2004 under the Plans. :

The Company continues to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” under which no compensation
cost for stock options is recognized in the accompanying financial statements for stock option or stock purchase awards
granted at or above fair market value. Had compensation expense for the Company’s 1999 and 2004 Option Plans been
determined based upon the fair value at the grant date for awards under those Plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the Company’s net income and income per share would have been reduced to
the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Net Income: - »
As reported _ ‘ $4,863 $2,082 $1,516
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based :
method for all awards, net of related tax effects : 591 320 283
Pro forma ' $4,272 $1,762 $1,233
Income Per Share as Reported: ' ‘ o
Basic $048 $0.31 $0.24
Diluted ‘ 046 030 023
Income Per Share Pro Forma: :
Basic ' : $0.42 3027 $0.19
Diluted 040 026 0.19

- The fair value of these options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with
the following assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively: dividend yields of 1.22%,
2.43%, and 2.43%, respectively; expected volatility of 56%, 40%, and 47%, respectively; and risk-free interest rates of
3.07%, 3.01%, and 4.50%, respectively. For all periods, an expected option life of 5 years was assumed.

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income.
However, certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale, are
reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet net of income taxes, and such items, along with
net income, are components of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The components of other comprehensive income and related tax effects are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) ) 2004 2003 2001
Unrealized holding (losses) gains arising during period $(899) $(4,257) $601
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in income 839 739 299
Net unrealized holding (losses} gains (60) (3,518) 900
Tax effect 24 1,450 (379)
Other comprehensive income (loss) $(36) $(2,068) $521

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income, included in stockholders’ equity, are as follows:

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) . 2004 2003
Net unrealized holding loss on securities available for sale $(2,488) $(2,428)
Tax effect 1,016 992
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $(1,472) $(1,436)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2003, the “Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities”—an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin (“ARB™) No. 51. This Interpretation
defines a variable interest entity and provides that if a business enterprise has a controlling financial interest in a variable
interest entity, the assets, liabilities and results of the activities of the variable interest entity should be included in
consolidated financial statements with those of the business enterprise. Furthermore, the FASB indicated that the voting
interest approach of ARB No. 51 is not effective in identifying controlling financial interests in entities that are not
controllable through voting interests or in which the equity investors do not bear the residual economic risk. This
Interpretation became applicable immediately to variable interest entities created or in which an interest was acquired after
January 31, 2004, and beginning after June 15, 2004, in the case of variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds a
variable interest that it acquired before February 1, 2004. The Interpretation applies to public enterprises as of the beginning
of the applicable interim or annual periods.

In January 2004, subsequent to the issuance of FIN 46, the FASB issued a revised interpretation, the provisions of
which were required to be applied to certain variable interest entities by March 31, 2004. In accordance with the provisions of
FIN 46, as revised, effective as of March 31, 2004 the then existing trust subsidiaries organized by the Company to facilitate
the sales of trust preferred securities, as descnbed in Note 1 above, were deconsolidated and, for that reason, are not included
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003. However, the adoptxon
of FIN 46 and its revisions did not have a material impact on the Company s financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, (revised 2004),
“Share-Based Payment”: SFAS No. 123R, which supersedes Accounting Principle Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, requires entities that grant stock options and shares to employees to recognize
the fair value of those options and shares as compensation over the service (vesting) period in their financial statements; pro
forma disclosure will no longer be permitted. The cost of the equity instruments is to be measured based on the fair value of
the instruments on the date they are granted and is required to be recognized over the period during which the employees are
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required to provide services in exchange for the equity instruments. No compensation cost is recognized for equity
instruments for which employees do not render the requisite service. This statement becomes applicable for public entities in
the first interim or annual reporting period beginning after June 15, 2005.

The impact of adopting SFAS No. 123R cannot be accurately estimated at this time, as it will depend on the market value and
the amount of share based awards granted in future periods. '

Reclassification
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years’ balances to conform to the 2004 presentation.
2.  Interest-Bearing Deposits with Financial Institutions

The Company had interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions of $738,000 at December 31, 2004 and $605,000
at December 31, 2003. The weighted average percentage yields of these deposits were 1.80% and 1.64%, at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively: ‘

Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions at December 31, 2004 are scheduled to mature within one year or
have no stated maturity date.

3.  Securities Available For Sale

The following are summaries of the major components of securities available for sale and a comparison of amortized
cost, estimated fair market values, and gross unrealized gains and losses at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

December 31, 2004 December 31,2003
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized
Amortized Fair Amortized ‘ Fair
Cost Gain Loss Value Cost Gain Loss Value
(Dollars in thousands) )
Mortgage backed securities $160,405 $14 $2,383 $158,036 $235,795 $239 $2,236 $233,798
Collateralized mortgage obligations 10,487 3 122 10,368 20,628 54 131 20,551
Total government and agencies
. securities 170,892 17 2,505 168,404 256,423 293 2,367 254,349
Mutual fund . 1,008 — — 1,008 — — — —
Fannie Mae trust preferred stock . _ —_ - — — 20,000 — 354 19,646
Total securities available for sale $171,900 $17 $2,505 $169,412 $276,423 $293 $2,721 $273,995

At December 31, 2004, mortgage backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations with an aggregate fair
market value of $149 million were pledged to secure Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings, repurchase agreements, local
agency deposits and Treasury, tax and loan accounts.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value, at December 31, 2004, of securities available for sale are shown in the
table below by contractual maturities and historical prepayments based on the prior twelve months of principal payments.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities and historical prepayments, particularly with respect to
collateralized mortgage obligations, because borrowers may react to interest rate market conditions differently than the
historical prepayment rates.
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December 31, 2004
Maturing in
Over one Over five
One year year through years through Over ten
(Dollars in thousands) or less five years ten years Years Total
Securities available for sale, amortized cost , $43,064  $81,424 $38,575 $8,837 $171,900
Securities available for sale, estimated fair value 42,549 80,304 37,956 8,603 169,412
Weighted average yield - 3.22% 3.40% 3.79% 4.14% 3.48%
December 31,2003 '
Maturing in
Over one Over five
: One year year through years through Over ten
(Dollars in thousands) or less five years ten years Years Total
Securities available for sale, amortized cost $89,299 $115,600 $56,084 $15,440 $276,423
Securities available for sale, estimated fair value 88,599 114,431 55,707 15,258 273,995
Weighted average yield 2.88% 3.42% 3.68% 3.95% 3.33%

The Company recognized net gains on sales of securities available for sale in 2004, 2003, and 2002, of $839,000,
$739,000, and $299,000, respectively, on proceeds of $81 million, $144 million, and $62 million, respectively.

The table below shows as of December 31, 2004, the gross unrealized losses and fair values of our investments,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that the individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss
position.

Securities With Unrealized Loss as of December 31, 2004

Less than 12 menths 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Unrealized
(Dollars In thousands) Fair Value Loss Value Loss Falr Value Loss
US agencies and mortgage backed securities $74,093 $668 $79,693 $1,715 $153,786 $2,383
Collateralized mortgage obligations' - 3,541 30 4,320 92 7,861 122
Total temporarily impaired securities $77,634 $698 $84,013 $1,807 $161,647 $2,505

We regularly monitor investments for significant declines in fair value. We have determined that the declines in the fair
values of these investments below their amortized costs, as set forth in the table above, are temporary based on the following:
(i) those declines are due to interest rate changes and not due to a deterioration in the creditworthiness of the issuers of those
investment securities, and (i1} we have the ability to hold those securities until there is a recovery in their values.

4. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

The loan portfolio consisted of the following at:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

(Dollars in thousands) ! ‘ R ‘ Amount Percent Amount Percent
Commercial loans $132,964 25.8% $103,363 29.1%
Real estate loans : 174,520 33.7% 140,441 - 39.5%
Residential mortgage loans 173,194 33.6% 84,346 23.8%
Construction loans 29,731 58% 17,559 4.9%
Consumer loans 5,471 1.1% 9,551 2.7%
Gross loans 515,880 100.0% 355,260 100.0%
Deferred fee (income) costs, net 21 (246)
Allowance for loan losses ' (4,032) (3,943)

Loans, net $511,827 $351,071

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, real estate loans of approximately $112 million and $63 million, respectively, were
pledged to secure borrowings with the Federal Home Loan Bank.
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A summary of the Company’s transactions in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

(In thousands) 2004 2003
Balance, beginning of period $3,943 $2,435
Provision for loan losses 973 1,515
Net amounts charged off , . (884) @)
Balance, end of period $4,032 $3,943

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had $11,000 in nonaccrual and impaired loans, no restructured loans, and no
loans with principal balances more than 90 days past due still accruing interest. At December 31, 2003, the Company had
$2.5 million in nonaccrual loans and impaired loans, no restructured or impaired loans and no loans with principal balances
more than 90 days past due still accruing interest.

The Company had an average investment in impaired loans of $616,000 for the fiscal year ended December 2004 and
$593,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. The interest that would have been eamed had the impaired loans
remained current in accordance with their original terms was $49,000 and $82,000, respectively, in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. At December 31, 2004, the allowance for loan losses did not include a valuation reserve for impaired loans. At
December 31, 2003 the allowance for loan losses included an $811,000 valuation reserve established for the impaired loans
‘on the basis of the fair value of the collateral securing these loans at December 31, 2003. '

5.  Premises and Equipment

The major classes of premises and equipment are as follows:

December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Furniture and equipment $5,602 $4,693 $4,430
Leasehold improvements - 1,071 1,053 660

: ‘ 6,673 5,746 5,090
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,686) (2,635) (2,234)
Total $2,987 $3,111 $2,856.

The amount of depreciation and amort;zauon included in operating expense was $1, 053 000, $768,000 and $969,000
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

6. Deposits

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were -
$99 million and $88 million, respectively.

The scheduled maturities of time certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2004 were as follows:

At December 31, 2004

(Dotlars in thousands)

2005 ' $77,947
2006 10,320
2007 2,117
Thereafter 8,979
Total $99,363
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7.  Borrowings and Contractual Obligations

Borrowings consisted of the following:

December 31,
2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 16,754 $ 14,372
Federal Home Loan advances—short-term 82,000 50,000
Federal Home Loan advances—long-term 106,000 74,000

$ 204,754 $ 138,372

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are classified as secured borrowings, mature within one day
from the transaction date. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected at the amount of cash received in
connection with the transaction. The Company monitors the fair value of the underlying securities.

Borrowings. As of December 31, 2004, we had $106 million of outstanding long-term borrowings and $82 million of
outstanding short-term borrowings that we had obtained from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The table below sets forth the
amounts, in thousands of dollars, the interest rates we pay on, and the maturity dates of these Federal Home Loan Bank
borrowings. These borrowings, along with the securities sold under agreements to repurchase, have a weighted-average
annualized interest rate of 2.45%. '

Principal Principal
Amounts Interest Rate Maturity Dates Amounts - Interest Rate Maturity Dates
(Dollars in thousands) {Dollars in thousands)

$ 6,000 1.27% January 24, 2005 $5,000 2.50% February 21, 2006
9,000 1.93%  February 18, 2005 6,000 ‘ 2.34% February 28, 2006
5,000 2.33% June 15, 2005 5,000 ) ' 3.13% June 19, 2006
5,000 - 231% June 17, 2005 5,000 2.76% August 9, 2006
7,000 2.29% June 24, 2005 2,000 2.94% August 28, 2006
5,000 2.24% August 29, 2005 3,000 2.56% September 18, 2006

10,000 2.70% September 19, 2005 3,000 2.49% September 25, 2006
3,000 1.93% September 19, 2005 5,000 2.39% October 2, 2006
5,000 1.76% September 30, 2005 2,000 240% October 2, 2006
5,000 - 2.34% October 13, 2005 7,000 3.18% November 22, 2006
7,000 2.34% November 14, 2005 : 5,000 2.69% December 12, 2006
5,000 2.35% November 14, 2005 5,000 2.67% December 18, 2006
5,000 2.33% November 17, 2005 4,000 2.50% January 22, 2007
5,000 2.33% November 21, 2005 5,000 2.57% . . February 12, 2007
7,000 241% January 9, 2006 3,000 3.14% September 18, 2007
6,000 1.94% January 23, 2006 2,000 3.06% September 24, 2007
10,000 2.74% January 30, 2006 1,000 2.91% October 1, 2007

5,000 2.66% February 2, 2006 5,000 3.45% February 11, 2009
5,000 2.00% February 13, 2006

Certain investment securities and real estate loans are pledged as collateral to secure these borrowings (see Notes 3 and
4). The Company had unused borrowing capacity with the Federal Home Loan Bank of $13 million at December 31, 2004
and $9 million at December 31, 2003.
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As of December 31, 2004, the Company had $18 million of additional borrowing capacity in the form of security
repurchase agreements with two investment banking firms and unused federal funds lines of credit of $18 million with
correspondent banks. The highest amount of borrowings outstanding at any month end during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2004 consisted of $191 million of borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank and $17 million of overnight
borrowings in the form of securities sold under repurchase agreements.

The Company, as of December 31, 2003, had borrowings of $124 million obtained from the Federal Home Loan Bank.
Of these Federal Home Loan Bank advances outstanding at December 31, 2003, $50 million are maturing within one year.
During 2003, the highest amount of borrowings outstanding at any month end consisted of $124 million of advances from the
Federal Home Loan Bank and $15 million of overnight borrowings in the form of securities sold under repurchase
agreements.

The table below sets forth information, as of December 31, 2003, with respect to the amounts, in thousands of dollars,
and the terms of the borrowings that the Company had obtained from the Federal Home Loan Bank. These advances, along
with securities sold under agreements to repurchase, have a weighted-average annualized interest rate of 2.44%.

Principal Per Annum Principal - Per Annum
Amounts Interest Rate Maturity Dates Amounts Interest Rate Maturity Dates
(Dollars in thousands) : (Dollars in thousands)
$ 5,000 1.40% February 18, 2004 $2,000 2.94% August 28, 2006
15,000 3.17% June 21,2004 3,000 2.56% September 18, 2006
20,000 2.25% September 20, 2004 3,000 2.49% September 25, 2006
10,000 : 2.20% November 15, 2004 5,000 2.35% October 2, 2006
9,000 1.93% February 18, 2005 2,000 2.40% October 2, 2006
- 5,000 2.24% August 29, 2005 5,000 2.69% December 12, 2006
10,000 2.70% September 19, 2005 5,000 2.67% December 18, 2006
3,000 1.93% September 19, 2005 3,000 3.14% September 18, 2007
5,000 1.76% December 31, 2005 2,000 3.06% September 24, 2007
5,000 ' 2.50% February 21, 2006 1,000 2.91% October 1, 2007
6,000 2.34% February 28, 2006 ’

These Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings were obtained in accordance with the Company’s asset/liability
management objective to reduce the Company’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Junior Subordinated Debentures. Pursuant to rulings of the Federal Reserve Board, bank holding companies have been
permitted to issue long term subordinated debt instruments that will, subject to certain conditions, qualify as and, therefore,
augment capital for regulatory purposes. Pursuant to those rulings, in 2002, the Company formed subsidiary grantor trusts to
sell and issue to institutional investors a total of $17 million principal amount of floating junior trust preferred securities
(“trust preferred securities™) and received the net proceeds from those issuances in exchange for issuances to the grantor
trusts of $17 million principal amount of junior subordinated floating rate debentures (the “Debentures”), the payment terms
of which mirror those of the trust preferred securities. The payments of interest and principal by the Company on the
Debentures are used by the grantor trusts to make the payments that come due to the holders of the trust preferred securities
pursuant to the terms of those securities. As required by FIN 46 (which is described in “Note 2—Significant Accounting
Policies—Recent Accounting Pronouncements,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements), the trusts were deconsolidated as
of March 31, 2004. Such deconsolidation had no material impact on the financial condition or results of operation. -

63



PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

In October 2004, another grantor trust was established that issued an additional $10 million of trust preferred securities
to an institutional investor and, in connection therewith, an additional $10 million principal amount junior subordinated
floating rate debentures were issued in exchange for the proceeds raised from the sale of those trust preferred securities.

Set forth below is certain information regarding the terms of the Debentures that were outstanding as of December 31,
2004:

Original Issue Dates Principal Amount Interest Rate Maturity Date
(Dollars in thousands) ' '
June 2002 g $5,155 LIBOR plus 3.75%®  June 2032
August 2002 5,155 LIBOR plus 3.625% @ August 2032
September 2002 7,217 LIBOR plus 3.40%"  September 2032
October 2004 10,310 LIBOR plus 2.00%®  October 2034
Total ‘ $27,837

(1) Interest rate resets quarterly.
(2) Interest rate resets semi-annually.

These Debentures require quarterly or semi-annual interest payments and are redeemable at our option begmmng 5
years after their respective original issue dates.

Under the Federal Reserve Board rulings, the borrowings evidenced by the Debentures, which are subordinated to all
other borrowings that are outstanding or which we may obtain in the future, are eligible (subject to certain limitations) to
qualify and, at December 31, 2004, $25.8 million of those Debentures qualified as Tier I capital, while the remaining $2.8

million qualified as Tier II capital for regulatory purposes.

8.  Transactions with Related Parties

The directors of the Company and the Bank, and certain of the businesses with which they are associated, have banking
transactions with the Company in the ordinary course of business. All loans and commitments to loan included in such
transactions were made in accordance with applicable laws and on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and
collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with persons of similar creditworthiness that were

not affiliated with the Company, and did not present any undue risk of collectibility.

The following is a summary of loan transactions with directors of the Company and certain of their associated
businesses:

Year Ended
December 31,

20040 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

$1,271  $1,310

Beginning balance

New loans granted 223 1,103
Principal repayments (222) (1,142)
Ending balance $1,272  $1271

(1) Includes loans made to executive officers who are not also directors totahng $93,000 and $45,000 in 2004 and 2003,
" respectively.

Deposits by the Company held by the Bank at December 31, 2004 and 2003 amounted to approximately $35 million
and $37 million, respectively.
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9. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following for the years ended December 31:

(Dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Current taxes: :
Federal $2,561 $1,349 §$1,024
State : ‘ ' 437 418 192
Total current taxes 2,998 1,767 1,216
Deferred taxes:
Federal 296 (433) (112)
State . 147 (174) (60)
Total deferred taxes 443  (607) (172)
Total income tax expense $3,441 $1,160 $1,044

The components of net deferred tax asset are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities): .
Allowance for loan losses $1,808 $1,768
Operational loss accrual — 9
Deferred organizational and start-up expenses 16 22
Other accrued expenses 65 346
State taxes 292 156
Deferred compensation ' : 212 141
Depreciation and amortization _ 277) (155)
Deferred loan origination costs : : (585) (344)
Deferred state taxes ‘ (117 (167
Unrealized losses on securities » : 1,024 999
Other, net (81) —
Total net deferred tax assets $2,357 $2,775 .

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax rates are summarized
as follows: .

Year Ended December 31,

. 2004 2003 2002
Federal income tax based on statutory rate .34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State franchise tax net of federal income tax benefit 7.2 7.2 7.2
Permanent differences® — (4.6) —
Other 0.2 (0.8) (4)
Total income tax expense ‘ o 414% 35.8% 40.8%

(1) Permanent differences in 2003 primarily relates to tax free dividends received on investments during 2003, which were
sold in April, 2004.
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10. Net Income Per Share

The following data shows a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators used in computing income per share
and the weighted average number of shares of potentially dilutive common stock.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income available to common shareholders

used in basic income per share $4,863 $2,082 $1,516
Basic income per share $0.48 $0.31 $0.24
Weighted average number of common shares used in

basic income per share 10,082,049 6,578,603 6,377,642
Effect of dilutive securities:

Options 515,384 287,567 159,214
Weighted number of common shares and potential dilutive

common shares used in diluted income per share 10,597,433 6,866,170 6,536,856

Diluted income per share $0.46 $0.30 $0.23

11. Shareholders’ Equity

In June 2000, the Company sold 2,611,608 shares of its common stock in a public offering registered under the
Securities Act of 1933. Proceeds of this public offering, net of underwriting discounts, commissions and other expenses of
$2,366,000, totaled $18,527,000. In addition, the Company issued warrants to the managing underwriter for the public
offering to purchase 250,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $9.60 per share. These warrants expire on June
14, 2005. In December 2003, the Company sold 3,680,000 shares at a price of $9.25 per share. The net offering proceeds
(after deducting underwriting commissions and offering expenses) totaled $31,178,000. In addition, the Company issued
warrants to the managing underwriter for the public offering to purchase 224,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price
of $11.10 per share. These warrants expire on December 8, 2008.

Under California law, the directors of the Bank may declare cash dividends to the Company, its sole shareholder,
subject to the restriction that the amount available for the payment of cash dividends may not exceed the lesser of (i) the
Bank’s retained earnings or (ii) its net income for its last three fiscal years (less the amount of any distributions to
shareholders made during such period). Cash dividends to shareholders in excess of that amount may be made only with the
prior approval of the Commissioner of the California Department of Financial Institutions (“Commissioner”). If the
Commissioner finds that the shareholders’ equity of the Bank is not adequate, or that the making by the Bank of a distribution
to shareholders would be unsafe or unsound for the Bank, the Commissioner can order the Bank not to make any distribution
to shareholders.

The ability of the Bank to pay dividends is further restricted under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ‘
Improvement Act of 1991 which prohibits an FDIC-insured bank from paying dividends if, after making such payment, the
bank would fail to meet any of its minimum capital requirements. Under the Financial Institutions Supervisory Act and
Federal Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989, federal banking regulators also bave authority
to prohibit FDIC-insured financial institutions from engaging in business practices which are considered to be unsafe or
unsound. It is possible, depending upon the financial condition of the Bank and other factors, that those regulators could
assert that the payment of dividends in some circumstances might constitute unsafe or unsound practices. Therefore, the
Bank’s federal regulatory agency might prohibit the payment of dividends even though such payments would otherwise be
technically permissible.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under various non-cancelable operating leases. Rent expense for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $1,681,000, $1,646,000, and $1,648,000, respectively. Sublease '
income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $62,000, $131,000, and $100,000, respectively.

Future minimum non-cancelable lease commitments were as follows at December 31, 2004:

(Dollars in thousands)
2005 ' 2,179
- 2006 . 1,790
2007 ) ' : 1,314
2008 1,253
2009 . 478
Thereafter 280
Total _ $7,294

In order to meet the financing needs of its customers in the normal course of business, the Company is party to
financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of
the amount recognized in the consolidated financial statements. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company was
committed to fund certain loans (inclusive of mortgages held for sale) amounting to approximately $167 million and $157
million, respectively. The contractual amounts of credit-related financial instruments such as commitments to extend credit,
credit-card arrangements, and letters of credit represent the amounts of potential accounting loss should the contract be fully
drawn upon, the customer default, and the value of any existing collateral become worthless.

The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments to extend credit and conditional obligations as it
does for on-balance sheet instruments. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates; however, since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation
of the customer. Collateral held varies, but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment,
residential real estate and income-producing commercial properties.

The Company is subject to legal actions normally associated with financial institutions. At December 31, 2004 and »
2003, the Company did not have any pending legal proceedings that are expected to be material to its consolidated financial
condition or results of operations. ’

The Company is required to purchase stock in the Federal Reserve Bank in an amount equal to 6% of its capital, one-
half of which must be paid currently with the balance due upon request.

The Bank is a tﬁember of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") and therefore, is required to purchase FHLB stock in-
an amount equal to the lesser of 1% of the Bank’s real estate loans that are secured by residential properties, or 5% of total
advances.
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13. Derivative Financial Instruments

At December 31, 2004, approximately $42 million of loans held for sale were designated as fair value hedges and
approximately $4 million mortgage loan commitments identified as non-designated derivate instruments. The value of the net
interest rate locks with investors related to these hedges was $149,000. At December 31, 2003, approximately $19 million of
loans held for sale were designed as fair value hedges and approximately $13 million mortgage loan commitments identified
as non-designated derivate instruments. The value of the net interest rate locks with investors related to these hedges was
$22,000. The Company did not have any significant ineffective hedges as of December 31, 2004 or 2003.

14. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a 401(k) plan that covers substantially all full-time employees. It permits voluntary contributions by
employees, a portion of which are matched by the Company. The Company’s expenses relating to its contributions to the
401(k) plan for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $252,000, $286,000 and $191,000, respectively.

15. Regulatory Matters and Capital/Operaﬁng Plans

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can lead to certain mandatory and possibly additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct and material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the
Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and
certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classifications
are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier I capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes that, as of
December 31, 2004, that the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2004, based on the applicable capital adequacy regulations, the Company and the Bank are
categorized as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as “well
capitalized,” the Company and the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based and Tier I leverage ratios
as set forth in the following tables.

Applicable Federal Regulatory Requirement

For Capital To be
Adeguacy Categorized
Actual Purposes As Well Capitalized
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in thousands)

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets:

Company $108,318 17.3% $50,125 Atleast8.0% $62,656 Atleast 10.0%

Bank , 66,365 10.7% 49,651 Atleast8.0% 62,063 Atleast 10.0%
Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets:

Company $101,932 16.3% $25,062 Atleast4.0% $37,594 At least 6.0%

Bank 62,356 10.1% 24,825 Atleast4.0% 37,238 Atleast 6.0%
Tier I Capital to Average Assets: '

Company $101,932 12.2% $33,375 Atleast4.0% $41,719 Atleast5.0%

Bank 62,356 7.5% 33,342 Atleast4.0% 41,677 Atleast 5.0%
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The actual capital amounts and ratios of the Company and the Bank at December 31, 2003 are presented in the

following table:

Applicable Federal Regulatory Requirement

For Capital To be
Adequacy Categorized
Actual " Purposes As Well Capitalized
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets:
Company $92,237 19.2% $38,406 Atleast 8.0% $48,008 At least 10.0%
Bank 54403 11.3% 38,379 Atleast8.0% 47,974 Atleast 10.0%
Tier [ Capital to Risk Weighted Assets: .
Company $88,394 18.4% $19,203 Atleast4.0% $28,805 Atleast6.0%
Bank 50,460 10.5% 19,190 Atleast4.0% 28,785 At least 6.0%
Tier I Capital to Average Assets: : ‘ .
Company . $88,394 14.0% $25,324 "Atleast4.0% $31,655 Atleast5.0%
Bank ' 50,450 7.4% 27,426 Atleast4.0% 34,283 Atleast 5.0%

There are no conditions or events that management believes have changed the Company’s or the Bank’s classification

as well-capitalized since December 31, 2004.

16. Parent Company Only Information

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets

Due from banks and interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions

Investment in subsidiaries

Securities available for sale, at fair value

Loans (net of allowance of $23 and $0, respectively)
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
- Liabilities

Subordinated debentures

Shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
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December 31,

2004 " 2003
$35,502 - $36,682
62,127 50,187
227 454
4,052 —
1,108 965
$103,016 $88,288
$203 $591
27,837 17,527
74,976 70,170
$103,016 $88,288




PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Condensed Statements of Income
(Dollars in thousands)

Interest income

Interest expense

Other expenses

Equity in undistributed earnings of Subsidiaries

Net income

Condensed Statement of Cash Fldws
(Dollars in thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net income v

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:

Net amortization of premium on securities

(Increase) decrease in other assets

Undistributed earnings of subsidiary

Other, net

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Net increase in loans

Purchase of investment security available for sale

Principal payments received for investment security available for sale
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of offering expenses

Increase in subordinated debentures

Capital contribution to subsidiaries

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period
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Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
$719 $118 $195
985 848 352
41 (15) 127
5,170 2,797 1,800
$4,863 $2,082 $1,516
Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
$4,863 $2,082 $1,516
6 39 13
(145) (59) (782)
(5,170)  (2,797) (1,800)
23 - (1)
(388) 483 108
(811) (252) (946)
(4,075)
— —  (2,052)
227 1,148 395
(3,848) 1,148. (1,657)
17 9 254
(38) 31,178 —_
10,310 — 17,527
(6,810)  (2,250) (15,177)
3,479 28,937 2,604
(1,180) 29,833 1
36,682 6,849 6,848
$35,502  $36,682 $6,849




PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

17. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates are made at a discreet point in time based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instruments. Because no active market exists for a significant portion of the Company’s financial instruments,
fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial
instruments, prepayment assumptions, future expected loss experience and other such factors. These estimates are subjective
in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

In addition, the fair value estimates are based on existing on and off-balance sheet financial instruments without
attempting to estimate the value of existing and anticipated future customer relationships and the value of assets and
liabilities that are not considered financial instruments. Significant assets and liabilities that are not considered financial
assets or liabilities include other real estate owned and premises and equipment.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments.
Cash and Cash Equivalents. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates its carrying value.

Interest-Bearing Deposits with Financial Institutions. The fair values of interest-bearing deposits maturing within
ninety days approximate their carrying values.

Securities Available for Sale. For investment securities, fair value equals quoted market price, if available. If a quoted
market price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Loans Held for Sale. The fair value of loans held for sale is based on commitments on hand from investors or
prevailing market prices.

Loans. The fair value for loans with variable interest rates is the carrying amount. The fair value of fixed rate loans is
derived by calculating the discounted value of future cash flows expected to be received by the various homogeneous
categories of loans. All loans have been adjusted to reflect changes in credit risk.

Deposits. The fair value of demand deposits, savings deposits, and money market deposits is defined as the amounts
payable on demand at vear-end. The fair value of fixed maturity certificates of deposit is estimated based on the discounted
value of the future cash flows expected to be paid on the deposits.

Borrowings. The fair value of borrowings is the carrying amount for those borrowings that mature on a daily basis. The
fair value of term borrowings is derived by calculatmg the discounted value of future cash flows expected to be paid out by
the Company.

Junior subordinated debentures. The fair value of the junior subordinated debentures is defined as the ca:rymg amount.
These securities are variable rate in nature and reprice quarterly or semi-annually.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Commitments to Extend Credit and Standby Letters of Credit. The fair value of commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit, are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the
remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties’ credit standing. These fees are not deemed significant at December
31, 2004 and 2003.

The estimated fair values and related carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

December 31,
2004 2003

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

. (Dollars in thousands)

Financial Assets: ' e
Cash and cash equivalents $96,109  $96,109  $59,785  $59,785
Interest-bearing deposits with financial

institutions 738 738 605 605
Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home

Loan Bank stock 10,662 10,662 7,546 7,546
Securities available for sale 169,412 169,412 273,995 273,995
Loans held for sale 42,348 42,348 19,168 19,168
Loans, net - 511,827 512,493 351,071 352,022

Financial Liabilities:

Noninterest bearing deposits 175,329 175,329 156,890 156,890
Interest-bearing deposits 358,234 358,781 338,444 340,321
Borrowings 204,754 203,968 138,372 138,471
Junior subordinated debentures 27,837 27.837 17,527 17,527

18. Business Segment Information

The Company has two reportable business segments, the commercial banking division and the mortgage banking
division. The commercial bank segment provides small and medium-size businesses, professional firms and individuals with
a diversified range of products and services such as various types of deposit accounts, various types of commercial and
consumer loans, cash management services, and Internet banking services. The mortgage banking segment originates and
purchases residential mortgages that, for the most part, are resold within 30 days to long-term investors in the secondary
residential mortgage market. .
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Since the Company derives all of its revenues from interest and noninterest income and interest expense is its most
significant expense, these two segments are reported below using net interest income (interest income less interest expense)
and noninterest income (primarily net gains on sales of loans held for sale and fee income) for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002. The Company does not allocate general and administrative expenses or income taxes to the segments.

(Dollars in thousands) ) Commercial Mortgage Other Total
Net interest income for the period ended:
December 31,
2004 $14914  $4,159  $3,673 $22,746
2003 $7,111 $2,998 $4,431 314,540
2002 $5,713 $2,771 $3,560 $12,044
Noninterest income for the period ended:
December 31, ' ‘
2004 $1,626 $2,000  $1,053 $4,679
2003 81,496 $5,421 $739  $7,656
2002 $1,056  $4,742 $298  $6,096
Segment Assets at:
December 31, 2004 $436,393 $120,224 $288,922 3$845,539
December 31, 2003 $325,978 $45,812 $352,699 $724,489
19. Quarterly Data
Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
‘Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Total interest income $7,937 $8,069 $9,094 $9,718 $6,242 $6,196 $5965 $7,151
Total interest expense 2,757 2,887 3,065 3363 2,739 2855 2,649 2,771
Net interest income 5,180 5,182 6,029 6,355 3,503 3,341 3,316 4,380
Provision for loan losses 615 258 50 50 375 222 518 400
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 4565 = 4,924 5979 6,305 3,128 3,119 2,798 3,980
Noninterest income 1,230 1,011 1,051 1,387 2,363 2,532 1,937 824
Noninterest expense 4497 4310 4502 4839 4337 4516 4,155 4431
Income before income taxes 1,298 1,625 2,528 2,853 1,154 1,135 580 373
Income tax expense 514 685 - 1,046 1,196 439 427 208 86
Net income $784 $940 $1,482 $1,657 $715 $708 $372 $287
Net income per share:
Basic $0.08 $0.09 $0.15 $0.16 $0.11 $0.11 $0.06  $0.03
Diluted $0.07 $0.09 $0.14 ‘ $0.16  $0.11 $0.11 $0.05  $0.03
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Year Ended December 31, 2002

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands,

' except per share data)
Total interest income $3,354 $3,538 §$5,165 $6,294
Total interest expense 978 1,078 1,750 2,501
Net interest income " 2376 2460 3415 3793
Provision for loan losses 50 155 250‘ 300
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 2,326 2,305 3,165 3,493
Noninterest income ' 1,035 1,070 1,373 2,618
Noninterest expense » 3,169 3,637 3,606 4,413
Income (loss) before income taxes 192 (262) 932 1,698
Income tax expense (benefit) - 72 99) 376 695
Net income (loss) - $120 $(163) $556  $1,003

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $0.02 $(0.03) $0.09 $0.16
Diluted $0.02 - $(0.03) $0.08 - $0.16

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND _
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended) are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our
reports filed under that Act (the Exchange Act), such as this Annual Report on Form 10-K, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our
disclosure controls and procedures also are designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosures.

Our management, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures in effect as of December 31, 2004.
Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2004,
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that material information, relating to
the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, required to be included in our Exchange Act reports, including this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, is made known to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, on
a timely basis. :

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December
31, 2004, that has materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial ‘
reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Our internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Internal control over financial reporting includes those written policies and
procedures that: '
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¢ pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
_dispositions of our assets; _ :

«  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial -
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

+  provide reasonable assurance that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorization of our management and directors; and

»  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of assets that could have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting includes the controls themselves, monitoring and internal auditing practices
and actions taken to correct deficiencies as identified.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or because the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management’s Assessment and Determination

Our management assessed the effectiveness of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004, based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in “Internal Control —
Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Management’s
assessment included an evaluation of the design and the testing of the operational effectiveness of Pacific Mercantile

Bancorp’s internal contro] over financial reporting. Management reviewed the results of its assessment with the Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors.

Based on this assessment, management determined that, as of December 31, 2004, Pacific Mercantile Bancorp
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

Grant Thornton LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, which audited and reported on our consolidated

financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued an attestation report on management’s
assessment of internal control over financial reporting which is set forth below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and Subsidiaries:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and
Subsidiaries Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and
Subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and Subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the
design of the operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the |
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedurés may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and Subsidiaries maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and Subsidiaries maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2004 and our report dated March 10, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion.

s/ GRANT THORNTON

Irvine, California
March 10, 2005

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None




PARTIII
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRAN'T

Except for information regarding our executive officers which is included in Part I of this Report, the information
called for by Item 10 is incorporated herein by reference from our definitive proxy statement which is to be filed with the

Commission on or before April 29, 2005 for purposes of our 2005 Annual Shareholders Meeting.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference from our definitive proxy statement which is
to be filed with the Commission on or before April 29, 2005 for purposes of our 2005 Annual Shareholders Meeting.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except for the information set forth below relating to our equity compensation plans, the information required by Item
12 is incorporated herein by reference from our definitive proxy statement which is to be filed with the Commission on or

before April 29, 2005 for purposes of our 2005 Annual Shareholders Meeting,

The following table provides information relating to our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2004:

Column A Column B Column C
' Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for
Future
Issuance
Number of under Equity
Securities to Weighted- Compensation
Be Issued Average Plans
upon Exercise (Excluding
Exercise of Price of Securities
Outstanding~  Outstanding Reflected in
Qptions Options Column A)
Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders . 1,346,348 $7.73 301,882
Equity compénsation plans not approved by shareholder — — —
1,346,348 $7.73 . 301,882

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information réquired by Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference from our definitive proxy statement which is
scheduled to be filed with the Commission on or before April 29, 2005 for purposes of our 2005 Annual Shareholders

Meeting.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference from our definitive proxy statement to be filed

with the Commission on or before April 29, 2005 for purposes of our 2005 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.- =~ °
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K:
(1) Financial Statements:

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 on Page 44 of this Report.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules: o

All schedules are omitted as the information is not required, is not material or is othérwise furnished.
(3) Exhibits,

See Index to Exhibits on Pége E—l of this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regisn'ant.has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto-duly authorized, on the 10th day of March 2005.

PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP

By: /s/  RAYMOND E. DELLERBA

Raymond E. Dellerba
President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below hereby appoints Raymond E. Dellerba, and Nahcy Grz{y, and each of them
individually, as his or her attorney-in-fact, with full power and authority, to sign in his or her behalf and in each capacity -
stated below, and 1o file, all amendments and/or supplements to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the.
following officers and directors of the Registrant in the capacities indicated on March 10, 2005.

Signature : Title
/s/ RayMOND E. DELLERBA * - President, Chief Executive Officer and

Raymond E. Dellerba Director Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ NaNcy GrRay Executive Vice President and Chief

Nancy Gray Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)
/$/  GEORGE WELLS Chairman of the Board and Director
George Wells
/s/  RONALD W. CHRISLIP Director

Ronald W. Chrislip

/s/ JuLlA M. DIGIOVANNI Director
- Julia M. Digiovanni

/s/- WARREN T. FINLEY Director
Warren T. Finley
/s/  JoHN THOMAS, M.D. . Director

John Thomas, M.D.

/s/  ROBERT E. WILLIAMS Director
Robert E. Williams
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Exhibit

Plan of Reorganization and Merger Agreement, dated as of February 29, 2000, between
Pacific Mercantile Bank and Pacific Mercantile Bancorp®

Articles of Incorporation of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp®”

Bylaws of Paciﬁc Mercantile Bancorp!”

Specimen form of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp Common Stock Certificate™

1999 Incentive Stock Option and Nonqualified Option Plan (the “1999 Plan™)®

Form of Stock Option Agreement pertaining to the 1999 Plan®

Employment Agreement, dated April 23, 1999 between Raymond E. Dellerba and Pacific Mercantile B.ank“’
Office Space Lease, dated December 8, 1999, between the Irvine Company and Pacific Mercantile Bank®
Sublease, dated as of August 3, 1999, between Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and Pacific Mercantile Bank®

Sublease, dated as of September 16, 1998, between Washington Mutual Bank, FA, and Pacific Mercantile
Bank® : ‘

Standard Internet Banking System Licensing Agreement, dated as of January 29, 1999, between
Q-UP Systems and Pacific Mercantile Bank®

ODFI—Originator Agreement for Automated Clearing House Entries, dated as of February 16, 1999, between
eFunds Corporation and Pacific Mercantile Bank®

Agreement, dated September 15, 1998, between Fiserv Solutions, Inc. and Pacific Mercantile Bank”

Form of Underwriter’s Warrant Agreement with Paulson Investment Company®

Commercial Office Building Lease dated February 26, 2001 between Metro Point 13580, Lot Three,
a California limited partnership, and Pacific Mercantile Bank®

Form of Underwriting Agreement entered into by the Company with Paulson Investment Co., Inc.
on December 5, 2003¢

Form of Representative’s Warrant issued to Paulson Investment Company on December 8, 2003 .

Office Space Lease dated March 9, 2001 between California State Teachers Retirement System
and Pacific Mercantile Bank®

Assignment & Assumption of Office Space Lease, dated April 1, 2003, between First National Bank
and Pacific Mercantile Bank®

Office Space Lease,‘dated Sept. 14, 2003, between Leonard & Gerald Katz and Pacific Mercantile Bank®
Pacific Mercantile Bancorp 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”)

" Subsidiaries of the Company

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Power of Attorney (contained on the signature page of Annual Report)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2003
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2003
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2003
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2003

)
0]

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement (No. 333-33452) on
Form S-1 filed with the Commission on June 14, 2000 (the “S-1 Registration Statement”).
Incorporated by reference to the Exhibit 10.8 to the above referenced S-1 Registration Statement.
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Incorporated by reference to the Exhibit 1.2 to the above referenced S-1 Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to the same numbered exhibit to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Registration Statement on Form S-2 (No. 333-110377) filed with the SEC
on November 10, 2003 (the “S-2 Registration Statement”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 to the above referenced S-2 Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the above referenced S-2 Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the above referenced S-2 Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the above referenced S-2 Registration Statement.
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- Exhibit 10.19
PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP
2004 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

This 2004 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN (the “Plan”) is hereby established by Pacific Mercantile Bancorp, a California
corporation (the “Company”’), and adopted by its Board of Directors as of February 17, 2004 (the “Effective Date”).

Section 1. Purposes of the Plan

1.1 Purposes. The purposes of the Plan are (a) to enhance the ability of the Company and its Affiliated Companies to
attract and retain the services of officers, qualified employees and directors of the Company, upon whose judgment, initiative
and efforts the successful conduct and development of the Company’s businesses largely depends, and (b) to provide
additional incentives to such persons to devote their utmost effort and skill to the advancement and betterment of the
Company, by providing them an opportunity to participate in the ownership of the Company and thereby have an interest in
the success and increased value of the Company that coincides with the financial interests of the Company’s shareholders.

Section 2. Definitions
For purposes of this Plan, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

2.1 Acquiring Entity. “Acquiring Entity” means the corporation or other entity that (i) on consummation of a merger or
consolidation in which the Company is a party, will be the owner of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of the
Surviving Entity in such merger or consolidation, or (ii) on consummation of a sale of all or substantially all of the
Company’s assets will become or be the owner of such assets or of the securities or other ownership interests representing at
least a majority of the voting power of any corporation or other entity that becomes the owner of such assets.

2.2 Administrator. “Administrator” means the Board or, if the Board delegates responsibility for any matter to the
Committee, the term Administrator shall mean the Committee.

2.3 Affiliated Company. “Affiliated Company” means any “parent corporation” or “subsidiary corporation” of the
Company, whether now existing or hereafter created or acquired, as those terms are defined in Sections 424{e) and 424(f) of
the Code, respectively.

2.4 Board. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
2.5 Change in Control. “Change in Control” means:

(a) The acquisition, directly or indirectly, in one transaction or a series of related transactions, by any person or
group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act) of the beneficial ownership of securities of the
Company possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined voting power of all outstanding securities of
the Company;

(b) A merger or consolidation in which the Company is not the Surviving Entity, except for a transaction in
which the Persons who, immediately prior to such merger or consolidation, were the holders of the outstanding voting
securities of the Company, as a result of their ownership thereof, become the holders (in the aggregate) of securities
possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the
Surviving Entity or the Acquiring Entity (as the case may be) in such merger or consolidation immediately after
consummation thereof; .

(c) A reverse merger in which the Company is the Surviving Entity, but in which the holders of the Company’s
outstanding voting securities immediately prior to such merger will hold, in the aggregate, immediately after v
consummation of such merger, securities possessing less than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined voting power
of all outstanding voting securities of the Company or its Acquiring Entity, if any, in such merger;

(d) The sale, transfer or other disposition (in one transaction or a series of related transactions) of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company, except for a transaction in which the Company will receive, in exchange
for the sale of such assets, securities possessing more than fifty percent (50%) of the total combined voting power of all
outstanding voting securities of the Acquiring Entity in such transaction(s); or

(e) The approval by the Shareholders of the Company ofa plan or proposal for the liquidation or dissolution of
the Company.




2.6 Code. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

2.7 Committee. “Committee” means a committee of two or more members of the Board appointed to admnuster the .
Plan, as set forth in Section 7.1 hereof.

2.8 Common Stock. “Common Stock” means the Common Stock of the Company, subject to adjustment pursuant to
Section 4.2 hereof.

2.9 Covered Employee. “Covered Employee” means the chief executive officer of the Company (or the individual
acting in such capacity) and the four (4) other individuals that are the highest compensated officers of the Company for the
relevant taxable year for whom total compensation is required to be reported to shareholders under the Exchange Act.

2.10 Disability. “Disability” means permanent and total disability as defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code. The
Administrator’s determination of a Dlsablhty or the absence thereof shall be conclusive and binding on all interested parties.

2.11 Effective Date. “Effective Date” means the date on WhJCh the Plan is adopted by the Board, as set forth on the first
page hereof.

2.12 Exchange Act. “Exchange Act” means the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

2.13 Exercise Price. “Exercise Price” means the purchase price per share of Common Stock payable upon exercise of
an Option.

2.14 Fair Market Value. “Fair Market Value” on any given date means the value of one share of Common Stock,
determined as follows:

(a) If the Common Stock is then listed or admitted to trading on a Nasdaq market system or a stock exchange
which reports closing sale prices, the Fair Market Value shall be the closing sale price on the date of valuation on such
Nasdaq market system or principal stock exchange on which the Common Stock is then listed or admitted to trading,
or, if no closing sale price is quoted on such day, then the Fair Market Value shall be the closing sale price of the
Common Stock on such Nasdaq market system or such exchange on the next preceding day for which a closing sale
price is reported.

(b) If the Common Stock is not then listéd or admitted to trading on a Nasdaq market system or a stock exchange
which reports closing sale prices, the Fair Market Value shall be the average of the closing bid and asked prices of the
Common Stock in the over-the-counter market on the date of valuation.

(c) If neither (a) nor (b) is applicable as of the date of valuation, then the Fair Market Value shall be determined
by the Administrator in good faith using any reasonable method of evaluation, which determination shall be conclusive
and binding on all interested parties. :

2.15 Incentive Option. “Incentive Option” means any Option designated and qualified as an “incentive stock option” as
defined in Section 422 of the Code. '

2.16 Incentive Option Agreement. “Incentive Option Agreement” means an Option Agreement with respect to an
Incentive Option.

2.17 Involuntary Termination. “Involuntary Termination” means the termination of a Participant’s Continuous Service
by reason of:

(a) Optionee’s involuntary dismissal or discharge by the Company or, following consummation of a Change in
Control, by the Successor Entity or Acquiring Entity (or any subsidiary thereof employing the Participant) for reasons
other than Misconduct, or

(b) Optionee’s voluntary resignation following (i) a change in Participant’s position with the Company (or parent
or any subsidiary thereof) or, following a Change in Control, with the Successor or Acquiring Entity (as the case may.
be) or any subsidiary thereof, which materially reduces Participant’s duties and responsibilities or the level of
management to which Participant reports, (ii) a reduction in Participant’s level of compensation (including base salary,
fringe benefits and target bonus under any performance based bonus or incentive programs) by more than ten percent
(10%), or (iii) a relocation of Participant’s principal place of employment by more than thirty.(30) miles, prov1ded and
only if such change, reduction or relocation is effected without Participant’s written consent.



2.18 Misconduct. Misconduct” of a Participant means (A) the commission of any act of fraud, embezzlement or
dishonesty by Participant which materially and adversely affects the business or reputation of the Company or any Affiliated
Company or, following a Change in Control of the Company, of any Successor Entity or Acquiring Entity (as the case may
be) in the Change in Control, or any Affiliated Company thereof, (B) any unauthorized use or disclosure by Participant of
confidential information or trade secrets of the Company or any Affiliated Company or, following a Change in Control of the
Company, of any Successor Entity or Acquiring Entity (as the case may be) in the Change in Control, or any Affiliated
Company thereof, (C) the continued refusal or omission by Participant to perform any material duties required of him or her
if such duties are consistent with duties customary for the position held by such Participant with the Company or any
Affiliated Company or, following a Change in Control of the Company, of any Successor Entity or Acquiring Entity (as the
case may be) in the Change in Control, or any Affiliated Company thereof, (D) any material act or omission by a Participant
involving malfeasance or gross negligence in the performance of Participant’s duties to, or material deviation from any of the
policies or directives of, the Company or any Affiliated Company or, following a Change in Control, of the Successor Entity
or Acquiring Entity (as the case may be) in the Change in Control or any Affiliated Company thereof, (E) conduct on the part
of Participant which constitutes the breach of any statutory or common law duty of loyalty to the Company or any Affiliated
Company or, following a Change in Control, to the Successor or Entity or Acquiring Entity (as the case may be), or any
Affiliated Company thereof, or (F) any illegal act by Participant which materially and adversely affects the business or
reputation of the Company or any Affiliated Company, or following a Change in Control, of the Successor Entity or
Acquiring Entity in the Change of Control or any Affiliated Company thereof, or the conviction of Participant as a felon.

2.19 NASD Dealer. “NASD Dealer” means a broker-dealer that is a member oi" the National Association of Securities
Dealers, Inc.

2.20 Non-Emplovee Director. “Non-employee Director” shall mean a director of the Company who is neither an’
employee nor an executive officer of the Company.

2.21 Nongqualified Option. “Nonqualified Option” means any Option that is not an Incentive Option. To the extent that
any Option designated as an Incentive Option fails in whole or in part to qualify as an Incentive Option, including, without
limitation, for failure to meet the limitations applicable to a 10% Shareholder or because it exceeds the annual limit prowded
for in Section 5.6 below, it shall to that extent constitute a Nonqualified Option.

2.22 Nongualified Option Agreement. “Nonqualified Option Agreement” means an Option Agreement with respect to a
Nongqualified Option. .

2.23 Qption. “Option” means any option to purchase Common Stock granted pursuant to the Plan.

2.24 Option Agreement. “Option Agreerhent” means the written agreement entered into between the Company and the
Optionee with respect to an Option granted under the Plan.

2.25 Optionee. “Optionee” means a Participant who holds an Option.
2.26 Participant. “Participant” means a Person who holds an Option or Restricted Stock under the Plan.

2.27 Person. “Person” means any natural person, any corporation, limited liability company, general or 11m1ted
partnership, trust, estate or unincorporated association or other entity.

2.28 Purchase Price. “Purchase Price” means the purchase price per share of Restricted Stock.

2.29 Restricted Stock. “Restricted Stock” means shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to Section 6 hereof subject
to any restrictions and conditions as are established pursuant to such Section 6.

2.30 Stock Purchase Agreement. “Stock Purchase Agreement” means the written agreement entered into between the
Company and a Participant with respect to the purchase of Restricted Stock under the Plan.

2.31 Substitute Options. “Substitute Options”™ means options to purchase Common Stock to be issued by the Successor
Entity or Acquiring Entity (as the case may be) in a Change of Control transaction, on terms approved by the Administrator,
in exchange for the cancellation or surrender, on consummation of the Change in Control, of Options granted under this Plan
and held by employees of the Company or any Subsidiary.

2.32 Substitute Restricted Stock. “Substitute Restricted Stock” means restricted stock to be issued by the Successor
Entity or Acquiring Entity (as the case may be) in a Change of Control transaction, on terms approved by the Administrator,
in exchange for the cancellation or surrender, on consummation of the Change in Control, of Restricted Stock issued this Plan
and held by employees of the Company or any Subsidiary.




2.33 10% Shareholder. “10% Shareholder” means a Person who, as of a relevant date, owns or is deemed to own (by
reason of the attribution rules applicable under Section 424(d) of the Code) stock possessing more than 10% of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or of an Affiliated Company.

Section 3. Eligibility

3.1 Incentive Options. Only employees of the Company or of an Affiliated Company (including officers of the
Company and members of the Board if they are employees of the Company or of an Affiliated Company) are eligible to
receive Incentive Options under the Plan.

3.2 Nongualified Options and Restricted Stock. Employees of the Company or of an Affiliated Company, officers of
the Company and members of the Board (whether or not employed by the Company or an Affiliated Company), are eligible
to receive Nonqualified Options or acquire Restricted Stock under the Plan, :

3.3 Section 162(m) Limitation. Subject to the provisions of Section 4.2, no employee of the Company or of an
Affiliated Company shall be eligible to be granted Options covering more than 100,000 shares of Common Stock during any
calendar year. . :

3.4 Restrictions. Notwithstanding Sections 3.1 and 3.2 above or any other provision of this Plan to the contrary, no
director or officer of the Company or any Affiliated Company shall be eligible to receive an Option or acquire Restricted
Stock, or any right to receive the same, pursuant to this Plan unless and until this Plan has been approved by a majority of the
shares present and entitled to vote at a meeting of the Company’s shareholders.

Section 4. Plan Shares

4.1 Shares Subject to the Plan. A total of 400,000 shares of Common Stock may be issued under the Plan, subject to
adjustment as to the number and kind of shares pursuant to Section 4.2 hereof. For purposes of this limitation, in the event
that (a) all or any portion of any Option or Restricted Stock granted or offered under the Plan can no longer under any
circumstances be exercised or purchased, or (b) any shares of Common Stock are reacquired by the Company which were
initially the subject of an Incentive Option Agreement, Nonqualified Option Agreement or Stock Purchase Agreement, the
shares of Common Stock allocable to the unexercised portion of such Option or such Stock Purchase Agreement, or the
shares so reacquired, shall again be available for grant or issuance under the Plan.

4.2 Changes in Capital Structure. In the event that the outstanding shares of Common Stock are hereafter increased or
decreased or changed into or exchanged for a different number or kind of shares or other securities of the Company by reason
of a recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, combination of shares, reclassification, stock dividend, or other similar
change in the capital structure of the Company, then appropriate adjustments shall be made by the Administrator to the
aggregate number and kind of shares issuable thereafter under this Plan, the number and kind of shares and the price per
share subject to outstanding Option Agreements and Stock Purchase Agreements and the limit on the number of shares under
Section 3.3 above, all in order to preserve, as neatly as practical, but not to increase, the benefits to Participants.

Section 5. Options

5.1 Qption Agreement. Each Option granted pursuant to this Plan shall be evidenced by an Option Agreement that shall
specify the number of shares subject thereto, the Exercise Price per share, and whether the Option is an Incentive Option or
Nonqualified Option. As soon as is practical following the grant of an Option, an Option Agreement shall be duly executed
and delivered by or on behalf of the Company to the Optionee to whom such Option was granted. Each Option Agreement -
shall be in such form and contain such additional terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Plan, as
the Administrator shall, from time to time, deem desirable, including, without limitation, the imposition of any rights of first
refusal and resale obligations upon any shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to an Option Agreement. Each Option
Agreement may be different from each other Option Agreement.

5.2 Exercise Price. The Exercise Price per share of Common Stock covered by each Option shall be determined by the
Administrator, subject to the following: (a) the Exercise Price of an Incentive Option and any Nonqualified Option shall not
be less than 100% of Fair Market Value on the date that Option is granted, and (b) notwithstanding the foregoing, if the
Person to whom an Incentive Option is granted is a 10% Shareholder on the date of grant, the Exercise Price shall not be less
than 110% of Fair Market Value on the date the Option is granted. However, an Option may be granted with an exercise price
lower than that set forth in the preceding sentence if such Option is granted pursuant to an assumption or substitution for
another option in a manner satisfying the provisions of Section 424 of the Code.



5.3 Payment of Exercise Price. Payment of the Exercise Price shall be made upon exercise of an Option and may be
made, in the discretion of the Administrator, subject to any legal restrictions, by: (a) cash; (b) check; (c) the surrender of
shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to the exercise of an Option (provided that shares acquired pursuant to the
exercise of options granted by the Company must have been held by the Optionee for the requisite period necessary to avoid
a charge to the Company’s earnings for financial reporting purposes), which surrendered shares shall be valued at Fair
Market Value as of the date of such exercise; (d) the cancellation of indebtedness of the Company to the Optionee; (e) the
waiver of compensation due or accrued to the Optionee for services rendered; (f) a “same day sale” commitment from the
Optionee and an NASD Dealer whereby the Optionee irrevocably elects to exercise the Option and to sell a portion of the
shares so purchased to pay for the Exercise Price and whereby the NASD Dealer irrevocably commits upon receipt of such
shares to forward the Exercise Price directly to the Company; (g) a “margin” commitment from the Optionee and an NASD
Dealer whereby the Optionee irrevocably elects to exercise the Option and to pledge the shares so purchased to the NASD
Dealer in a margin account as security for a loan from the NASD Dealer in the amount of the Exercise Price, and whereby the
NASD Dealer irrevocably commits upon receipt of such shares to forward the Exercise Price directly to the Company; or (g)
any combination of the foregomg methods of payment or any other consideration or method of payment as shall be permitted
by applicable law. .

5.4 Term and Termination of Options. The term and provisions for termination of each Option shall be as fixed by the
Administrator, but no Option may be exercisable more than ten (10) years after the date it is granted. An Incentive Option- -
granted to a person who is a 10% Shareholder on the date of grant shall not be exercisable more than five (5) years after the
date it is granted.

5.5 Vesting and Exercise of Options. Each Option shall vest and become exercisable in one or more installments at
such time or times and subject to such conditions, including without limitation the achievement of spec1ﬁed performance
goals or objectives, as shall be determined by the Administrator.

5.6 Annual Iimit on Incentive Options. To the extent required for “incentive stock option” treatment under Section 422
of the Code, the aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the time of grant) of the Common Stock, with respect to
which Incentive Options granted under this Plan and any other plan of the Company or any Affiliated Company become
exercisable for the first time by an Optionee during any calendar year, shall not exceed $100,000.

5.7 Nontransferability of Options. Except as otherwise provided by the Administrator in an Option Agreement and as
permissible under applicable law, no Option shall be assignable or transferable except by will or the laws of descent and
distribution, and during the life of the Optionee shall be exercisable only by such Optionee.

5.8 No Rights as Shareholder Prior to Exercise. An Optionee or permitted transferee of an Option shall have no rights
or privileges as a shareholder with respect to any shares covered by an Option until such Option has been duly exercised and
certificates representing shares purchased upon such exercise have been issued to such person.

5.9 Unvested Shares. The Administrator shall have the discretion to grant Options which are exercisable for unvested
shares of Common Stock. Should the Optionee cease being an employee, an officer or a director of the Company while
owning such unvested shares, the Company shall have the right to repurchase, at the exercise price paid per share, any or all
of those unvested shares. The terms upon which such repurchase right shall be exercisable (including the period and
procedure for exercise and the appropriate vesting schedule for the purchased shares) shali be established by the
Administrator and set forth in the document evidencing such repurchase right.

Section 6. Restricted Stock

6.1 Issuance and Sale of Restricted Stock. The Administrator shall have the right to issue, at a Purchase Price
determined by the Administrator (provided that such Purchase Price shall not be less than Fair Market Value), shares of
Common Stock subject to such terms, restrictions and conditions as the Administrator may determine at the time of grant
(“Restricted Stock™). Such conditions may include, but are not limited to, continued employment or the achievement of
specified performance goals or objectives.

6.2 Restricted Stock Purchase Agreements. A Participant shall have no rights with respect to the shares of Restricted
Stock covered by a Stock Purchase Agreement until the Participant has paid the full Purchase Price to the Company in the
manner set forth in Section 6.3 hereof and has executed and delivered to the Company the Stock Purchase Agreement. Each
Stock Purchase Agreement shall be in such form, and shall set forth the Purchase Price and such other terms, conditions and
restrictions of the Restricted Stock, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Plan, as the Administrator shall, from time to
time, deem desirable. Each Stock Purchase Agreement may be different from each other Stock Purchase Agreement.




6.3 Payment of Purchase Price. Subject to any legal restrictions, payment of the Purchase Price may be made, in the
discretion of the Administrator, by: (a) cash; (b) check; (c) the surrender of shares of Common Stock owned by the
Participant that have been held by the Participant for the requisite period necessary to avoid a charge to the Company’s
earnings for financial reporting purposes, which surrendered shares shall be valued at Fair Market Value as of the date of
such acceptance; (d) the cancellation of indebtedness owed by the Company to the Participant; (e) the waiver of
compensation due or accrued to the Participant for services rendered; or (f) any combination of the foregoing methods of
payment or any other consideration or method of payment as shall be permitted by applicable corporate law.

6.4 Rights as a Shareholder. Upon complying with the provisions of Section 6.2 hereof, a Participant shall have the
rights of a shareholder with respect to the Restricted Stock purchased pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement, including
voting and dividend rights, subject to the terms, restrictions and conditions as are set forth in such Stock Purchase
Agreement. Unless the Administrator shall determine otherwise, certificates evidencing shares of Restricted Stock shall -
remain in the possession of the Company until such shares have vested in accordance with the terms of the Stock Purchase
Agreement.

6.5 Restrictions. Shares of Restricted Stock may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered or
disposed of except as specifically provided in the Stock Purchase Agreement. In the event of termination of a Participant’s
employment or service as a director of the Company for any reason whatsoever (including death or disability), the Stock
Purchase Agreement may provide, in the discretion of the Administrator, that the Company shall have the right, exercisable
at the discretion of the Administrator, to repurchase at the original Purchase Price, any shares of Restricted Stock which have
not vested as of the date of termination.

6.6 Vesting of Restricted Stock. Subject to Section 6.5 above, the Stock Purchase Agreement shall specify the date or
dates, or the performance goals or objectives which must be achieved, and any other conditions on which the Restricted
Stock may vest.

6.8 Dividends. If payment for shares of Restricted Stock is made by promissory note, any cash dividends paid with
respect to the Restricted Stock may be applied, in the discretion of the Administrator, to the repayment of such note.

Section 7. Administration of the Plan

7.1 Administrator. Authority to control and manage the operation and administration of the Plan shall be vested in the = -
Board, which may delegate such responsibilities in whole or in part to a committee consisting of two (2) or more members of
the Board who are Non-Employee Directors of the Company (the “Committee”). Members of the Committee may be
appointed from time to time by, and shall serve at the pleasure of, the Board. The Board may limit the composition of the
Committee to those persons.necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code and Section 16 of the
Exchange Act. As used herein, the term “Administrator” means the Board or, with respect to any matter as to which
responsibility has been delegated to the Committee, the term Administrator shall mean the Committee.

7.2 Powers of the Administrator. In addmon to any other powers or authority conferred upon the Adm1mstrator
elsewhere in the Plan or by law, the Administrator shall have full power and authority: (a) to determine the Persons to whom,
and the time or times at which, Incentive Options or Nonqualified Options or rights to purchase Restricted Stock shall be
granted, the number of shares to be represented by each Option and the number of shares of Restricted Stock to be offered,
and the consideration to be received by the Company upon the exercise of such Options or sale of such Restricted Stock; (b)
to interpret the Plan; () to create, amend or rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan; (d) to determine the terms,
conditions and restrictions contained in, and the form of, Option Agreements and Stock Purchase Agreements; (€) to
determine the identity or capacity of any Persons who may be entitled to exercise a Participant’s rights under any Option or
Stock Purchase Agreement under the Plan; (f) to correct any defect or supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in
the Plan or in any Option Agreement or Stock Purchase Agreement; (g) to accelerate the vesting of any Option or release or
waive any repurchase rights of the Company with respect to or restrictions on Restricted Stock; (h) to extend the exercise -
date of any Option or acceptance date of any Restricted Stock; (i) to provide for rights of first refusal and/or repurchase
rights; (j) to amend outstanding Option Agreements and Stock Purchase Agreements to provide for, among other things, any
change or modification which the Administrator could have included in the original Agreement or in furtherance of the
powers provided for herein; and (k) to make all other determinations necessary or advisable for the administration of the
Plan, but only to the extent not contrary to the express provisions of the Plan. Any action, decision, interpretation or
determination made in good faith by the Administrator in the exercise of its authority conferred upon it under the Plan shall
be ﬁnal and binding on the Company and all Participants.

7.3 Limitation on Liability. No employee of the Company or member of the Board or Committee shall be subject to
any liability with respect to duties under the Plan unless that Person acts fraudulently or in bad faith. To the extent permitted
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by law, the Company shall indemnify each member of the Board or Committee, and any employee of the Company with
duties under the Plan, who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any threatened, pending or completed
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of such Person’s conduct in the performance of
duties under the Plan. '

Section 8. Change in Control
8.1 Change in Control. In order to preserve a Participant’s rights in the event of a Change in Control of the Company:

(a) Acceleration of Vesting and Lapse of Restrictions. Except as otherwise provide in Paragraph 8.1(b) below, if
a Change of Control is consummated, Options that would not otherwise have become vested immediately prior to
consummation of such Change in Control shall become fully vested, and any restrictions on Restricted Stock that
would not otherwise have lapsed immediately prior to such Change in Control shall lapse, in each case effective
immediately prior to consummation of that Change in Control.

(b) Exception to Acceleration Provisions. Notwithstanding Paragraph 8.1(a) above, but subject to Paragraph
8.1(e) below, Options held by employees of the Company or any Subsidiary that have not previously become vested
shall not become vested, and restrictions on Restricted Stock held by employees of the Company or any Subsidiary as
to which the restrictions have not previously lapsed shall not lapse, by reason of the consummation of a Change in
Control if, purspant to the terms of the definitive agreement providing for consummation of the Change in Control
transaction, the Surviving or Acquiring Entity (as the case may be) in such Change in Control transaction, (i) assumes,
or agrees to and 'does issue to such employees Substitute Options for, such outstanding Options, and (ii) agrees to and
does issue Substitute Restricted Stock in exchange for the cancellation and surrender of the Restricted Stock held by
employees of the Company or any Subsidiary, or (iii) agrees to and does issue, on terms and conditions approved by
the Administrator, other incentives in exchange for the Options and Restricted Stock held by employees of the
Company or any Subsidiary under a new incentive program (“New Incentives”) that the Administrator, in its sole
discretion, determines are of a value that is comparable to the value of the Options and Restricted Stock being
exchanged therefor by employees of the Company or any Subsidiary. The foregoing exception shall not, however,
apply to Options or Restricted Stock held by any Non-Employee Directors.

(¢) Special Vesting Provisions On Assumption or Substitution of Options or Restricted Stock. In the event that
the Surviving or Acquiring Entity (as the case may be) in any Change in Control transaction assumes, or issues
Substitute Options or New Incentives for, the outstanding Options and Substitute Restricted Stock or New Incentives
for the outstanding Restricted Stock, held by employees of the Company, on terms approved by the Administrator, as
provided in Paragraph 8.1(b) above, then, the terms governing the vesting of any assumed Options shall be modified to
provide, and the terms governing any Substitute Options or Substitute Restricted Stock or New Incentives (as the case
may be) shall provide, that any unvested assumed or Substitute Options (as the case may be) held by a Participant shall
immediately become fully vested and exercisable, and any restrictions on any Substitute Restricted Stock held by a
Participant shall immediately lapse, if there occurs an Involuntary Termination of the Continuous Service of such
Participant, in connection with, or on or within twelve (12) months of, the consummation of the Change in Control.
Any such accelerated vesting of Options or Substitute Options or lapse of restrictions on Restricted Stock or Substitute
Restricted Stock, or of New Incentives (as the case may be), due to an Involuntary Termination of the Continuous
Service of a Participant, as provided for in this Paragraph 8.1(c), shall be deemed to have occurred on the day
immediately prior to the date of such Involuntary Termination of Continuous Service. : :

(d) Net Exercise Provisions. If the terms of an outstanding Option Agreement provide for accelerated vesting, or
the Administrator elects to accelerate any outstanding Options in the event of the consummation of a Change in =
Control, or to the extent that an Option is vested and not yet exercised, the Administrator in its discretion may provide,
in connection with the Change in Control transaction, for the purchase or cancellation and exchange of any or all of
such Options for an amount of cash or other property having a value equal to the difference (or “spread”) between: (i)
the value of the cash or other property that the Participant would have received pursuant to the Change in Control
transaction in exchange for the shares issuable upon exercise of the Option had the Option been exercised immediately
prior to the Change in Control, and (ii) the Exercise Price of the Option.

(e) Discretionary Authority of the Committee. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary that may be contained
elsewhere in this Section 8, including in Paragraph 8.1(b), the Administrator shall have the power and authority, in its
sole discretion, to accelerate the vesting of any or all of the Options and/or the lapse of the restrictions on any or all of
the Restricted Stock even if the Surviving or Acquiring Entity in a Change in Control transaction agrees to assume the
Options outstanding under this Plan, or issue Substitute Options or Restricted Stock or New Incentives for the then
outstanding Options or Restricted Stock, as contemplated in Paragraph 8.1(b) above. Additionally, the terms and
conditions relating to the vesting of Options and the lapse of restrictions on Restricted Stock in the event of the
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consummation of a Change in Control may vary from Option Agreement to Option Agreement and from Restricted
Stock Purchase Agreement to Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement, as the Administrator, in its discretion, deems
appropriate. For example, the Administrator, in its discretion, may provide for full acceleration of vesting of Options or
of the lapse of restrictions on Restricted Stock in certain Option Agreements or certain Restricted Stock Purchase
Agreements and not in others.

(f) Termination of Options on Consummation of Change in Control. Notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary that may be contained in this Plan or in any Option Agreement for Options granted under this Plan, all
outstanding Options that have not been exercised or deemed exercised at or before the consummation of a Change of
Control transaction shall terminate and cease to be exercisable upon consummation of such Change in Control except
to the extent that the Options are assumed by the Surviving or Acquiring Entity pursuant to the terms of the Change in
Control transaction. ‘

(2) Notice of Change in Control. If the Company enters into a definitive agreement that provides for the
consummation of a Change in Control of the Company, the Administrator shall cause written notice of such proposed
Change in Control transaction to be given to Participants not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the anticipated effective
date of the proposed Change in Control transaction; provided, however, that any delay in giving or any failure to give
such notice shall not affect the validity of nor shall it entitle any Participant to obtain a delay or postponement in the
consummation of the Change in Control transaction.

8.2 Effect of Abandonment of Change in Control Transaction. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary that may be
contained in this Section 8 or elsewhere in this Plan, if an acceleration of the vesting of any Options or the lapse of
restrictions on any Restricted Stock occurs is deemed to have occurred immediately prior to the consummation of a Change
in Control, pursuant to Paragraph 8.1(a) above or any other provision of this Plan, but the Change in Control transaction is
terminated or abandoned, for any reason whatsoever, before consummation thereof, then such acceleration of vesting and
lapse of restrictions shall be deemed to have not occurred and the vesting schedule for this Option and the schedule for lapse
of restrictions on Restricted Stock, as in effect prior to such acceleration, shall be reinstated.

Section 9. Amendment and Termination of The Plan

9.1 Amendments. The Board may from time to time alter, amend, suspend or terminate the Plan in such respects as the
Board may deem advisable. No such alteration, amendment, suspension or termination shall be made which shall
substantially affect or impair the rights of any Participant under an outstanding Option Agreement or Stock Purchase’
Agreement without such Participant’s consent. The Board may alter or amend the Plan to comply with requirements under
the Code relating to Incentive Options or other types of options which give Optionees more favorable tax treatment than that
applicable to Options granted under this Plan as of the date of its adoption. Upon any such alteration or amendment, any
outstanding Option granted hereunder may, if the Administrator so determines and if permitfed by applicable law, be subject
to the more favorable tax treatment afforded to an Optionee pursuant to such terms and conditions.

9.2 Plan Termination. Unless the Plan shall theretofore have been terminated, the Plan shall terminate on the tenth
(10th) anniversary of the Effective Date and no Options or Restricted Stock may be granted under the Pian thereafter, but
Option Agreements and Stock Purchase Agreements then outstanding shall continue in full force and effect in accordance .
with their respective terms. ‘

Section 10. Tax Withholding

10.1 Withholding. The Company shall have the power to withhold, or require a Participant to remit to the Company, an
amount sufficient to satisfy any applicable Federal, state, and local tax withholding requirements with respect to any Options
exercised or Restricted Stock issued under the Plan. To the extent permissible under applicable tax, securities and other laws,
the Administrator may, in its sole discretion and upon such terms and conditions as it may deem appropriate, permit a
Participant to satisfy his or her obligation to pay any such tax, in whole or in part, up to an amount determined on the basis of
the highest marginal tax rate applicable to such Participant, by (a) directing the Company to apply shares of Common Stock
to which the Participant is entitled as a result of the exercise of an Option or as a result of the purchase of or lapse of
restrictions on Restricted Stock or (b) delivering to the Company shares of Common Stock owned by the Participant. The
shares of Common Stock so applied or delivered in satisfaction of the Participant’s tax withholding obligation shall be valued
at their Fair Market Value as of the date of measurement of the amount of income subject to withholding.



Section 11. Miscellaneous

11.1 Benefits Not Alienable. Except as otherwise provided above in this Plan, benefits under the Plan may not be
assigned or alienated, whether voluntarily or involuntarily. Any unauthorized attempt at assignment, transfer, pledge or other
disposition shall be without effect. '

11.2 No Enlargement of Employee Rights. This Plan is strictly a voluntary undertaking on the part of the Company and
shall not be deemed to constitute a contract between the Company and any Participant or to be consideration for, or an
inducement to, or a condition of, the employment of any Participant. Nothing contained in the Plan shall be deemed to give to
any Participant a right to be retained as an employee of the Company or any Affiliated Company or to interfere with the right
of the Company or any Affiliated Company to discharge any Participant at any time.

11.3 Application of Funds. The proceeds received by the Company frorn the sale of Common Stock pursuant to Option
Agreements and Stock Purchase Agreements, except as may otherwise be provided herein, will be used for general corporate

purposes.
11.4 Annual Reports. While any Option remains outstanding, the Company will furnish to each Participant that is the

holder of an Option, or any permitted assignee thereof, who does not otherwise receive such materials, copies of all reports,
proxy statements and other communications that the Company distributes generally to its shareholders.




SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

EXHIBIT 21

Set forth below are the Company’s subsidiaries, their respective states of fncorporation or organization and the -
percentage of outstanding shares or other voting interests held by the Company in each of such subsidiaries as of the date of

this Annual Report.
Name of Subsidiary State of Incorporation or Organization Percentage Ownership
Pacific Mercantile Bank A California corporation 100%
PMB Securities Corp. ' A California corporation 100%
Pacific Mercantile Capital Trust I A Delaware trust - 100%
PMB Capital Trust II A Delaware trust 100%
PMB Statutory Trust I A Connecticut trust 100%
PMB Capital Trust Il A Delaware trust 100%




EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated March 10, 2005, accompanying the consolidated financial statements and
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the Annual Report of |
Pacific Mercantile Bancorp and Subsidiaries on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004. We hereby consent to the
incorporation by reference of said report in the Registration Statement of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp on Form S-8 (File No.
333-65634).

s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Irvine, California
March 10, 2005




Exhibit 31.1

' CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
UNDER '
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Raymond E. Dellerba, Chief Executive Officer of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp, certify that:

1.
2.

1 have reviewed this Annunal Report on Form 10-K of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp;

Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have: ‘

a)

b)

<)

d

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles; '

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control aver financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivaient function):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2005

/s/  RAYMOND E. DELLERBA

Raymond E. Dellerba
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF FINANCJAL OFFICER
UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Nancy A. Gray, Chief Financial Officer of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp, certify that:
1.  Ihave reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4,  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

S.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting; to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a)  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2005

/s/ NaNcy A. GRAY

Nancy A. Gray
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
UNDER |
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP

Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the Year ended December 31, 2004

In connection with the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp (the’
“Company”) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 (the “Annual Report™), , and pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as
adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f 2002, I, Raymond E. Dellerba, President and Chlef Executive
Officer of the Company, certify that:

(1) The Annual Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securmes
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the ﬁnancxal
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 10, 2005

/s/ RAYMOND E. DELLERBA

Raymond E. Dellerba
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
UNDER
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

PACIFIC MERCANTILE BANCORP

Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the Year ended December 31, 2004

In connection with the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K of Pacific Mercantile Bancorp (the
“Company”) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 (the “Annual Report”), and pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as
adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, I, Nancy A. Gray, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify that:

(1) The Annual Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the ﬁnanc1al
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 10, 2005

/s/ NANCY A. GRAY

Nancy A. Gray
Chief Financial Officer
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